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iE1 PEIPENNSYLVANIA REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST

NYSE

Distribution Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan

If you are already shareholder or are interested in becoming one you will find PREITs direct

stock purchase and dividend reinvestment program convenient choice

You can invest in shares of PREIT online or by mail

Purchase shares of PREIT at 1% discount and with no transaction fee

Minimum initial investment of $250.00

Minimum subsequent investment of $50.00

Increase your holdings by investing up to $5000 month without waiver

Send check

Reinvest all or part of your dividends automaticallyat no cost to you

Receive cash distributions by check or by direct deposit into your bank account

Transfer or sell your shares easily

Free safekeeping

To learn more about PREIT please visit our web site at www.oreit.com for

Supplemental Financial and Operating Information

Stock Information

News Releases

Property Information
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To invest on line securely and conveniently please visit our web site www.Dreit.com

Click on Investor Relations

Choose DRIP/Stock Purchase

copy of the prospectus enrollment and other information regarding the Plan is also available by

contacting the Plan Administrator Wells Fargo Shareowner Services directly at 800.468.9716 or

651.450.4064 or at their web site www.shareowneronline.com You should read the prospectus

carefully before making any investment

Shareholders can save paper and obtain documents including annual reports and proxy materials via

the Internet simply go to www.oreit.com

To receive answers to your questions or to receive information by mail please contact

Investor Relations

Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust

200 South Broad Street

Third Floor

Philadelphia PA 19102

Toll free 866.875.0700 Ext 50735

Tel 215.875.0735

Fax 215.546.2504

E-mail investorinfo@nreit.com
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Visit our web site at wwwflr5itçom or Call Us at 215.875.0735 NYSE

Name

Title

Company

Street
Suite/Apt

City State Zip

Phone Fax

E-Mail

wish to receive the following

Distribution Reinvestment Share Purchase Plan prospectus and forms

Investor Package Annual Report Supplemental Financial and Operating Information

OFormiOK OFormlOO OOther

Annual Proxy Press Releases

wish to receive information electronically Please remove me from your mailing list

am a/an Investor Broker Analyst Banker Media Other

These documents are also available on the Company web site www.nreit.com
ANNUAL 20



PERFORMANCE GRAPH The five-year performance graph at

right compares our cumulative total shareholder return with

the NAREIT Equity Index the SP 500 Index and the Russell

2000 Index Equity real estate investment trusts are defined

as those which derive more than 75% of their income from

equity investments in real estate assets The graph assumes

that the value of the investment in each of the four was $100

on the last trading day of 2003 and that all dividends were

reinvested
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Selected Financial Information unaudited

Funds From Operations FF0 is defined as income before gains and losses on sales of operating properties and extraordinary items computed in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP plus real estate depreciation plus or minus adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships to reflect funds

from operations on the same basis FF0 should not be construed as an alternative to net income as determined in accordance with GAAP as an indicator of

the Companys operating performance or to cash flows from operating activities as determined in accordance with GAAP as measure of liquidity In addition
the Companys measure of FF0 as presented may not be comparable to similarly titled measures as reported by other companies For additional information

about FF0 please refer to page 51

in thousands except per share amounts ear Ended December 31

2006 2005 2004

454878 425630 395475

2008 2007

469581 459596

10380 17283

10380 23161

10380 28567

0.30 0.57

0.30 0.57

0.30 0.73

0.30 0.73

28729 49191

28021 57629

14408 44016

0.39 0.96

0.39 0.94

0.37 1.19

0.37 1.17

164405 130182

187744 326442
16299 178956

46345

53788

40175

0.90

0.90

1.11

1.10

132430

104118

311137

149486

242377
105008

2.28 2.28 2.25 2.16

3.50 5.50 5.50 5.50

Operating Results

Gross revenue from real estate

Loss income from continuing operations

Net loss income

Net loss allocable income available to common shareholders

Loss income from continuing operations per share basic

Loss income from continuing operations per share diluted

Net loss income per share basic

Net loss income per share diluted

Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from used in financing activities

Cash Distributions

Cash distributions per share basic

Cash distributions per share preferred

Balance Sheet Items

Investment in real estate at cost

Total assets

Long Term Debt

Consolidated properties

Mortgage notes payable

Credit Facility

Exchangeable notes

Senior unsecured term loan

Corporate notes payable

Companys share of partnerships

Mortgage notes payable

Funds From Operations

Net loss income

Minority interest

Dividends on preferred shares

Redemption of preferred shares

Gains on sales of interests in real estate

Gains adjustment to gains on discontinued operations

Depreciation and amortization

Wholly owned and consolidated partnerships net

Unconsolidated partnerships

Discontinued operations

Funds from operation

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Weighted average effect of full conversion OP Units

Effect of common share equivalents

Total weighted average shares outstanding including OP Units

Funds from operations per share

$3367294 $3132370

$3264074 $3145609

124963

353239

210137

2.28

$3708048

$3444277

$1756270

400000

241500

170000

184064

10380

287

149005

8361

$1643122

330000

287500

$2867436

$3018547

$1332066

342500

94400

$1572908

332000

1148

$2533576

$2731403

$1145079

271000

188089 189940 134500 107513

23161

2105

7941

13347

579

6699

28021

3288

13613

1414

57629

7404

13613

5586

6158

53788

6792

13613

1484
550

129924 121090 107940 95153

7130 7017 4582 5781

215 3871 639 709

146699 160663 148260 152837 147676

38807 37577 36256 36090 35609

2236 3308 4083 4580 4183

14 325 599 673 659

41057 41210 40938 41343 40451

3.57 3.90 3.62 3.70 3.65
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

in thousands of dollars except share and per share amoants

Assets

Investments in real estate at cost

Operating properties

Construction in progress

Land held for development

Total Investments in real estate

Accumulated depreciation

Net investments in real estate

Investments in partnerships at equity

Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Tenant and other receivables net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1 6895 and $1 1424

at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Intangible assets net of accumulated amortization of $169189 and $137809

at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Deferred costs and other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Mortgage notes payable

Debt premium on mortgage notes payable

Exchangeable notes

Credit Facility

Senior unsecured term loan

Tenants deposits and deferred rent

Distributions in excess of partnership investments

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Minority interest redemption value $16397 and $66560

at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively

Commitments and contingencies Note 12

Shareholders equity

Shares of beneficial interest $1 .00 par value per share 100000000 shares authorized

issued and outstanding 39468523 shares at December 31 2008 and 39134109 shares

at December 31 2007

Capital contributed in excess of par

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Distributions in excess of net income

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities minority interest and shareholders equity

December31

2008

December 31

2007

3291103 3074562

411479 287116

5466 5616

3708048 3367294

516832 401502

3191216 2965792

36164 36424

9786 27925

57970 49094

68296 104136

80845 80703

3444277 3264074

1756270 1643122

4026 13820

241500 287500

400000 330000

170000

13112 16213

48788 49166

123739 111378

2757435 2451199

52326 55256

39469 39134

834026 818966

45341 6968

193638 93513

634516 757619

3444277 3264074

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements



Consolidated Statements of Income

In thousands of dollars except per share amsssts

Revenue

Real estate revenue

Base rent

Expense reimbursements

Percentage rent

Lease termination revenue

Other real estate revenue

Total real estate revenue

Management company revenue

Interest and other revenue

Total revenue

Expenses

Property operating expenses

CAM and real estate tax

Utilities

Other property expenses

Total property operating expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Other expenses

General and administrative expenses

Executive separation

Impairment of assets

Abandoned project costs income taxes and other expenses

Total other expenses

Interest expense net

Gain on extinguishment of debt

Total expenses

Loss income before equity in income of partnerships gains on sales of real estate

minority interest and discontinued operations

Equity in income of partnerships

Gains on sales of nonoperating real estate

Gains on sales of interests in real estate

Loss income before minority interest and discontinued operations

Minority interest

Loss income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Operating results from discontinued operations

Gains on sales of discontinued operations

Minority interest

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net loss income

Redemption of preferred shares

Dividends on preferred shares

Net loss allocable income available to common shareholders

Fsr the lear Ended December31

2008 2007 2006

300287 293110 289286

139636 136360 131846

7157 9067 9942

4114 1589 2789

18387 19470 21015

469581 459596 454878

3730 4419 2422

769 2557 2008

474080 466572 459308

135293 129338 123503
24872 24998 23520
27787 26083 28684

187952 180419 175707
151612 132184 123302

40324 41415 38193

3985
27592

1534 1944 733
69450 43359 42911

112064 98860 96382
29278

491 800 454822 438302

17720 11750 21006

7053 4637 5595

1731 5495

579

10667 18697 32096

287 1414 3367
10380 17283 28729

130 2201
6699 1414

691 79

5878 708
10380 23161 28021

13347

7941 13613
10380 28567 14408

See accompanying notes to conso/idated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Income continued

Earnings per Share

hi thousands except per share amounts

Loss income from continuing operations

Redemption of preferred shares

Dividends on preferred shares

Loss income from continuing operations available to common shareholders

Dividends on unvested restricted shares

Loss income from continuing operations used to calculate earnings per share basic

Minority interest in properties continuing operations

Loss income from continuing operations used to calculate earnings per share diluted

Income loss from discontinued operations used to calculate earnings per share

basic and diluted

Basic loss earnings per share

Loss income from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Diluted loss earnings per share

Loss income from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Weighted average shares outstanding basic

Effect of dilutive common share equivalents

Weighted average shares outstanding diluted

2007 2006

28729

13613

For the year ended December 31 2008 there/s net loss allocable to common shareholders from continuing operations so the effect of common share equiv

alents of 14 for the year ended December 31 2008 is excluded from the calculation of diluted loss per share

Fur the Year Ended December 31

2008

10380 17283

13347

7941

10380 22689 15116

1222 088 043

11602 21601 14073

155

11602 21601 14228

5878 708

0.30 0.57 0.39

0.16 0.02

0.30 0.73 0.37

0.30 0.57 0.39

0.16 0.02

0.30 0.73 0.37

38807 37577 36256

325 599

38807 37902 36855

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity and Comprehensive Income
For the Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 Retained

Shares of Accumulated Earnings

Beneficial Preferred Capital Other Distributions Tntal

Interest Shares Contributed in Comprehensive in Escess of Shareholders

in thousands of dollars encept per share amounts $100 Par $01 Par Excess of Par Income Loss Net Income Equity

Balance January 2006 36521 25 $899439 4377 36514 $976876

Comprehensive income

Net income 28021 28021

Unrealized gain on derivatives 3480 3480

Other comprehensive income 36 36

Total comprehensive income 31 537

Shares issued upon exercise ot options net ot retirements 57 227 284

Shares issued upon redemption of Operating Partnership units 193 7991 8184

Shares issued under distribution reinvestment and

share purchase plan 115 4418 4533

Shares issued under employee share purchase plans 18 727 745

Shares issued under equity incentive plan net of retirements 43 2340 2297
Amortization of deferred compensation 5860 5860

Distributions paid to common shareholders $228 per share 83809 83809
Distributions paid to preterred shareholders $5.50 per share 13613 13613
Balance December 31 2006 36947 25 91 7322 7893 32887 929300

Comprehensive income

Net income 23161 23161

Unrealized loss on derivatives 14644 14644
Other comprehensive loss 217 217

Total comprehensive income 8300

Shares issued upon exercise of options net of retirements 76 145 221

Shares issued upon redemption of Operating Partnership units 2053 51 231 53284

Shares issued under distribution reinvestment and

share purchase plan 98 3785 3883

Shares issued under employee share purchase plans 20 742 762

Shares issued under equity incentive plan net of retirements 93 2183 2090
Repurchase of common shares 153 3291 2000 5444
Capped calls 12578 12578
Preferred share redemption 25 143278 13347 129956
Amortization of deferred compensation 7071 7071

Distributions paid to common shareholders $2.28 per share 86475 86475
Distributions paid to preferred shareholders $3.50 per share 8659 8659
Balance December 31 2007 39134 818966 6968 93513 757619

Comprehensive income

Net loss 10380 10380
Unrealized loss on derivatives 38415 38415
Other comprehensive income 42 42

Total comprehensive loss 48753
Shares issued upon exercise of options net of retirements 26 584 610

Shares issued upon redemption of Operating Partnership units 42 973 015

Shares issued under distribution reinvestment and

share purchase plan 70 1259 1329
Shares issued under employee share purchase plans 45 684 729

Shares issued under equity incentive plan net of retirements 176 204 28
Repurchase of common shares 24 600 624
Adjustment to shareholders equity for

Outperformance Plan note 2911 2911

Amortization of deferred compensation 9453 9453

Distributions paid to common shareholders $2.28 per share 89745 89745

Balance December 31 2008 39469 $834026 45341 $193638 $634516

See accompanying notes to conso/idated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31

in thousands of dollars

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation

Amortization

Straight-line rent adjustments

Provision for doubtful accounts

Amortization of deferred compensation

Amortization of Outperformance Program

Minority interest

Net gain on forward starting swap activities

Gain on extinguishment of debt

Impairment of assets

Gains on sales of interests in real estate

Change in assets and liabilities

Net change in other assets

Net change in other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Investments in real estate acquisitions net of cash acquired

Investments in real estate improvements

Additions to construction in progress

Investments in partnerships

Decrease increase in cash escrows

Capitalized leasing costs

Additions to leasehold improvements

Increase in notes receivable from tenants

Cash distributions from partnerships in excess of equity in income

Cash proceeds from sales of real estate investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Principal installments on mortgage notes payable

Proceeds from mortgage notes payable

Repayment of mortgage notes payable

Repayment of corporate notes payable

Proceeds from sale of Exchangeable Notes

Repurchase of Exchangeable Notes

Net borrowing from repayment of Credit Facility

Borrowing from senior unsecured term loan

Net proceeds payment from settlement of forward-starting interest rate swap agreements

Payment of deferred financing costs

Purchase of capped calls

Shares of beneficial interest issued

Shares of beneficial interest repurchased other

Shares of beneficial interest repurchased under share repurchase program

Operating partnership units purchased or redeemed

Redemption of preferred shares

Dividends paid to common shareholders

Dividends paid to preferred shareholders

Distributions paid to Operating Partnership Unit holders and minority partners

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents end of year

2008 2007 2006

10380 23161 28021

117988 100020 92329

28915 22278 22981

2338 2439 2905

4666 2414 3182

8634 7071 5860

819 819 1160

287 2105 3288

2002

29278

27592

9009 6909

8095 4448 3118

11271 7514 20516

124963 149486 164405

11914 11657 60858

25027 32524 35521

307411 213761 154155

4006 13654 3408

7181 1130 2755

5314 4830 4613

762 945 619

10000

3888 1578 56423

126 32286 17762

353239 242377 187744

21603 23123 22771

633265 150000 246500

506514 56663

1148 94400

281031

15912

70000 2000 10500
170000

6503 4069

0487 4201 1498

12578
3217 19157 8055

624 6983 2545

5444
4438 352

129955

89745 86475 83809

8659 13613

4957 7582 8768
210137 105008 16299

18139 12117 7040

27925 15808 22848

9786 27925 15808

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

NATURE OF OPERATIONS Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust

Pennsylvania business trust founded in 1960 and one of the first

equity real estate investment trusts REITs in the United States has

primary investment focus on retail shopping malls and strip and

power centers located in the eastern half of the United States prima

rily in the MidAtlantic region As of December 31 2008 the

Companys portfolio consisted of total of 56 properties in 13 states

including 38 shopping malls 14 strip and power centers and four prop

erties under development The ground-up development portion of the

Companys portfolio contained four properties in two states with two

classified as mixed use combination of retail and other uses one

classified as retail and one classified as other

The Company holds its interest in its portfolio of properties through its

operating partnership PREIT Associates L.P the Operating

Partnership The Company is the sole general partner of the

Operating Partnership and as of December 31 2008 the Company

held 94.7% interest in the Operating Partnership and consolidates it

for reporting purposes The presentation of consolidated financial

statements does not itself imply that the assets of any consolidated

entity including any special-purpose entity formed for particular

project are available to pay the liabilities of any other consolidated

entity or that the liabilities of any consolidated entity including any

special-purpose entity formed for particular project are obligations of

any other consolidated entity

Pursuant to the terms of the partnership agreement of the Operating

Partnership each of the limited partners has the
right

to redeem such

partners units of limited partnership interest in the Operating

Partnership OP Units for cash or at the election of the Company the

Company may acquire such OP Units for common shares of the

Company on one-for-one basis in some cases beginning one year

following the respective issue date of the OP Units and in other cases

immediately In the event of the redemption of all of the outstanding OP
Units held by limited partners for cash the total amount that would

have been distributed as of December 31 2008 would have been

$1 6.4 million which is calculated using the Companys December 31
2008 share price on the New York Stock Exchange multiplied by the

number of outstanding OP Units held by limited partners

The Company provides its management leasing and real estate devel

opment services through two companies PREIT Services LLC PREIT
Services which generally develops and manages properties that the

Company consolidates for financial reporting purposes and PREIT

RUBIN Inc PRI which generally develops and manages properties

that the Company does not consolidate for financial reporting pur

poses including properties owned by partnerships in which the

Company owns an interest and properties that are owned by third

parties in which the Company does not have an interest PREIT

Services and PRI are consolidated PAl is taxable REIT subsidiary as

defined by federal tax laws which means that it is able to offer an

expanded menu of services to tenants without jeopardizing the

Companys continuing qualification as REIT under federal tax law

CONSOLIDATION The Company consolidates its accounts and the

accounts of the Operating Partnership and other controlled sub

sidiaries and reflects the remaining interest of such entities as minority

interest All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have

been eliminated in consolidation

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES The Company is subject to various risks

and uncertainties in the ordinary course of business that could have

adverse impacts on its operating results and financial condition The

most significant external risks facing the Company today stem from the

current downturn in the overall economy and challenging conditions in

the capital and credit markets

Substantially all of the Companys revenue is generated from leases

with retail tenants The reduction in consumer spending as result of

declining consumer confidence and increasing unemployment has

affected and may continue to negatively affect the operations of many

retail companies Beginning in the second half of 2008 the number of

retail bankruptcies and store closings has increased Retailers also

have reduced the number of store openings planned for 2009 due to

these economic conditions In the near term these conditions may

cause the Companys occupancy rates revenue and net income to

decline from current levels

The Company uses substantial amount of debt to finance its busi

ness The Company has relied on new borrowings to fund its

redevelopment and development projects and for working capital pur

poses The Company estimates that it will require approximately up to

$150.0 million during 2009 to fund its ongoing redevelopment and

development projects unaudited In addition $58.5 million of the

Companys debt matures during 2009 An additional $123.7 million

which represents the Companys share of debt at joint venture partner

ship properties matures during 2009 however $1 11 .2 million of the

debt agreements contain options to extend the respective maturity

dates for period of one year provided that there is no event of default

with respect to such loans and certain other conditions are met The

Company expects to satisfy its 2009 capital requirements and debt

maturities through borrowings under its Credit Facility refinancing

certain mortgage loans and by additional borrowings secured by exist

ing properties However given the continued weakness of the credit

markets there is no assurance that the Company will be able to refi

nance its existing debt or obtain the additional capital necessary to

satisfy its 2009 obligations on satisfactory terms or at all

As of December 31 2008 the Company had borrowed $400.0 million

under its $500.0 million Credit
Facility that expires in March 2010

Financial covenants under the Credit Facility require that the

Companys leverage ratio as defined in the Credit Facility be less than

65% provided that this leverage ratio can be exceeded for one period

of two consecutive quarters but may not exceed 70% and that the

Company meet certain other debt yield interest coverage and fixed

charge ratios see note Compliance with each of these ratios is

dependent upon the Companys financial performance The leverage

ratio is based in part on applying capitalization rate to the

Companys net operating income Based on this calculation method

decreases in net operating income would result in an increased lever

age ratio even if overall debt levels remain constant To avoid

breaching the leverage ratio or other covenants the Company might be

required to curtail its capital spending sell assets further reduce its

dividend reduce debt levels or raise additional equity capital
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PARTNERSHIP INVESTMENTS The Company accounts for its invest

ments in partnerships that it does not control using the equity method

of accounting These investments each of which represent 40% to

50% noncontrolling ownership interest at December 31 2008 are

recorded initially at the Companys cost and subsequently adjusted for

the Companys share of net equity in income and cash contributions

and distributions The Company does not control any of these equity

method investees for the following reasons

Except for two properties that the Company co-manages with its

partner the other entities are managed on day-to-day basis by

one of the Companys other partners as the managing general

partner in each of the respective partnerships In the case of the co

managed properties all decisions in the ordinary course of business

are made jointly

The managing general partner is responsible for establishing the

operating and capital decisions of the partnership including

budgets in the ordinary course of business

All major decisions of each partnership such as the sale refinanc

ing expansion or rehabilitation of the property require the approval

of all partners

Voting rights and the sharing of profits and losses are in proportion

to the ownership percentages of each partner

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS The Company considers all highly liquid

short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less

to be cash equivalents At December 31 2008 and 2007 cash and

cash equivalents totaled $9.8 million and $27.9 million respectively

and included tenant security deposits of $4.5 million and $4.4 million

respectively Cash paid for interest including interest related to discon

tinued operations was $117.5 million $109.5 million and $109.0

million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively net of amounts capitalized of $16.0 million $16.3 million

and $9.6 million respectively

SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS On June 2007 the

Company issued 1580211 common shares of beneficial interest in

exchange for like number of OP Units in transaction with an entity

that is an affiliate of Mark Pasquerilla trustee of the Company

In December 2006 the Company issued 341 297 OP Units valued at

$13.4 million in connection with the purchase of the remaining interest

in two partnerships that own or ground lease 12 malls related to the

put-call arrangement established in the Crown American Realty Trust

merger in 2003 see note 11

Accounting Policies

USE OF ESTIMATES The preparation of financial statements in con

formity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America requires the Companys management to make esti

mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date

of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and

expense during the reporting periods Actual results could differ from

those estimates

The Companys management makes complex or subjective assump

tions and judgments in applying its critical accounting policies In

making these judgments and assumptions management considers

among other factors

events and changes in property market and economic conditions

estimated future cash flows from property operations and

the risk of loss on specific accounts or amounts

The estimates and assumptions made by the Companys management

in applying its critical accounting policies have not changed materially

over time and none of these estimates or assumptions have proven to

be materially incorrect or resulted in the Company recording any signif

icant adjustments relating to prior periods The Company will continue

to monitor the key factors underlying its estimates and judgments but

no change is currently expected

REVENUE RECOGNITION The Company derives over 95% of its

revenue from tenant rent and other tenant-related activities Tenant rent

includes base rent percentage rent expense reimbursements such as

common area maintenance real estate taxes and utilities amortization

of above-market and below-market intangibles as described below

under Intangible Assets and straight-line rent The Company records

base rent on straight-line basis which means that the monthly base

rent income according to the terms of the Companys leases with its

tenants is adjusted so that an average monthly rent is recorded for

each tenant over the term of its lease When tenants vacate prior to the

end of their lease the Company accelerates amortization of any related

unamortized straight-line rent balances and unamortized above-

market and below-market intangible balances are amortized as

decrease or increase to real estate revenue respectively The straight-

line rent adjustment increased revenue by approximately $2.3 million in

2008 $2.4 million in 2007 and $2.9 million in 2006 The straight-line

receivable balances included in tenant and other receivables on the

accompanying balance sheet as of December 31 2008 and December

31 2007 were $24.2 million and $21 .8 million respectively

Percentage rent represents rental income that the tenant pays based

on percentage of its sales either as percentage of their total sales

or as percentage of sales over certain threshold In the latter case

the Company does not record percentage rent until the sales threshold

has been reached Revenue for rent received from tenants prior to their

due dates is deferred until the period to which the rent applies

In addition to base rent certain lease agreements contain provisions

that require tenants to reimburse pro rata share of certain common

area maintenance costs and real estate taxes Tenants generally make

expense reimbursement payments monthly based on budgeted

amount determined at the beginning of the year During the year the

Companys income increases or decreases based on actual expense

levels and changes in other factors that influence the reimbursement
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amounts such as occupancy levels As of December 31 2008 and

2007 the Companys accounts receivable included accrued income of

$1 1.7 million and $10.9 million respectively because actual reim

bursable expense amounts able to be billed to tenants under

applicable contracts exceeded amounts actually billed Subsequent to

the end of the year the Company prepares reconciliation of the actual

amounts due from tenants The difference between the actual amount

due and the amounts paid by the tenant throughout the year is billed

or credited to the tenant depending on whether the tenant paid too

little or too much during the year

Payments made to tenants as inducements to enter into lease are

treated as deferred costs that are amortized as reduction of rental

revenue over the term of the related lease

No single tenant represented 10% or more of the Companys rental

revenue in any period presented

Lease termination fee income is recognized in the period when termi

nation agreement is signed collectibility
is assured and the Company

is no longer obligated to provide space to the tenant In the event that

tenant is in bankruptcy when the termination agreement is signed

termination fee income is deferred and recognized when it is received

The Company also generates revenue from the provision of manage
ment services to third parties including property management

brokerage leasing and development Management fees generally are

percentage of managed property revenue or cash receipts Leasing

fees are earned upon the consummation of new leases Development

fees are earned over the time period of the development activity and

are recognized on the percentage of completion method These activ

ities are collectively included in management company revenue in the

consolidated statements of income

FAIR VALUE On January 2008 the Company adopted SFAS No
157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS No 157 which defines fair

value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands

disclosures about fair value measurements SFAS No 157 applies to

reported balances that are required or permitted to be measured at fair

value under existing accounting pronouncements the standard does

not require any new fair value measurements of reported balances

SFAS No 157 emphasizes that fair value is market-based measure

ment not an entity-specific measurement Therefore fair value

measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that

market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability As basis

for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measure

ments SFAS No 157 establishes fair value hierarchy that distinguishes

between market participant assumptions based on market data

obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity observable

inputs that are classified within Levels and of the hierarchy and the

reporting entitys own assumptions about market participant assump
tions unobservable inputs classified within Level of the hierarchy

Level inputs utilize quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access

Level inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level

that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly

Level inputs may include quoted prices for similar assets and liabili

ties in active markets as well as inputs that are observable for the

asset or liability other than quoted prices such as interest rates

foreign exchange rates and yield curves that are observable at com
monly quoted intervals

Level inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability which

are typically based on an entitys own assumptions as there is little if

any related market activity

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is

based on inputs from different levels of the fair value hierarchy the level

in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement

falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement in its entirety The Companys assessment of the signifi

cance of particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety

requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability

The Company utilizes the fair value hierarchy in its accounting for deriv

atives and in its impairment reviews of real estate assets and goodwill

ASSET IMPAIRMENT Real estate investments and related intangible

assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in cir

cumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the property might not

be recoverable property to be held and used is considered impaired

only if managements estimate of the aggregate future cash flows less

estimated capital expenditures to be generated by the property undis

counted and without interest charges are less than the carrying value

of the property This estimate takes into consideration factors such as

expected future operating income trends and prospects as well as the

effects of demand competition and other factors In addition these

estimates may consider probability weighted cash flow estimation

approach when alternative courses of action to recover the carrying

amount of long-lived asset are under consideration or when range

of possible values is estimated

The determination of undiscounted cash flows requires significant esti

mates by management including the expected course of action at the

balance sheet date that would lead to such cash flows Subsequent

changes in estimated undiscounted cash flows arising from changes in

anticipated action to be taken with respect to the property could

impact the determination of whether an impairment exists and whether

the effects could materially impact the Companys net income To the

extent estimated undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying

value of the property the loss will be measured as the excess of the

carrying amount of the property over the fair value of the property

Assessment of the recoverability by the Company of certain lease

related costs must be made when the Company has reason to

believe that the tenant might not be able to perform under the terms of

the lease as originally expected This requires the Company to make

estimates as to the recoverability of such costs

An other than temporary impairment of an investment in an unconsoli

dated
joint venture is recognized when the carrying value of the

investment is not considered recoverable based on evaluation of the

severity and duration of the decline in value including the results of dis

continued cash flow and other valuation techniques To the extent

impairment has occurred the excess carrying value of the asset over

its estimated fair value is charged to income
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REAL ESTATE Land buildings fixtures and tenant improvements are

recorded at cost and stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as

incurred Renovations or replacements which improve or extend the

life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated

useful lives

For financial reporting purposes properties are depreciated using the

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets The

estimated useful lives are as follows

Buildings 30-50 years

Land improvements 15 years

Furniture/fixtures 3-10 years

Tenant improvements Lease term

The Company is required to make subjective assessments as to the

useful lives of its real estate assets for purposes of determining the

amount of depreciation to reflect on an annual basis with respect to

those assets based on various factors including industry standards

historical experience and the condition of the asset at the time of

acquisition These assessments have direct impact on the

Companys net income If the Company were to determine that longer

expected useful life was appropriate for particular asset it
would be

depreciated over more years and other things being equal result in

less annual depreciation expense and higher annual net income

Gains from sales of real estate properties and interests in partnerships

generally are recognized using the full accrual method in accordance

with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No

66 Accounting for Real Estate Sales provided that various criteria

are met relating to the terms of sale and any subsequent involvement

by the Company with the properties sold

INTANGIBLE ASSETS The Company accounts for its property acquisi

tions under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 141 Business Combinations SFAS No 141
Pursuant to SFAS No 141 the purchase price of property is allo

cated to the propertys assets based on managements estimates of

their fair value The determination of the fair value of intangible assets

requires significant estimates by management and considers many

factors including the Companys expectations about the underlying

property and the general market conditions in which the property oper

ates The judgment and subjectivity inherent in such assumptions can

have significant impact on the magnitude of the intangible assets that

the Company records

SFAS No 141 provides guidance on allocating portion of the pur

chase price of property to intangible assets The Companys

methodology for this allocation includes estimating an as-if vacant fair

value of the physical property which is allocated to land building and

improvements The difference between the purchase price and the as-

if vacant fair value is allocated to intangible assets There are three

categories of intangible assets to be considered value of in-place

leases ii above- and below-market value of in-place leases and iii

customer relationship value

The value of in-place leases is estimated based on the value associated

with the costs avoided in originating leases comparable to the acquired

in-place leases as well as the value associated with lost rental revenue

during the assumed lease-up period The value of in-place leases is

amortized as real estate amortization over the remaining lease term

Above-market and below-market in-place lease values for acquired

properties are recorded based on the present value of the difference

between the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the in-place

leases and ii managements estimates of fair market lease rates for the

comparable in-place leases based on factors such as historical expe

rience recently executed transactions and specific property issues

measured over period equal to the remaining non-cancelable term of

the lease The value of above-market lease values is amortized as

reduction of rental income over the remaining terms of the respective

leases The value of below-market lease values is amortized as an

increase to rental income over the remaining terms of the respective

leases including any below-market optional renewal periods

The Company allocates purchase price to customer relationship intan

gibles based on managements assessment of the value of such

relationships

The following table presents the Companys intangible assets and liabili

ties net of accumulated amortization as of December31 2008 and 2007

in thousands of dollars

Value of in-place lease intangibles

Above-market lease intangibles

Subtotal

Goodwill jsee below

Total intangible assets

Below-market lease intangibles

As of December 31

2008 2007

55745 84140

5395 8192

61140 92332

7156 11804

68296 $104136

7996 10131

Amortization of in-place lease intangibles was $29.1 million $29.0

million and $29.7 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively

Amortization of above-market and below-market lease intangibles

decreased revenue by $0.6 million $0.1 million and $0.6 million in

2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

In the normal course of business the Companys intangible assets will

amortize in the next five years and thereafter as follows

Above/Below

Market Leases

191

126

5130 206

1191 175
36 410

2539
55745 2601

GOODWILL Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 142

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets SFAS No.142 requires that

goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be

amortized but instead be tested for impairment at least annually The

Company conducts an annual review of its goodwill balances for impair

ment to determine whether an adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill

is required The Company determined the fair value of its properties and

the goodwill that is associated with the properties by applying capital

ization rate to the Companys best estimate of projected income at those

properties The Company also considers factors such as property sales

performance market position and current and future operating results

in thousands of dollars

For the Year Ended December 31

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014 and thereafter

Total

In-Place Lease

Intangibles

27005

22383
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In connection with the Companys 2008 annual goodwill impairment

test the Company determined that the carrying amount of the goodwill

was impaired resulting in $4.6 million impairment loss The

Companys intangible assets on the accompanying consolidated

balance sheets at December 31 2008 and 2007 include $7.2 million

and $11.8 million respectively net of $0.6 million and $1.1 million of

amortization expense recognized prior to January 2002 of goodwill

recognized in connection with the acquisition of The Rubin

Organization in 1997

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the three years ended

December 31 2008 were as follows

in thousands of dollars

Balance January 2006

Goodwill divested

Balance December 31 2006

Goodwill divested

Balance December 31 2007

Impairment

Balance December 31 2008

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS The deter

mination to classify an asset as held for sale requires significant

estimates by the Company about the property and the expected

market for the property which are based on factors including recent

sales of comparable properties recent expressions of interest in the

property financial metrics of the property and the condition of the

property The Company must also determine if it will be possible under

those market conditions to sell the property for an acceptable price

within one year When assets are identified by management as held for

sale the Company discontinues depreciating the assets and estimates

the sales price net of selling costs of such assets The Company gen
erally considers operating properties to be held for sale when they

meet the criteria in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 144 Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-

Lived Assets SFAS No 144 which includes factors such as

whether the sale transaction has been approved by the appropriate

level of management and there are no known material contingencies

relating to the sale such that the sale is probable within one year If in

managements opinion the net sales price of the asset that has been

identified as held for sale is less than the net book value of the asset

the asset is written down to fair value less the cost to sell Assets and

liabilities related to assets classified as held for sale are presented sep
arately in the consolidated balance sheet

Assuming no significant continuing involvement sold operating real

estate property is considered discontinued operation In addition

operating properties classified as held for sale are considered discon

tinued operations Operating properties classified as discontinued

operations were reclassified as such in the accompanying consolidated

statement of income for each period presented Interest expense that

is specifically identifiable to the property is used in the computation of

Interest expense attributable to discontinued operations See note for

description of the properties included in discontinued operations

Land parcels and other portions of operating properties non-operating

real estate and investment in partnerships are excluded from discontin

ued operations treatment

CAPITALIZATION OF COSTS Costs incurred in relation to development

and redevelopment projects for interest property taxes and insurance

are capitalized only during periods in which activities necessary to

prepare the property for its intended use are in progress Costs

incurred for such items after the property is substantially complete and

ready for its intended use are charged to expense as incurred

Capitalized costs as well as tenant inducement amounts and internal

and external commissions are recorded in construction in progress

The Company capitalizes portion of development department

employees compensation and benefits related to time spent involved

in development and redevelopment projects

The Company capitalizes payments made to obtain options to acquire

real property Other related costs that are incurred before acquisition

that are expected to have ongoing value to the project are capitalized

if the acquisition of the property is probable If the property is acquired

such costs are included in the amount recorded as the initial value of

the asset Capitalized pre-acquisition costs are charged to expense

when it is probable that the property will not be acquired The

Company recorded abandoned project costs of $1 .3 million $1 .5

million and $0.3 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively

In addition to the amount noted in the asset impairment discussion in

note the Company capitalizes salaries commissions and benefits

related to time spent by leasing and legal department personnel

involved in originating leases with third-party tenants

The following table summarizes the Companys capitalized salaries and

benefits real estate taxes and interest for the years ended December

31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands sf dollars

Development/Redevelopment

Salaries and benefits

Real estate taxes

Interest

Leasing

Salaries and benefits

TENANT RECEIVABLES The Company makes estimates of the col

lectibility of its tenant receivables related to tenant rent including base

rent straight-line rent expense reimbursements and other revenue or

Income The Company specifically analyzes accounts receivable

including straight-line rent receivable historical bad debts customer

creditworthiness and current economic and industry trends when eval

uating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts The

receivables analysis places particular emphasis on past-due accounts

and considers the nature and age of the receivables the payment

history and financial condition of the payor the basis for any disputes

or negotiations with the payor and other information that could affect

collectibility
In addition with respect to tenants in bankruptcy the

Company makes estimates of the expected recovery of pre-petition

and post-petition claims in assessing the estimated
collectibility

of the

related receivable In some cases the time required to reach an ulti

mate resolution of these claims can exceed one year These estimates

have direct affect on the Companys net income because higher bad

debt expense results in less net income other things being equal For

straight-line rent the
collectibility analysis considers the probability of

collection of the unbilled deferred rent receivable given the Companys

experience regarding such amounts

11829

25
11804

11804

4648

7156

Fsr the Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

3276

2380

15968

2349

2236

16259

2265

1398

9640

5314 4830 4613
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INCOME TAXES The Company has elected to qualify as real estate

investment trust under Sections 856-860 of the Internal Revenue Code

of 1986 as amended and intends to remain so qualified

Earnings and profits which determine the taxability of distributions to

shareholders will differ from net income reported for financial reporting

purposes due to differences in cost basis differences in the estimated

useful lives used to compute depreciation and differences between the

allocation of the Companys net income and loss for financial reporting

purposes and for tax reporting purposes

The Company is subject to federal excise tax computed on calen

dar year basis The excise tax equals 4% of the excess if any of 85%

of the Companys ordinary income plus 95% of the Companys capital

gain net income for the year pIus 100% of any prior year shortfall over

cash distributions during the year as defined by the Internal Revenue

Code The Company has in the past distributed substantial portion

of its taxable income in the subsequent fiscal year and might also follow

this policy in the future

No provision for excise tax was made for the years ended December

31 2008 2007 and 2006 as no excise tax was due in those years

The per share distributions paid to shareholders had the following com

ponents for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Ordinary income

Capital gains

Return of capital

For the Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

2.25 2.11 1.93

0.04

0.03 0.17 0.31

2.28 2.28 2.28

On January 2007 the Company adopted the provisions of FASB

Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

FIN 48 FIN 48 prescribes recognition threshold and measurement

attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of

tax position taken in tax return The Company must determine

whether it is more likely than not that tax position will be sustained

upon examination including resolution of any related appeals or litiga

tion processes based on the technical merits of the position Once it

is determined that position meets the more likely than not recognition

threshold the position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that

is greater than 50%
likely

of being realized upon settlement to deter

mine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements FIN

48 applies to all tax positions related to income taxes subject to

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 109 Accounting for

Income Taxes The adoption of FIN 48 had no material effect on the

Companys financial statements

PRI is subject to federal state and local income taxes The Company

had no provision or benefit for federal or state income taxes in the years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 The Company had net

deferred tax assets of $5.3 million for each of the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 The deferred tax assets are primarily the

result of net operating losses valuation allowance has been estab

lished for the full amount of the deferred tax assets since it is more likely

than not that these will not be realized The Company recorded expense

of $0.2 million related to Philadelphia net profits tax for each of the years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

The aggregate cost basis and depreciated basis for federal income tax

purposes of the Companys investment in real estate was approxi

mately $3864.4 million and $3108.1 million respectively at December

31 2008 and $3526.5 million and $2836.7 million respectively at

December 31 2007

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Carrying amounts reported

on the balance sheet for cash and cash equivalents tenant and other

receivables accrued expenses other liabilities and the Credit Facility

approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these instru

ments The Companys variable-rate debt has an estimated fair value

that is approximately the same as the recorded amounts in the balance

sheets The estimated fair value for fixed-rate debt which is calculated

for disclosure purposes is based on the borrowing rates available to

the Company for fixed-rate mortgages and corporate notes payable

with similar terms and maturities

Debt assumed in connection with property acquisitions is recorded at

fair value at the acquisition date and the resulting premium or discount

is amortized through interest expense over the remaining term of the

debt resulting in non-cash decrease in the case of premium or

increase in the case of discount in interest expense

DERIVATIVES In the normal course of business the Company is

exposed to financial market risks including interest rate risk on its

interest-bearing liabilities The Company endeavors to limit these risks

by following established risk management policies procedures and

strategies including the use of derivative financial instruments The

Company does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or

speculative purposes

Derivative financial instruments are recorded on the balance sheet as

assets or liabilities based on the instruments fair value Changes in the

fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognized currently in

earnings unless the derivative financial instrument meets the criteria for

hedge accounting contained in Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities as amended and interpreted SFAS No 133 If

the derivative financial instruments meet the criteria for cash flow

hedge the gains and losses in the fair value of the instrument are

deferred in other comprehensive income Gains and losses on cash

flow hedge are reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transac

tion affects earnings contract that is designated as hedge of an

anticipated transaction that is no longer likely to occur is immediately

recognized in earnings

The anticipated transaction to be hedged must expose the Company

to interest rate risk and the hedging instrument must reduce the expo

sure and meet the requirements for hedge accounting under SFAS No

133 The Company must formally designate the instrument as hedge

and document and assess the effectiveness of the hedge at inception

and on quarterly basis Interest rate hedges that are designated as

cash flow hedges hedge future cash outflows on debt

To determine the fair values of derivative instruments prior to settle

ment the Company uses variety of methods and assumptions that

are based on market conditions and risks existing at each balance

sheet date For the majority of financial instruments including most

derivatives long-term investments and long-term debt standard

market conventions and techniques such as discounted cash flow

analysis option pricing models replacement cost and termination cost

are used to determine fair value All methods of assessing fair value
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result in general approximation of value and there can be no assur

ance that the value in an actual transaction will be equivalent to the fair

value set forth in the Companys financial statements

OPERATING PARTNERSHIP UNIT REDEMPTIONS Shares issued upon

redemption of OP Units are recorded at the book value of the OP Units

surrendered

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE The Company follows the

expense recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 123R Share-Based Payment SFAS No 123R
which is revision of SFAS No 123 and supersedes APB Opinion No
25 SFAS No 123R requires all share based payments to employees

including grants of employee stock options and restricted shares to be

valued at fair value on the date of grant and to be expensed over the

applicable vesting period

EARNINGS PER SHARE The difference between basic weighted

average shares outstanding and diluted weighted average shares out

standing is the dilutive impact of common stock equivalents Common
stock equivalents consist primarily of shares to be issued under

employee share compensation programs and outstanding share

options whose exercise price was less than the average market price

of the Companys share during these periods

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS APB 14-1 In May 2008

the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued FASB Staff

Position APB 14-1 Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments That

May Be Settled in Cash Upon Conversion Including Partial Cash

Settlement FSP 14-1 FSP 14-1 clarifies that convertible debt instru

ments that may be settled in cash upon either mandatory or optional

conversion including partial cash settlement are not addressed by para

graph 12 of APB Opinion No 14 Accounting for Convertible Debt and

Debt Issued with Stock Purchase Warrants The value assigned to the

debt component is the estimated fair value of similar bond without the

conversion feature which would result in the debt being recorded at

discount The resulting debt discount would be amortized over the

period during which the debt is expected to be outstanding as additional

noncash interest expense The Companys Exchangeable Notes are

within the scope of FSP 14-1 therefore the Company will be required to

record debt components of the notes at fair value as of the date of

issuance and amortize the discount as an increase to interest expense

over the expected life of the debt FSP 14-1 is effective for financial

statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008

and interim periods within those fiscal years and shall be applied retro

spectively to all periods presented The Company adopted FSP 14-1 on

January 2009 The Company anticipates that as result of the appli

cation of this standard it will record additional interest expense for the

years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 of $3.5 million and $2.1

million respectively Also based on the Exchangeable Notes current

outstanding aggregate principal balance the Company anticipates that

it will record additional interest expense of approximately $3.1 million to

$3.5 million in the years ended December 31 2009 2010 and 2011 and

approximately $1.5 million in the year ended December 31 2012 the

year that the Exchangeable Notes mature Additionally the Company

anticipates that the application of this standard will decrease its debt

balance as of December 31 2008 by approximately $1 .4 million with

corresponding increase to shareholders equity

SEAS NO 161 In March 2008 the FASB issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No 161 Disclosures about Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities SEAS No 161 SFAS No 161

requires enhanced disclosures about an entitys derivative and hedging

activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No 161 on January

2009 and will make the required disclosures in accordance with the

pronouncement

SEAS NO 141 In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No 141 rev 2007 Business

Combinations revision of Statement No 141 SFAS No 141

This statement applies to all transactions or other events in which an

entity obtains control of one or more businesses including those com
binations achieved without the transfer of consideration SEAS No 141

retains the fundamental requirement in SFAS No 141 that the acqui

sition method of accounting be used for all business combinations

SFAS No 141 expands the scope to include all business combina

tions and requires an acquirer to recognize the assets acquired the

liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at

their fair values as of the acquisition date Additionally SFAS No 141

changes the way entities account for business combinations

achieved in stages by requiring the identifiable assets and liabilities to

be measured at fair value at the acquisition date SFAS No 141

requires entities to directly expense transaction costs The Company

adopted the provisions of this statement on January 2009 prospec

tively The Company has determined that the adoption of SEAS No 141

will not have material impact on the Companys consolidated finan

cial statements

SFAS NO 160 In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in

Consolidated Financial Statements SFAS No 160 SEAS No 160

establishes accounting and reporting standards for noncontrolling

interest in subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of subsidiary The

Company adopted the provisions of this statement on January 2009

The Company has determined that the adoption of SFAS No 160 will

not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements
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Real Estate Activities

Investments in real estate as of December 31 2008 and 2007 were

comprised of the following

in thousands of dollars

Buildings improvements and

construction in progress

Land including land held for

development

Total investments in real estate

Accumulated depreciation

Net investments in real estate

567677 548084

3708048 3367294

516832 401502
3191216 2965792

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS During the year ended December 31 2008

the Company recorded asset impairment charges totaling $27.6

million which is recorded as separate line item Impairment of

assets in the consolidated statement of income Details about the

assets that were written down are as follows

in thousands of dollars

White Clay Point

Sunrise Plaza

Goodwill

Valley View Downs

Predevelopment costs

Land held for development
__________

Total
___________

White Clay Point is mixed use ground-up development project located

in Landenberg Pennsylvania During the fourth quarter of 2008 in con

nection with the Companys 2009 business planning process which

included strategic review of its future development projects manage

ment determined that the development plans for White Clay Point were

uncertain Consequently the Company recorded an impairment loss of

$1 .8 million which represents the aggregate of the costs excluding the

purchase price of the land that had been capitalized to date for this

development The Company believes that the carrying value of the costs

remaining on its consolidated balance sheet is recoverable as the fair

value of the land exceeds the carrying amount

Sunrise Plaza is an operating power center located in Forked River

New Jersey During the fourth quarter 2008 in connection with the

Companys 2009 business planning process which included strate

gic review of its future development projects management determined

that Sunrise Plazas carrying value exceeded its fair value

Consequently the Company recorded an impairment loss of $7.0

million which represents the excess of the carrying value of the

projects assets over their fair value determined by their future dis

counted cash flows

In September 2008 the Company entered into an Amendment

Agreement with Valley View Downs LP Valley View and Centaur

Pennsylvania LLC Centaur with respect to the development of

proposed harness racetrack and casino in western Pennsylvania the

Project to be owned and operated by Valley View

The Amendment Agreement amends the terms of the Binding

Memorandum of Understanding dated October 2004 as amended

by Amendment No to the Binding Memorandum of Understanding

dated October 2007 among the Company Valley View and Centaur

the MOU

During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company determined that there

was significant uncertainty about the likelihood that it would continue in

its plans to acquire site in West Chester Pennsylvania for future

mixed use project The Company recorded an impairment charge of

$0.9 million related to this project representing the costs incurred

related to this project to date

During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company determined that the

carrying value of an undeveloped land parcel adjacent to its Viewmont

Mall exceeded its fair value based on the Companys estimate of dis

counted cash flows associated with this parcel Consequently the

Company recorded an impairment loss of $0.2 million

2008 ACQUISITIONS In January 2008 the Company entered into an

agreement under which it acquired 0.1% general partnership interest

and 49.8% limited partnership interest in Bala Cynwyd Associates

L.P BCA and an option to purchase the remaining partnership inter

ests in BCA in two closings that are expected to occur in the first

quarter of 2009 and the first or second quarter of 2010 BCA is the

owner of One Cherry Hill Plaza an office building located within the

boundaries of the Companys Cherry Hill Mall in Cherry Hill New Jersey

The Company acquired its interests in BCA for $4.0 million in cash paid

at the first closing in February 2008 See note 11 for further discussion

The Company has consolidated BCA for financial reporting purposes

In July 2008 the Company acquired parcel in Lancaster

Pennsylvania for $8.0 million plus customary closing costs for future

development

As of December31

2008 2007

Pursuant to an amendment agreement the Company will permit

Centaur and Valley View to suspend any payments to the Company

otherwise required by the MOU and the related development agree

ment until September 30 2010 If there is sale or other disposition by

Valley View and Centaur of all or substantially all of their economic

interest in the project on or prior to September 30 2010 the Company

3140371 2819210
and Valley View have agreed that the Company will accept cash

payment of $13.0 million to the Company in satisfaction of the obliga

tions of Valley View to the Company under the MOU and development

agreement and ii upon such payment the MOU and the development

____________________________ agreement will be terminated If disposition and payment do not

__________________________ occur on or prior to September 30 2010 the obligations of Centaur

and Valley View to make the payments to the Company required by the

MOU and development agreement will be reinstated In the fourth

quarter of 2008 the Company recorded $3.0 million impairment

charge against the amounts the Company has spent in connection with

the MOU and the fees the Company has earned under the develop

ment agreement The decision was made following downgrade in

Centaurs credit rating by major rating agencies which caused the

11799
Company to conclude that there is significant uncertainty that it will

7027
recover the carrying amounts of the accounts receivable and the origi

nal investment associated with this project
4648

3032
Valley View has obtained harness racing license for the proposed

936 racetrack and has applied for license to operate casino but has

150
advised the Company of the prospect of the sale or other disposition

27592 of its economic interest in the Project
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2007 ACQUISITIONS In August 2007 the Company purchased land

parcel in Monroe Township Pennsylvania for $5.5 million This prop

erty which the Company named Monroe Marketplace is currently

operating with further development activity

In August 2007 the Company purchased Plymouth Commons an

office building adjacent to Plymouth Meeting Mall for $9.2 million

2006 ACQUISITIONS In February 2006 the Company acquired land

parcels in Gainesville Florida for approximately $21 .5 million including

closing costs The acquired parcels are collectively known as

Springhills See note 12

In separate transactions from June 2006 to October 2006 the

Company acquired the former Strawbridges department store build

ings at Cherry Hill Mall Willow Grove Park and The Gallery at Market

East from Federated Department Stores Inc now named Macys Inc

following its merger with The May Department Stores Company for an

aggregate purchase price of $58.0 million

In connection with the merger the Merger with Crown American

Realty Trust Crown in 2003 Crowns former operating partnership

retained an 11% interest in the capital and 1% interest in the profits of

two partnerships that owned or ground leased 12 shopping malls The

retained interests were subject to put-call arrangement between

Crowns former operating partnership and the Company Pursuant to

this arrangement the Company had the
right to require Crowns former

operating partnership to contribute the retained interest to the Company

following the 36th month after the closing of the Merger i.e after

November 20 2006 in exchange for 341 297 additional OP Units The

Company acquired these interests in December 2006 The value of the

exchanged OP Units at closing was $13.4 million Mark Pasquerilla

who was elected trustee of the Company following the Merger and his

affiliates had an interest in Crowns former operating partnership

2007 DISPOSITIONS In March 2007 the Company sold Schuylkill Mall

in Frackville Pennsylvania for $17.6 million The Company recorded

gain of $6.7 million on the sale In connection with the sale the

Company repaid the mortgage note associated with Schuylkill Mall

with balance of $16.5 million at closing

In May 2007 the Company sold an outparcel and related land improve
ments containing an operating restaurant at New River Valley Mall in

Christiansburg Virginia for $1 .6 million The Company recorded $0.6

million gain on the sale

In May 2007 the Company sold an outparcel and related land improve
ments at Plaza at Magnolia in Florence South Carolina for $1 .3

million The Company recorded $1 .5 million gain on the sale

In August 2007 the Company sold undeveloped land adjacent to

Wiregrass Commons in Dothan Alabama for $2.1 million The

Company recorded $0.3 million gain on this sale

In December 2007 the Company sold undeveloped land in Monroe

Township Pennsylvania for $0.8 million to Target Corporation There

was no gain or loss recorded on the sale

2006 DISPOSITIONS In transactions that closed between June 2006

and December 2006 the Company sold total of four parcels at Plaza

at Magnolia in Florence South Carolina for an aggregate sale price of

$7.9 million and recorded an aggregate gain of $0.5 million

In September 2006 the Company sold South Blanding Village strip

center in Jacksonville Florida for $7.5 million The Company recorded

gain of $1.4 million on the sale

In December 2006 the Company sold parcel at Voorhees Town

Center in Voorhees New Jersey to residential real estate developer

for $5.4 million The parcel was subdivided from the retail property The

Company recorded gain of $4.7 million on the sale of this parcel

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS The Company has presented as discon

tinued operations the operating results of Schuylkill Mall South

Blanding Village and Festival at Exton

The following table summarizes revenue and expense information for

the Companys discontinued operations there were no discontinued

operations in 2008

in thousands of dollars

Real estate revenue

Expenses

Property operating expenses 852
Depreciation and amortization 215
Interest expense 136

Total expenses 203
Operating results from discontinued operations 130
Gains on sales of discontinued operations 6699

Minority interest in discontinued operations
______

691
Income loss from discontinued operations 5878

DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the

Company had capitalized $421 .2 million and $298.7 million respec

tively related to construction and development activities Of the

balance at December 31 2008 $1.6 million is included in deferred

costs and other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets $411.5 million is included in construction in progress $2.6

million is included in investments in partnerships at equity and $5.5

million is included in land held for development The Company had

$800000 of deposits on land purchase contracts at December 31
2008 of which $750000 was refundable

For the Year Ended December 31

2007 2006

1073 6334

3597

3871

1067

8535
2201

1414

79

708
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Investments in Partnerships

The following table presents summarized financial information of the

equity investments in the Companys unconsolidated partnerships as of

December 31 2008 and 2007

in thousands of dollaro

Assets

Investments in real estate at cost

Retail properties

Construction in progress

Total investments in real estate

Accumulated depreciation

Net nvestments in real estate

Cash and cash equivalents

Deferred costs and other assets net

Total assets

Liabilities and partners equity deficit

Mortgage notes payable

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net deficit

Partners share

Companys share

Excess investment1

Advances

Net investments and advances

Investment in partnerships at equity

Distributions in excess of

partnership investments

Net investments and advances

Excess investment represents the unamortized difference between the

Companys investment and the Companys share of the equity in the under

lying net investment in the partnerships The excess investment is amortized

over the life of the properties and the amortization is included in Equity in

income of partnerships

The Company records distributions from its equity investments up to an

amount equal to the equity in income of partnerships as cash from

operating activities Amounts in excess of the Companys share of the

income in the equity investments are treated as return of partnership

capital and recorded as cash from investing activities

Mortgage notes payable which are secured by eight of the partnership

properties including one property in development are due in install

ments over various terms extending to the year 2018 with interest

rates ranging from .76% to 8.02% and weighted-average interest

rate of 4.28% at December 31 2008 The liability under each mortgage

note is limited to the partnership that owns the particular property The

Companys proportionate share based on its respective partnership

interest of principal payments due in the next five years and thereafter

is as follows

The following table summarizes the Companys share of equity in

income of partnerships for the years ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006

in thousands of dnllars

Real estate revenue

Expenses

Property operating expenses

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortization

Total expenses

Net income

Less Partners share

Companys share

Amortization of excess investment

Equity in income of partnerships

Fur the Year Ended December 31

23112 22095 19666

21 226 24472 22427

16458 13763 13537

60796 60330 55630

4372 9786 11726

7154 4893 5863

7218 4893 5863

165 256 268

7053 4637 5595

MORTGAGE ACTIVITY In November 2005 the unconsolidated partner

ship that owns Springfield Mall in Springfield Pennsylvania entered into

$76.5 million mortgage loan that is secured by Springfield Mall The

Company owns an indirect 50% ownership interest in this entity The

mortgage loan had an initial term of two years during which interest

only payments were required The loan bears interest at an annual rate

equal to at the election of the Company LIBOR pIus 1.10% or LIBOR

plus .275% basis points while the former Strawbridges anchor space

is vacant or at base rate equal to the prime rate or if greater the

federal funds rate pIus 0.50% There are three separate one-year

extension options provided that there is no event of default and pro

vided that certain other conditions are met as required under the loan

agreement In November 2007 the partnership that owns the mall

exercised the first extension option and in November 2008 the part

nership exercised the second extension option and made principal

payment of $4.2 million

In October 2008 the unconsolidated partnership that owns Whitehall

Mall in Allentown Pennsylvania entered into new $12.4 million 10

year mortgage with fixed interest rate of 7.0% to replace the prior

mortgage on the property The Companys interest in the unconsoli

dated partnership is 50%

In July 2006 the unconsolidated partnership that owns Lehigh Valley

Mall in Whitehall Pennsylvania entered into $150.0 million mortgage

loan that is secured by Lehigh Valley Mall The Company owns an indi

rect 50% ownership interest in this entity The mortgage loan had an

initial term of 12 months during which monthly payments of interest

only were required The loan bears interest at the one month LIBOR

rate reset monthly plus spread of 0.56% There are three separate

one-year extension options provided that there is no event of default

that the borrower buys an interest rate cap for the term of any applica

ble extension and provided that certain other conditions are met as

required under the loan agreement In August 2007 and June 2008 the

partnership that owns the mall exercised the first and second one-year

extension options respectively

As of December31

2008 2007

2008 2007

75168 70116

2006

67356

$390341 $386050

4402 4632

394743 390682

102804 87961

291939 302721

5887 10604

22848 25608

320674 338933

370206 378317

18308 27668

388514 405985

67840 67052

33659 33025

34181 34027

16143 15151

5414 6134

12624 12742

36164 36424

48788 49166

12624 12742

Companys Proportionate Share

in thnusands of dollars

For the Year Ended

December31

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Princpal Balloon Property

Amortization Payments Total Tstal

1820 $123575 $125395 $250855

1750 1412 3162 6387

1259 44788 46047 92158

246 3708 3954 9795

1358 4148 5506 11011

6433 $177631 $184064 $370206
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Financing Activity

GENERAL In September 2008 the Company entered into senior

unsecured Term Loan Agreement the Term Loan under which it bor

rowed $170.0 million Also in September 2008 the Company closed

agreements for an aggregate of $286.3 million through four separate
loan transactions each of which is secured by mortgage on an oper

ating retail property owned by the Company The Company used the

proceeds of these four mortgage loans the Term Loan borrowing and

borrowing under its Credit
Facility to repay the Companys $400.9

million 15 property real estate mortgage investment conduit the

REMIC in full In connection with this repayment the 15 malls were

released from the liens under the REMIC and as described below four

of these malls were used to secure new mortgage financings The

Company assumed the REMIC in connection with its 2003 merger with

Crown American Realty Trust

EXCHANGEABLE NOTES In May 2007 the Company through its

Operating Partnership completed the sale of $287.5 million aggregate

principal amount of exchangeable notes due 2012 Exchangeable

Notes The net proceeds from the offering of $281 .0 million were used

for the repayment of indebtedness under the Companys Credit Facility

the cost of the capped call transactions related to the issuance of the

Exchangeable Notes and for other general corporate purposes The

Exchangeable Notes are general unsecured senior obligations of the

Operating Partnership and rank equally in right of payment with all

other senior unsecured indebtedness of the Operating Partnership

Interest payments are due on June and December of each year

and began on December 2007 and will continue until the maturity

date of June 2012 The Operating Partnerships obligations under

the Exchangeable Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by

the Company

The Exchangeable Notes bear interest at 4.00% per annum and

contain an exchange settlement feature Pursuant to this feature upon

surrender of the Exchangeable Notes for exchange the Exchangeable

Notes will be exchangeable for cash equal to the principal amount of

the Exchangeable Notes and with respect to any excess exchange

value above the principal amount of the Exchangeable Notes at the

Companys option for cash common shares of the Company or

combination of cash and common shares at an initial exchange rate of

18.303 shares per $1 000 principal amount of Exchangeable Notes or

$54.64 per share The Exchangeable Notes will be exchangeable only

under certain circumstances Prior to maturity the Operating

Partnership may not redeem the Exchangeable Notes except to pre
serve the Companys status as real estate investment trust If the

Company undergoes certain change of control transactions at any time

prior to maturity holders of the Exchangeable Notes may require the

Operating Partnership to repurchase their Exchangeable Notes in

whole or in part for cash equal to 100% of the principal amount of the

Exchangeable Notes to be repurchased plus unpaid interest if any

accrued to the repurchase date and there is mechanism for holders

to receive any excess exchange value The Indenture for the

Exchangeable Notes does not contain any financial covenants

In connection with the offering of the Exchangeable Notes the

Company and the Operating Partnership entered into capped call

transactions with affiliates of the initial purchasers of the Exchangeable
Notes These agreements effectively increase the exchange price of the

Exchangeable Notes to $63.74 per share The cost of these agree
ments of $12.6 million was recorded in the shareholders equity section

of the Companys consolidated balance sheet

In December 2008 the Company repurchased $46.0 million in aggre

gate principal amount of its Exchangeable Notes in privately-negotiated

transactions for an aggregate purchase price of $15.9 million which

resulted in gain on extinguishment of debt of $29.3 million The

Company terminated an equivalent notional amount of the related

capped calls In connection with the repurchases the Company retired

approximately $0.8 million of deferred financing costs As of December

31 2008 $241 .5 million in aggregate principal amount of the

Exchangeable Notes remained outstanding In January 2009 the

Company repurchased an additional $2.1 million in aggregate principal

amount of its Exchangeable Notes for $0.7 million resulting in gain

on extinguishment of debt of $1.4 million

SENIOR UNSECURED TERM LOAN In September 2008 the Company
borrowed an aggregate of $170.0 million under its Term Loan with

stated interest rate of 2.50% above LIBOR Also in September 2008

the Company swapped the floating interest rate on $130.0 million of

the Term Loan balance to fixed rate of 5.33% effective October

2008 In October 2008 the Company swapped the floating interest

rate on the remaining $40.0 million of the Term Loan balance to fixed

rate of 5.15% The Company may increase the outstanding amount of

the Term Loan subject to certain conditions and to the participation of

additional lenders on one additional occasion before the initial maturity

date of March 20 2010 The Company may extend the maturity date

of the Term Loan subject to certain conditions on one occasion for

period of one year If the Company exercises this right it would pay an

extension fee of 0.25% of the then outstanding principal The weighted

average effective interest rate based on amounts borrowed was
5.72% The weighted average interest rate on amounts outstanding at

December 31 2008 was 5.29%

Interest under the Term Loan is payable monthly in arrears and no prin

cipal payment is due until the end of the term The Term Loan contains

lender yield protection provisions The Company may not prepay the

loan during the first twelve months of the term but may prepay all or

portion of the Term Loan beginning in the thirteenth month subject to

prepayment fee The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are

guarantors of the obligations arising under the Terrr Loan

The Term Loan contains customary representations and affirmative and

negative covenants including compliance with certain financial

covenants that are materially the same as those contained in the

Companys Credit Facility As of December 31 2008 the Company
was in compliance with all of these covenants

MORTGAGES Mortgage notes payable which are secured by 24 of the

Companys consolidated properties are due in installments over

various terms extending to the year 2017 with contract interest rates

ranging from 4.95% to 7.61 and weighted average interest rate of

5.78% at December 31 2008 Principal payments are due as follows

in thousands of doflars Principal Balloon

For the Year Ended December 31 Amortization Payments Total

2009 17053 58009 75062
2010 18649 19448 38097

2011 19795 99000 118795
2012 18214 359638 377852

2013 12712 402722 415434
2014 and thereafter 24180 706850 731030

110603 1645667 1756270
Debt Premium 4026

1760296

The Company determined that the fair value of the mortgage notes

payable was approximately $1681.7 million at December 31 2008
based on year-end interest rates and market conditions The mortgage

notes payable contain affirmative and negative covenants customarily

found in notes of this kind As of December 31 2008 the Company

was in compliance with all of these covenants
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MORTGAGE ACTIVITY The following table presents the mortgage loans that the Company entered into during the years ended December 31

2008 2007 and 2006

in millions of dollars Amount Financed Swapped

Financing Date Property or Extended Stated Rate Rate Maturity

2006 Activity

February Valley Mall 90.0 5.49 fixed n/a February 2016

March Woodland Mal 156.5 5.58 fixed n/a April 2016

2007 Activity

May The Mall at Prince Georges2 150.0 5.51% fixed n/a June 2017

2008 Activity

January Cherry Hill Mall34 55.0 5.51% fixed n/a October 2012

February One Cherry Hill Plaza2 8.0 LIBOR plus .30% n/a August 2009

May Creekview Center 20.0 LIBOR plus 2.15% 5.56% June 2010

June Christiana Center2117 45.0 LIBOR plus 1.85% 5.87% June 2011

July Paxton Towne Centrel2hl7l 54.0 LIBOR plus 2.00% 5.84% July 2011

September Patrick Henry Mall1 97.0 6.34% fixed n/a October 2015

September Jacksonville Mall1211911 56.3 LIBOR plus 2.10% 5.83% September 2013

September Logan Valley Mall2XlOShhi 68.0 LIBOR plus 2.10% 5.79% September 2013

September Wyoming Valley Mall12
b0112 65.0 LIBOR plus 2.25% 5.85% September 2013

November Francis Scott Key Mall121 55.0 LIBOR plus 2.35% 5.25% December 2013

November Viewmont Mall 48.0 LIBOR plus 2.35% 5.25% December 2013

December Exton Square Mall113 70.0 7.50% fixed n/a January 2014

Interest only for the first three years then amortization based on 30-year amortization schedule

Interest only

Supplemental financing with maturity date that coincides with the existing first mortgage

First 24 payments are interest only followed by principal and interest payments based on 360-month amortization schedule

Entered into this mortgage as result of the acquisition of Bala Cynwyd Associates L.P BCA Mortgage has two one-year extension options

Mortgage has term of two years and three one-year extension options

Mortgage has term of three years and two one-year extension options

Payments based on 25 year amortization schedule with balloon payment in October 2015

On one occasion prior to March 2010 the Company may request an increase in the principal amount of the loan of up to $3.7 million or total of $60.0

million principal in total subject to satisfaction of financial condition

10 Mortgage has term of five years and two one-year extension options

11 The loan bears interest at an annual rate equal to at the election of the borrower LIBOR plus 2.10% or base rate equal to the prime rate or if greater the

federal funds rate plus 0.50% plus margin of 0.50%

12 The loan bears interest at an annual rate equal to at the election of the borrower LIBOR plus 2.25% or base rate equal to the prime rate or if greater the

federal funds rate plus 0.50% plus margin of 0.50%

13 Payments based on 30 year amortization schedule with balloon payment in January 2014
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In July 2008 the Company repaid $12.7 million mortgage loan on

Crossroads Mall in Beckley West Virginia using funds from its Credit

Facility and available working capital

In December 2008 the Company repaid $93.0 million mortgage loan

on Exton Square Mall in Exton Pennsylvania using $70.0 million from

new mortgage on the property the Companys Credit
Facility and avail

able working capital

In January 2009 the Company repaid $1 5.7 million mortgage loan on

Palmer Park Mall in Easton Pennsylvania using funds from its Credit

Facility

CREDIT FACILITY The amounts borrowed under the Companys
$500.0 million Credit Facility bear interest at rate between 0.95% and

2.00% per annum over LIBOR based on leverage In determining lever

age the capitalization rate used to calculate Gross Asset Value is

7.50% In the determination of the Companys Gross Asset Value

when the Company completes the redevelopment or development of

property and it is Placed in Service the amount of Construction in

Progress of such property included in Gross Asset Value is gradually

reduced over four quarter period The availability of funds under the

Credit Facility is subject to compliance with financial and other

covenants and agreements In October 2008 the Company exercised

an option to extend the term of the Credit Facility to March 2010

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 $400.0 million and $330.0 million

respectively were outstanding under the Credit Facility The Company

pledged $6.4 million under the Credit
Facility as collateral for letters of

credit and the unused portion of the Credit
Facility

that was available to

the Company was $93.6 million at December 31 2008 The weighted

average effective interest rate based on amounts borrowed was 4.63%

6.34% and 6.50% for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006 respectively The weighted average interest rate on outstanding

Credit Facility borrowings at December 31 2008 was 2.87%

As amended the Credit Facility contains affirmative and negative

covenants customarily found in facilities of this type as well as require

ments that the Company maintain on consolidated basis all

capitalized terms used in this paragraph have the meanings ascribed to

such terms in the Credit Agreement minimum Tangible Net Worth

of not less than 75% of the Tangible Net Worth of the Company on

December 31 2007 pIus 75% of the Net Proceeds of all Equity

Issuances effected at any time after December 31 2007
maximum ratio of Total Liabilities to Gross Asset Value of 0.651 pro

vided that such ratio may exceed 0.651 for one period of two

consecutive fiscal quarters but may not exceed 0.701 minimum

ratio of EBITDA to Indebtedness of 0.09751 provided that such ratio

may be less than 0.09751 for one period of two consecutive fiscal

quarters but may not be less than 0.09251 minimum ratio of

Adjusted EBITDA to Fixed Charges of 1.401 for periods ending on or

before December 31 2008 after which time the ratio is 1.501

maximum Investments in unimproved real estate and predevelopment

costs not in excess of 5.0% of Gross Asset Value maximum

Investments in Persons other than Subsidiaries and Unconsolidated

Affiliates not in excess of 5.0% of Gross Asset Value maximum

Investments in Indebtedness secured by Mortgages in favor of the

Company or any other Subsidiary not in excess of 5.0% of Gross Asset

Value maximum Investments in Subsidiaries that are not Wholly-

Owned Subsidiaries and Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates not in

excess of 20.0% of Gross Asset Value maximum Investments

subject to the limitations in the preceding clauses through not in

excess of 10.0% of Gross Asset Value 10 maximum Gross Asset

Value attributable to any one Property not in excess of 15.0% of Gross

Asset Value 11 maximum Total Budgeted Cost Until Stabilization for

all properties under development not in excess of 20.0% of Gross

Asset Value at any time on or before June 30 2009 and 15.0% of

Gross Asset Value at any time after June 30 2009 12 maximum

Floating Rate Indebtedness in an aggregate outstanding principal

amount not in excess of one-third of all Indebtedness of the Company

its Subsidiaries and its Unconsolidated Affiliates 13 maximum ratio

of Secured Indebtedness of the Company its Subsidiaries and its

Unconsolidated Affiliates to Gross Asset Value of 0.601 and 14
maximum ratio of recourse Secured Indebtedness of the Borrower or

Guarantors to Gross Asset Value of 0.251 As of December 31 2008

the Company was in compliance with all of these debt covenants
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Derivatives

Currently the Company uses interest rate swaps to manage its interest

rate risk The valuation of these instruments is determined using widely

accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analy

sis on the expected cash flows of each derivative This analysis reflects

the contractual terms of the derivatives including the period to matu

rity
and uses observable market-based inputs

To comply with the provisions of SFAS No 157 the Company incorpo

rates credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both its own

nonperformance risk and the respective counterpartys nonperfor

mance risk in the fair value measurements In adjusting the fair value of

its derivative contracts for the effect of nonperformance risk the

Company has considered the impact of netting and any applicable

credit enhancements

Although the Company has determined that the majority of the inputs

used to value its derivatives fall within Level of the fair value hierarchy

the credit valuation adjustments associated with its derivatives utilize

Level inputs such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate

the likelihood of default by itself and its counterparties However as of

December 31 2008 the Company has assessed the significance of

the effect of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall valuation of

its derivative positions and has determined that the credit valuation

adjustments are not significant to the overall valuation of its derivatives

As result the Company has determined that its derivative valuations

in their entirety are classified in Level of the fair value hierarchy

FORWARD STARTING INTEREST RATE SWAPS In 2008 the Company

cash settled all of its forward-starting interest rate swaps with an

aggregate notional amount of $400.0 million The Company paid an

aggregate of $16.5 million in cash to settle these swaps The swaps

were settled in anticipation of the Companys issuance of long term

debt Accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31

2008 includes net loss of $14.4 million relating to forward-starting

swaps that the Company has cash settled that are being amortized

over 10 year periods commencing on the closing dates of the debt

instruments that are associated with these settled swaps

During the second quarter of 2008 the Company revised its estimates

regarding the expected terms of its anticipated issuances of long term

debt This change in estimates resulted in hedge ineffectiveness for

portion of the forward starting swaps that were outstanding on the date

that the estimates changed In 2008 the Company recorded gain

due to hedge ineffectiveness of $46000 and net loss of $358000

due to hedge ineffectiveness Also for several of these swaps the

result of this change in estimates was that the swaps were no longer

designated as cash flow hedges since they no longer met the require

ments for hedge accounting The Company recorded net gain of $2.4

million in 2008 in connection with these swaps The net gain represents

the change in the fair market value of the swaps from the date of de

designation to the date when the swaps were either settled or

redesignated The swap net gain and the net hedge ineffectiveness

gain/ loss are recorded in interest expense in the accompanying state

ments of income

INTEREST RATE SWAPS As of December 31 2008 the Company had

entered into 12 interest rate swap agreements that have weighted

average rate of 3.31% on notional amount of $581.3 million maturing

on various dates through November 2013

The Company entered into these interest rate swap agreements in

order to hedge the interest payments associated with the Companys

2008 issuances of floating rate long-term debt The Company

assessed the effectiveness of these swaps as hedges at inception and

on December 31 2008 and considered these swaps to be highly

effective cash flow hedges The Companys interest rate swaps are net

settled monthly

As of December 31 2008 the aggregate estimated unrealized net loss

attributed to these interest rate swaps was $29.2 million The carrying

amount of the derivative assets is reflected in deferred costs and other

assets the associated liabilities are reflected in accrued expenses and

other liabilities and the net unrealized gain is reflected in accumulated

other comprehensive loss in the accompanying balance sheets

The following table summarizes the terms and fair values of the

Companys interest rate swap derivative instruments at December 31

2008 The notional amounts at December 31 2008 provide an indica

tion of the extent of the Companys involvement in these instruments at

that time but do not represent exposure to credit interest rate or

market risks

Fair Value at Interest

Notional value December 31 2008 Rate Maturity Date

20.0 million 0.7 million 3.41% June 2010

45.0 million 2.8 million 4.02% June 19 2011

54.0 million 3.3 million 3.84% July 25 201

25.0 million 0.6 million 2.86% March 20 2010

75.0 million 1.7 million 2.83% March 20 2010

30.0 million 0.7 million 2.79% March 20 2010

65.0 million 4.7 million 3.60% September 2013

68.0 million 5.2 million 3.69% September 2013

56.3 million 4.4 million 3.73% September 2013

40.0 million 0.8 million 2.65% March 22 2010

55.0 million 2.3 million 2.90% November 29 2013

48.0 million 2.0 million 2.90% November 29 2013

581.3 million 29.2 million
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Preferred Share Redemption

On July 31 2007 the Company redeemed all of its 11% non-convert

ible senior preferred shares for $129.9 million or $52.50 per preferred

share plus accrued and unpaid dividends to the redemption date of

$1 .9 million The preferred shares were issued in November 2003 in

connection with the Merger with Crown and were initially recorded at

$57.90 per preferred share the fair value based on the market value of

the corresponding Crown preferred shares as of May 13 2003 the date

on which the financial terms of the Merger were substantially complete

In order to finance the redemption the Company borrowed $131.8

million under its Credit Facility As result of the redemption the $13.3

million excess of the carrying amount of the preferred shares net of

expenses over the redemption price is included in Income Available to

Common Shareholders in the year ended December 31 2007

Benefit Plans

The Company maintains 401k Plan the Plan in which substan

Sally all of its employees are eligible to participate The Plan permits

eligible participants as defined in the Plan agreement to defer up to

15% of their compensation and the Company at its discretion may

match specified percentage of the employees contributions The

Companys and its employees contributions are fully vested as

defined in the Plan agreement The Companys contributions to the

Plan were $1 .0 million for each of the years ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006

The Company also maintains Supplemental Retirement Plans the

Supplemental Plans covering certain senior management employ

ees Expenses recorded by the Company under the provisions of the

Supplemental Plans were $0.6 million $0.6 million and $0.5 million for

the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The Company also maintains share purchase plans through which the

Companys employees may purchase shares of beneficial interest at

15% discount to the fair market value as defined therein In the years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 approximately 45000

20000 and 17000 shares respectively were purchased for total con
sideration of $0.7 million for the year ended December 31 2008 and

$0.6 million for each of the years ended December 31 2007 and

2006 The Company recorded an expense of $0.1 million $0.2 million

and $0.2 million in the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006 respectively related to the share purchase plans

Common Share Repurchase Program

In December 2007 the Companys Board of Trustees authorized

program to repurchase up to $1 00.0 million of the Companys common
shares through solicited or unsolicited transactions in the open market

or in privately negotiated or other transactions from January 2008

until December 31 2009 subject to the Companys authority to termi

nate the program earlier Previously in October 2005 the Companys
Board of Trustees had authorized program to repurchase up to

$100.0 million of the Companys common shares That program

expired by its terms on December 31 2007 The Company may fund

repurchases under the program from any source deemed appropriate

at the time of repurchase The Company is not required to repur

chase any shares under the program The dollar amount of shares that

may be repurchased or the timing of such transactions is dependent

on the prevailing price of the Companys common shares and market

conditions among other factors The program will be in effect until the

end of 2009 subject to the authority of the Companys Board of

Trustees to terminate the program earlier Repurchased shares are

treated as authorized but unissued shares In accordance with

Accounting Principles Board Opinion No Status of Accounting

Research Bulletins the Company accounts for the purchase price of

the shares repurchased as reduction of shareholders equity and allo

cates the purchase price between retained earnings shares of

beneficial interest and capital contributed in excess of par as required

The Company did not repurchase any shares in 2008 or 2006 In 2007

the Company repurchased 152500 shares at an average price of

$35.67 or an aggregate purchase price of $5.4 million
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Share Based Compensation

As of December 31 2008 there were two share based compensation

plans under which the Company continues to make awards its 2003

Equity Incentive Plan and its 2008 Restricted Share Plan for Non-

Employee Trustees which was approved in 2007 Previously the

Company maintained five other plans pursuant to which it granted

awards of restricted shares or options Certain restricted shares and

certain options granted under these previous plans remain subject to

restrictions or outstanding and exercisable respectively In addition

the Company previously maintained plan pursuant to which it granted

options to its non-employee trustees

The Company follows the expense recognition provisions of Statement

of Financial Accounting Standards No 123R Share-Based Payment

SFAS No 123R SFAS No 123R requires all share based pay

ments to employees to be valued at their fair value on the date of grant

and to be expensed over the applicable vesting period

SHARE BASED COMPENSATION PLANS For the years ended December

31 2008 2007 and 2006 the Company recorded aggregate compen
sation expense for share based awards of $9.4 million $8.0 million and

$7.4 million respectively in connection with the equity programs

described below There was no income tax benefit recognized in the

income statement for share based compensation arrangements The

Company capitalized compensation costs related to share based

awards of $0.4 million in both 2008 and 2007

2003 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN Subject to any future adjustments for

share splits and similar events the total remaining number of common

shares that may be issued under the Companys 2003 Equity Incentive

Plan pursuant to options restricted shares or otherwise was

1499880 as of December 31 2008 The share based awards

described below in this section were all made under the 2003 Equity

Incentive Plan

RESTRICTED SHARES In 2008 2007 and 2006 the Company made

grants of restricted shares subject to time based vesting In addition in

2005 the Company made grants of restricted shares that were subject

to market based vesting The aggregate fair value of the restricted

shares that the Company granted to its employees in 2008 2007 and

2006 was $5.0 million $6.0 million and $4.9 million respectively As of

December 31 2008 there was $9.9 million of total unrecognized com

pensation cost related to unvested share based compensation

arrangements granted under the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan The cost

is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of .1

years The total fair value of shares vested during the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $4.4 million $4.0 million

and $4.8 million respectively

The Company will record future compensation expense in connection

with the vesting of existing time based and market based restricted

share awards as follows

in thousands of doliarsl

Year ended December31
________________

2009

2010

2011

2012
__________

Total

summary of the status of the Companys unvested restricted shares

as of December 31 2008 and changes during the year ended

December 31 2008 is presented below

Unvested at January 2008

Shares granted

Shares vested

Shares forfeited

Unvested at December 31 2008

RESTRICTED SHARES SUBJECT TO MARKET BASED VESTING In 2003

2004 and 2005 the Company granted restricted shares that were

subject to market based vesting The restricted shares subject to

market based vesting vest in equal installments over five-year period

if specified total return to shareholders as defined in the grant goals

established at the time of the grant are met in each year If the goal is

not met in any year the awards provide for excess amounts of total

return to shareholders in prior or subsequent year to be carried

forward or carried back to the year in which the goals were not met

Unvested market based restricted shares remain outstanding and vest

in accordance with the applicable award agreement upon the death or

disability of the executive or are forfeited if an executives employment

is terminated for any reason other than by death disability by PREIT

without cause or by the officer for good reason Vesting is accelerated

upon change in control of the Company The annual total return to

shareholders goal for the market based restricted shares awarded in

2005 was set at the greater of 110% of the total return to sharehold

ers of specified index of real estate investment trusts for each of the

five years or ii the dividends paid by the Company during the year

expressed as percentage of the market value of share as of the

beginning of the year plus 1% No market based restricted shares

vested in 2006 2007 or 2008 since the Companys total return to

shareholders was less than the annual total return to shareholders goal

for the awards Because the vesting of the market based restricted

shares granted in 2004 depended upon the achievement of certain total

return to shareholders goals by December 31 2008 and because the

Company did not meet this objective by that date 53969 of the shares

granted in 2004 have been forfeited However as of December 31

2008 these shares had not yet been characterized in shares forfeited

in the table above pending formal determination by the compensation

committee of the Board of Trustees of the Company in accordance with

the terms of the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan which typically occurs early

in the following year As such the 53969 shares that will be forfeited as

of December 31 2008 following the formal action of the compensation

committee of the Board of Trustees are not categorized in shares for

feited in the table above Because the vesting of the market based

restricted shares granted in 2003 depended upon the achievement of

certain total return to shareholders goals by December 31 2007 and

Future because the Company did not meet this objective by that date 16831
Compensation

Expense
of the shares granted in 2003 have been forfeited The Company

granted total of 67147 restricted shares subject to market based

3002 vesting in 2005 However as described above recipients of shares

2158 subject to market based vesting only earn these common shares if

288 specified total return to shareholders goals are met and to date none

of the shares granted have been earned Recipients are entitled to

receive an amount equal to the dividends on the shares prior to vesting

The grant date fair value of these awards was determined using Monte

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Fair Value

37.18

25.75

39.87

31.99

35.62

Shares

477413

204285

119448

29320

532930
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Carlo simulation probabilistic valuation model and was $29.00 for

2005 For purposes of the simulation the Company assumed an

expected quarterly total return to shareholders of specified index of

real estate investment trusts of 2.2% standard deviation of 6.4%

and 0.92 correlation of the Companys total return to shareholders

to that of the specified index of real estate investment trusts for the

2005 awards Compensation cost relating to these market based

vesting awards is recorded ratably over the five-year period The

Company recorded $0.6 million $1.1 million and $0.5 million of com
pensation expense related to market based restricted shares for the

years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

RESTRICTED SHARES SUBJECT TO TIME BASED VESTING The

Company makes grants of restricted shares subject to time based

vesting The awarded shares generally vest over periods of up to five

years four years for grants made in 2008 typically in equal annual

installments as long as the recipient is an employee of the Company

on the vesting date For senior executive officers with employment

agreements the shares generally vest immediately upon death or

disability Recipients are entitled to receive an amount equal to the

dividends on the shares prior to vesting The Company granted

total of 195285 132430 and 117025 restricted shares subject to

time based vesting to its employees in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively The weighted average grant date fair value of time

based restricted shares which were determined based on the

average of the high and low sales price of common share on the

date of grant was $25.74 per share in 2008 $45.11 per share in

2007 and $41 .79 per share in 2006 Compensation cost relating to

time based restricted shares awards is recorded ratably over the

respective vesting periods The Company recorded $5.1 million

$4.3 million and $3.9 million of compensation expense related to

time based restricted shares for the years ended December 31
2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT PROGRAM In February 2008 February

2007 and May 2006 the Companys Board of Trustees established

the 2008-2010 RSU Program the 2007-2009 RSU Program and the

2006-2008 RSU Program respectively the RSU Programs Under

the RSU Programs the Company may make awards in the form of

market based performance-contingent restricted share units or

RSUs The RSUs represent the
right to earn common shares in the

future depending on the Companys performance in terms of total

return to shareholders as defined in the RSU Programs for the three

year periods ending December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 each
Measurement Period relative to the total return to shareholders for

the applicable Measurement Period of companies comprising an

index of real estate investment trusts the Index REIT5 If the

Companys total return to shareholders performance is below the

25th percentile of the Index REITs then no shares will be earned If

the Companys total return to shareholders over the applicable

Measurement Period is above the 25th 50th or 75th percentiles of

the Index REITs then percentage of the awards ranging from 50%

to 150% will be earned Dividends are deemed credited to the RSU

accounts and are applied to acquire more RSUs for the account of

the participants at the 20-day average price per common share

ending on the dividend payment date If earned awards will be paid

in common shares in an amount equal to the applicable percentage

of the number of RSUs in the participants account at the end of the

applicable Measurement Period The aggregate fair value of the RSU

awards in 2008 2007 and 2006 was determined using Monte

Carlo simulation probabilistic valuation model and was $2.6 million

$21 .68 per share $3.4 million $50.58 per share and $1.9 million

$44.30 per share respectively For purposes of the 2008 simulation

the Company assumed
volatility

of 26.3% which is calculated based

on the volatility of the Companys share price over the last three

years risk-free interest rate of 2.43% which reflects the yield on

three-year Treasury bond and stock beta of 0.973 compared to the

Dow Jones US Real Estate Index based on three years of historical

price data For the purpose of the 2007 simulation the Company

assumed
volatility

of 22.0% which is calculated based on the volatil

ity of the Companys share price over three prior years risk-free

interest rate of 4.74% which reflects the yield on three-year

Treasury bond and stock beta of 1.029 compared to the Dow

Jones US Real Estate Index based on three years of historical price

data For the purpose of the 2006 simulation the Company assumed

volatility of 21 .6% which is calculated based on the volatility of the

Companys share price over the three prior years risk-free interest

rate of 4.80% which reflects the yield on three-year Treasury bond

and stock beta of 0.955 compared to the Dow Jones US Real

Estate Index based on three years of historical price data
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Compensation cost relating to these RSU awards is being expensed

over the applicable three year vesting period The Company granted

total of 122113 RSUs in 2008 67430 RSUs in 2007 and 43870

RSUs in 2006 However as described above recipients of RSUs only

earn common shares if the Companys total return to shareholders for

the applicable Measurement Period exceeds certain percentiles of the

Index REITs and as such none of the RSUs were earned as of

December 31 2008 The Company recorded $2.6 million $1 .6 million

and $0.5 million of compensation expense related to the RSU

Programs for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively The Company will record future compensation expense

related to the existing awards under the RSU Programs as follows

lin thousands of dollars

Year ended December31

2009

2010

2011

Total

OUTPERFORMANCE PROGRAM In January 2005 the Companys Board

of Trustees approved the 2005-2008 Outperformance Program

OPP performance-based incentive compensation program that

was designed to pay bonus in the form of common shares if the

Companys total return to shareholders as defined in the OPP
exceeded certain thresholds over four year measurement period

beginning on January 2005 The grant date fair value of the OPP

awards in 2005 was determined using Monte Carlo simulation prob

abilistic valuation model and the aggregate value of $3.7 million was

expensed over the four year vesting period For purposes of the simu

lation the Company assumed an expected quarterly total return to

shareholders of specified index of real estate investment trusts of

2.2% standard deviation of 6.2% and 0.92 correlation of the

Companys total return to shareholders to that of the specified index of

real estate investment trusts The Compensation Committee of the

Companys Board of Trustees has determined that the Companys total

return to shareholders for the measurement period of January 2005

through December 31 2008 did not exceed the thresholds set forth in

the aPP and thus no shares were awarded under the aPP

The Company recorded $0.8 million $0.8 million and $1 .2 million of

compensation expense related to the OPP for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively During the year

ended December 31 2008 the Company determined that the fair

value of the OPP was incorrectly recorded as accrued expenses and

other liabilities instead of as capital contributed in excess of par Had

the OPP activity been recorded correctly it would have increased

shareholders equity and decreased total liabilities by $2.9 million or

0.4% of total shareholders equity as of December 31 2007 The

Company discovered and corrected this error in the current year The

Company correctly recorded compensation expense related to the

aPP Management has evaluated the impact of this item and con

cluded that it is not material to the financial position of the Company as

of December 31 2007 or any prior period

SERVICE AWARDS In 2008 2007 and 2006 the Company issued

1275 1475 and 1750 shares respectively without restrictions to

non-officer employees as service awards The aggregate fair value of

the awards of $25000 $60000 and $70000 in each of the years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively was

recorded as compensation expense

EXECUTIVE SEPARATION In 2006 the Company issued 6736 shares

in connection with an executive separation at fair value of $41 .67 per

share See note 11 In connection with this issuance the Company

recorded $0.3 million of compensation expense in the year ended

December 31 2006

RESTRICTED SHARE PLAN FOR NON-EMPLOYEE TRUSTEES The 2008

Compenin Restricted Share Plan for Non-Employee Trustees approved in 2007

Expense provides for the granting of restricted share awards to non-employee

2156 trustees of the Company In 2008 the Company made grants of

1070 restricted shares to non-employee trustees under the 2008 Restricted

125 Share Plan In 2007 and 2006 the Company made grants of restricted

3351 shares to non-employee trustees subject to time based vesting under

predecessor plan The aggregate fair value of the restricted shares

that the Company granted to its non-employee trustees in 2008 2007

and 2006 was $0.2 million $0.4 million and $0.3 million respectively

The Company recorded $0.3 million $0.4 million and $0.3 million of

compensation expense related to time based vesting of non-employee

trustee restricted share awards in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

As of December 31 2008 there was $0.3 million of total unrecognized

compensation cost related to unvested restricted share grants to non-

employee trustees The cost is expected to be recognized over

weighted average period of 0.7 years The total fair value of shares

granted to non-employee trustees that vested was $0.4 million during

each of the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 There

were 51000 shares available for grant to non-employee trustees at

December 31 2008 The Company will record future compensation

expense in connection with the vesting of existing non-employee

trustee restricted share awards as follows

Future

Compensation

Expense

216

88

Total 310

in thousands of dollars

Year ended December 31

2009

2010

2011
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OPTIONS OUTSTANDING Options are typically granted with an exercise

price equal to the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date

of the grant The options vest and are exercisable over periods deter

mined by the Company but in no event later than ten years from the

grant date The Company has six plans under which it has historically

granted options The Company has not granted any options to its

employees since 2003 and since that date has only made option

grants to non-employee trustees on the date they became trustees in

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price/Total

Options outstanding at January 2006 23.70

Options exercised 22.77

Options forfeited

Options outstanding at December 31 2006 23.46

Options exercised

Options forfeited

Options outstanding at December 31 2007

Options exercised

Options forfeited

Options outstanding at December 31 20081
__________________________

Average exercise price per share

Aggregate exercise price
____________________________

Intrinsic value of options outstanding
_____________________________

Exercisable options outstanding at

December 31 2008

Average exercise price per share

Aggregate exercise price

Intrinsic value of options outstanding

accordance with an existing policy Cash received from options exer

cised in 2008 2007 and 2006 was $0.6 million $5.0 million and $1.3

million respectively The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised

for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was

$46000 $1.9 million and $1.1 million respectively The following table

presents the changes in the number of options outstanding from

January 2006 through December 31 2008

The following table summarizes information relating to all options outstanding as of December 31 2008

2003 1999 1998 1997 1990 1990

Eqaity Equity Stock Stock Employees Nnn-Employee

Incentive Plan Incentive Plan Option Plan Option Plan Plan Trustee Plan

18974 100000 35300 201000 26105 49875

4889 7250 11000 25605 8875

14085 100000 28050 190000 500 41000

25.33 1792 2500 190000 500 3000

21.36 12293 100000 25550 38000

23.85 25550
24.50 1000

149293 12293 100000 37000

20.91 33.05 17.84 25.19

3122 406 1784 932

148043 11043 100000 37000

20.77 32.50 17.84 25.19

3075 359 1784 932

As of December 31 2008 an aggregate of exercisable and unexercisable options to purchase 149293 shares of beneficial interest with weighted average

remaining contractual life of 2.5 years weighted average exercise price of $20.91 per share and an aggregate price of $3 million were outstanding

Amounts in thousands of dollars

As of December 31 2008 an aggregate of exercisable options to purchase 148043 shares of beneficial interest with weighted average exercise price of $20 77

per share and an aggregate exercise price of $3 million were outstanding

Range of Exercise

Prices Per Share

Options Outstanding as of

December 31 2008

Number of

Shares

Options Exercisable as of

December 31 2008

$13.00-$18.99 108503 17.75 108503 17.75 1.8

$19.00-$28.99 20790 23.28 20790 23.28 2.7

$29.00-$38.99 20000 35.62 18750 35.46 5.5

Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average

Exercise Price Number of Exercise Price Remaining

Per Share Shares Per Share Life yeurs

No options were granted in 2008 2007 or 2006
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10 Leases

AS LESSOR The Companys retail properties are leased to tenants

under operating leases with various expiration dates ranging through

2095 Future minimum rent under noncancelable operating leases with

terms greater than one year are as follows

279200

252035

216726

180260

159787

643130

1731138

The total future minimum rent as presented does not include amounts

that may be received as tenant reimbursements for certain operating

costs or contingent amounts that may be received as percentage rent

AS LESSEE Assets recorded under capital leases primarily office and

mall equipment are capitalized using interest rates appropriate at the

inception of each lease The Company also has operating leases for its

corporate office space see note 11 and for various computer office

and mall equipment Furthermore the Company is the lessee under

third-party ground leases for portions of the land at seven of its prop

erties Crossroads Mall Voorhees Town Center Exton Square Mall The

Gallery at Market East Orlando Fashion Square Plymouth Meeting

Mall and Uniontown Mall Total amounts expensed relating to leases

were $4.8 million $4.8 million and $4.8 million for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Minimum future

lease payments due in each of the next five years and thereafter are as

follows

in thousands of dollars Capital Operating Ground

For the Year Ended December 31 Leases Leases Leases

2009 174 2838 987

2010 2401 987

2011 2027 987

2012 1787 847

2013 and thereafter 2796 48689

Less amount representing interest

167 11849 52497

The Company had assets of $0.4 million and $0.6 million net of accu

mulated depreciation of $3.3 million and $3.1 million respectively

recorded under capital leases as of December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

11 Related Party Transactions

GENERAL PR provides management leasing and development serv

ices for ten properties owned by partnerships and other entities in

which certain officers or trustees of the Company and of PAl or

members of their immediate families and affiliated entities have indirect

ownership interests Total revenue earned by PRI for such services was

$1 .0 million $0.9 million and $0.9 million for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively As of December 31

2008 $0.3 million was due from the property-owning partnerships to

PRI Of this amount approximately $0.2 million was collected subse

quent to December 31 2008

The Company leases its principal executive offices from Bellevue

Associates the Landlord an entity in which certain officers/trustees

of the Company have an interest Total rent expense under this lease

was $1 .6 million $1.6 million and $1.5 million for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Ronald Rubin and

George Rubin collectively with members of their immediate families

and affiliated entities own approximately 50% interest in the

Landlord The office lease has 10 year term that commenced on

November 2004 The Company has the option to renew the lease for

up to two additional five-year periods at the then-current fair market

rate calculated in accordance with the terms of the office lease In addi

tion the Company has the right on one occasion at any time during the

seventh lease year to terminate the office lease upon the satisfaction of

certain conditions Effective June 2004 the Companys base rent is

$1 .4 million per year during the first five years of the office lease and

$1 .5 million per year during the second five years

The Company uses an airplane in which Ronald Rubin owns fractional

interest The Company paid $174000 $35000 and $38000 in the

years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively for
flight

time used by employees exclusively for Company-related business

As of December 31 2008 nine officers of the Company had employ

ment agreements with terms of one year that renew automatically for

additional one-year terms Their previous employment agreements pro

vided for aggregate base compensation for the year ended December

31 2008 of $3.4 million subject to increases as approved by the

Companys compensation committee in future years as well as addi

tional incentive compensation

See Tax Protection Agreements in note 12

BALA CYNWYD ASSOCIATES L.P In January 2008 the Company

entered into Contribution Agreement with Bala Cynwyd Associates

L.P BCA City Line Associates Ronald Rubin George Rubin

Joseph Coradino and two other individuals to acquire all of the part

nership interests in BCA The Company agreed to pay approximately

$1 5.3 million for the BCA partnership interests over three years

BCA entered into tax deferred exchange agreement with the current

owner of One Cherry Hill Plaza an office building located within the

boundaries of the Companys Cherry Hill Mall the Office Building to

acquire title to the Office Building in exchange for an office building

located in Bala Cynwyd Pennsylvania owned by BCA

in thousands of dollars

For the Year Ended December 31

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014 and thereafter
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Ronald Rubin George Rubin Joseph Coradino and two other individ

uals collectively the Individuals owned 100% of limited partnership

that owned 50% of the partnership interests in BOA immediately prior

to closing Immediately prior to closing BOA redeemed the other 50%

of the partnership interest which was held by third party At the initial

closing in February 2008 under the Oontribution Agreement and in

exchange for 0.1% general partner interest and 49.8% limited partner

interest in BOA the Oompany made $3.9 million capital contribution

to BOA second closing is expected to take place in March 2009 pur

suant to put/call arrangement at which time the Oompany will

acquire an additional 49.9% of the limited partner interest in BOA for

$0.2 million in cash and OP Units valued in the first quarter of 2008 at

approximately $3.6 million third closing is expected to occur pur

suant to put/call arrangement approximately one year after the

second closing at which time the Oompany will acquire the remaining

interest in BOA for nominal amount

In accordance with the Oompanys Related Party Transactions Policy

Special Oommittee consisting exclusively of independent members of

the Oompanys Board of Trustees considered and approved the terms

of the BOA transaction subject to final approval by the Board ot

Trustees The disinterested members of the Board of Trustees

approved the transaction

Subsequent to the first closing PHI entered into management agree

ment with BOA for the management of the Office Building

EXECUTIVE SEPARATION In 2006 the Oompany announced the retire

ment of Jonathan Weller Vice Ohairman of the Oompany In

connection with Mr Wellers retirement the Oompany entered into

Separation of Employment Agreement and General Release the

Separation Agreement with Mr Weller Pursuant to the Separation

Agreement Mr Weller also retired from the Oompanys Board of

Trustees and the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by

and between the Oompany and Mr Weller dated as of January 2004

was terminated The Oompany recorded an expense of $4.0 million in

connection with Mr Wellers separation from the Oompany The

expense included executive separation cash payments made to Mr

Weller along with the acceleration of the deferred compensation

expense associated with the unvested restricted shares and the esti

mated fair value of Mr Wellers share of the 2005 2008

Outperformance Program see note Mr Weller exercised his out

standing options in August 2006

Commitments And Contingencies

DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES In connection with

its current ground-up development and its redevelopment projects the

Oompany has made contractual commitments on some of these proj

ects in the form of tenant allowances lease termination fees and

contracts with general contractors and other professional service

providers As of December 31 2008 the remainder to be paid exclud

ing amounts already accrued against such contractual and other

commitments was $86.7 million which is expected to be financed

through the Oredit
Facility or through various other capital sources

LEGAL ACTIONS In the normal course of business the Oompany has

and may become involved in legal actions relating to the ownership and

operation of its properties and the properties it manages for third

parties In managements opinion the resolutions of any such pending

legal actions are not expected to have material adverse effect on the

Oompanys consolidated financial position or results of operations

ENVIRONMENTAL The Oompany is aware of certain environmental

matters at some of their properties including ground water contamina

tion and the presence of asbestos containing materials The Oompany

has in the past performed remediation of such environmental matters

and is not aware of any significant remaining potential liability relating

to these environmental matters The Oompany may be required in the

future to perform testing relating to these matters The Oompany does

not expect these matters to have any significant impact on its liquidity

or results of operations However the Oompany can make no assur

ances that the amounts reserved will be adequate to cover further

environmental costs The Oompany has insurance coverage for certain

environmental claims up to $10.0 million per occurrence and up to

$10.0 million in the aggregate

TAX PROTECTION AGREEMENTS As part of the BOA transaction the

Oompany and PREIT Associates have agreed to indemnify the

Individuals from and against certain tax liabilities resulting from sale

of the office building that was involved in the BOA transaction during

the eight years following the initial closing

In connection with the Merger the Oompany entered into tax protec

tion agreement with Mark Pasquerilla and entities affiliated with Mr

Pasquerilla the Pasquerilla Group Under this tax protection agree

ment the Oompany agreed not to dispose of certain protected

properties acquired in the Merger in taxable transaction until

November 20 2011 or if earlier until the Pasquerilla Group collectively

owns less than 25% of the aggregate of the shares and OP Units that

they acquired in the Merger If the Oompany were to sell any of the pro

tected properties during the first five years of the protection period it

would owe the Pasquerilla Group an amount equal to the sum of the

hypothetical tax owed by the Pasquerilla Group plus an amount

intended to make the Pasquerilla Group whole for taxes that may be

due upon receipt of such payments From the end of the first five years

through the end of the tax protection period the payments are

intended to compensate the affected parties for interest expense

incurred on amounts borrowed to pay the taxes incurred on the sale

The Oompany paid $2000 and $8000 to the Pasquerilla Group in

2008 and 2007 pursuant to these agreements respectively

The Oompany has agreed to provide tax protection related to its acqui

sition of Oumberland Mall Associates and New Oastle Associates to

the prior owners of Oumberland Mall Associates and New Oastle

Associates respectively for period of eight years following the

respective closings Ronald Rubin and George Rubin are beneficiar

ies of these tax protection agreements

The Oompany did not enter into any other guarantees or tax protection

agreements in connection with its merger acquisition or disposition

activities in 2008 2007 and 2006
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13 Summary Of Quarterly Results Unaudited

in
thousands of doflars except per

share amounts

Revenue from continuing operations

Revenue from discontinued operations

Income from discontinued operations

Net loss income12

Net loss allocable income available to common sharehoider17

Income from discontinued operations per share basic

Income from discontinued operations per share diluted

Net loss income per share basic

Net loss income per share diluted

inthousands of dullars except per
share amounts

Revenue from continuing operations

Revenue from discontinued operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net income

Net income available to common shareholders

Income from discontinued operations per share basic

Income from discontinued operations per share diluted

Net income per share basic

Net income per share diluted

lstQaarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter4 Tstal

$115350 $113621 $115155 $129954 $474080

2128 2898 7631 2277 10380

2128 2898 7631 2277 10380

0.06 0.08 0.20 0.05 0.30

0.06 0.08 0.20 0.05 0.30

Fur the Year Ended December 31 2007

1039 15 19 1073

5886 14 18 12 5878

9084 3875 1499 8703 23161

5681 471 13712 8703 28567

0.16
0.16

0.16
0.16

0.15 0.01 0.35 0.22 0.73

0.15 0.01 0.35 0.22 0.73

Includes gain on extinguishment of debt of approximately $29.3 million before minority interest 4th Quarter 2008

Includes impairment of assets of approximately $27.6 million before minority interest 4th Quarter 2008

Includes gains on sales of interests in real estate of approximately $2.1 million before minority interest 2nd Quarter 2007 and $0.2 million before minority inter

est 3rd Quarter 2007

Fourth Quarter revenue includes significant portion of annual percentage rent as most percentage rent minimum sales levels are met in the fourth quarter

The following presents summary of the unaudited quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

For the Year Ended December 31 2008

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter

113640 $110537 $112269 $130126 $466572

4th Quarter4 Tutal
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Managements Report on Internal Control

Over Financial Reporting

Management of Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust us or the

Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate

internal control over financial reporting As defined in the rules of the

Securities and Exchange Commission internal control over financial

reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of our

principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by our

Board of Trustees management and other personnel to provide rea

sonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes

in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and

procedures that

Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and
fairly

reflect the Companys transactions and the dis

positions of assets of the Company

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial state

ments in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of the Companys manage
ment and trustees and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detec

tion of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the Companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations system of internal control over

financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect

to financial statement preparation and presentation and may not

prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of

effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may

become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In connection with the preparation of the Companys annual consoli

dated financial statements management has conducted an

assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial

reporting based on the framework set forth in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Managements

assessment included an evaluation of the design of the Companys

internal control over financial reporting and testing of the operational

effectiveness of those controls Based on this evaluation we have con

cluded that as of December 31 2008 our internal control over

financial reporting was effective to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S

generally accepted accounting principles

Our independent registered public accounting firm KPMG LLP inde

pendently assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control

over financial reporting KPMG has issued report concurring with

managements assessment which is included on page 35 in this report

Report of Independent Registered Public

Accountinq Firm

The Board of Trustees and Shareholders

Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of

Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust Pennsylvania business

trust and subsidiaries as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the

related consolidated statements of income shareholders equity and

comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the years in the

three-year period ended December 31 2008 These consolidated

financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys manage
ment Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reason

able assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial state

ments An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above

present fairly in all material respects the financial position of

Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust and subsidiaries as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of their operations and

their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended

December 31 2008 in conformity with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Pennsylvania

Real Estate Investment Trusts internal control over financial reporting as

of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal

ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and our report

dated February 27 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effec

tiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

KPMG LLP

Philadelphia Pennsylvania

February 27 2009
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The Board of Trustees and Shareholders

Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust

We have audited Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trusts internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on cri

teria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission COSO Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trusts

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control

over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those stan

dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether effective internal control over financial report

ing was maintained in all material respects Our audit included

obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting

assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control

based on the assessed risk Our audit also included performing such

other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances

We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for exter

nal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the mainte

nance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as neces

sary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and trustees of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of

the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial

statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial report

ing may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

In our opinion Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust maintained

in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting

as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal

ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the consoli

dated balance sheets of Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust and

subsidiaries as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related con

solidated statements of income shareholders equity and

comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the years in the

three-year period ended December 31 2008 and our report dated

February 27 200 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consoli

dated financial statements

KPMG LLP

Philadelphia Pennsylvania

February 27 2009

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The follow/hg analysis of our consolidated financ/al condition and results of oper

ations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements

and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this report

Overview

Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust Pennsylvania business

trust founded in 1960 and one of the first equity REITs in the United

States has primary investment focus on retail shopping malls and

strip and power centers located in the eastern half of the United States

primarily in the Mid-Atlantic region Our portfolio currently consists of

total of 56 properties in 13 states including 38 shopping malls 14 strip

and power centers and four properties under development The operat

ing retail properties have total of approximately 34.6 million square

feet The operating retail properties that we consolidate for financial

reporting purposes have total of approximately 30.1 million square

feet of which we own approximately 23.6 million square feet The oper

ating retail properties that are owned by unconsolidated partnerships

with third parties have total of approximately 4.5 million square feet of

which 2.9 million square feet are owned by such partnerships The

ground-up development portion of our portfolio contains four properties

in two states with two classified as mixed use combination of retail

and other uses one classified as retail and one classified as other

Our primary business is owning and operating shopping malls and strip

and power centers We evaluate operating results and allocate

resources on property-by-property basis and do not distinguish or

evaluate our consolidated operations on geographic basis No indi

vidual property constitutes more than 10% of our consolidated revenue

or assets and thus the individual properties have been aggregated into

one reportable segment based upon their similarities with regard to the

nature of our properties and the nature of our tenants and operational

processes as well as long-term financial performance In addition no

single tenant accounts for 10% or more of our consolidated revenue

and none of our properties are located outside the United States

We hold our interests in our portfolio of properties through our operat

ing partnership PREIT Associates L.R PREIT Associates We are

the sole general partner of PREIT Associates and as of December 31

2008 held 94.7% controlling interest in PREIT Associates We con

solidate PREIT Associates for financial reporting purposes We hold our

investments in seven of the 52 retail properties and one of the four

ground-up development properties in our portfolio through unconsoli

dated partnerships with third parties in which we own 40% to 50%

interest We hold non-controlling interest in each unconsolidated

partnership and account for such partnerships using the equity

method of accounting We do not control any of these equity method

investees for the following reasons

Except for two properties that we co-manage with our partner all of

the other entities are managed on day-to-day basis by one of our

other partners as the managing general partner in each of the

respective partnerships In the case of the co-managed properties

all decisions in the ordinary course of business are made jointly

The managing general partner is responsible for establishing the

operating and capital decisions of the partnership including

budgets in the ordinary course of business

All major decisions of each partnership such as the sale refinanc

ing expansion or rehabilitation of the property require the approval

of all partners

Voting rights and the sharing of profits and losses are generally in

proportion to the ownership percentages of each partner

We record the earnings from the unconsolidated partnerships using the

equity method of accounting under the income statement caption enti

tled Equity in income of partnerships rather than consolidating the

results of the unconsolidated partnerships with our results Changes in

our investments in these entities are recorded in the balance sheet

caption entitled Investment in partnerships at equity In the case of

deficit investment balances such amounts are recorded in

Investments in partnerships deficit balances

For further information regarding our unconsolidated partnerships see

note to our consolidated financial statements

We provide our management leasing and real estate development

services through PREIT Services LLC PREIT Services which gen

erally develops and manages properties that we consolidate for

financial reporting purposes and PREIT-RUBIN Inc PRI which

generally develops and manages properties that we do not consolidate

for financial reporting purposes including properties we own interests

in through partnerships with third parties and properties that are owned

by third parties in which we do not have an interest FRI is taxable

REIT subsidiary as defined by federal tax laws which means that it is

able to offer an expanded menu of services to tenants without jeopard

izing our continuing qualification as REIT under federal tax law One

of our long-term objectives is to obtain managerial control of as many

of our assets as possible Due to the nature of our existing partnership

arrangements we cannot anticipate when this objective will be

achieved if at all

Our revenue consists primarily of fixed rental income additional rent in

the form of expense reimbursements and percentage rent rent that is

based on percentage of our tenants sales or percentage of sales

in excess of thresholds that are specified in the leases derived from

our income producing retail properties We also receive income from

our real estate partnership investments and from the management and

leasing services PHI provides

Our net income available to common shareholders decreased by $38.9

million to net loss allocable to common shareholders of $10.4 million

for the year ended December 31 2008 from net income available to

common shareholders of $28.6 million for the year ended December

31 2007 The decrease was affected by challenging conditions in the

economy the impairment of assets the impact of the preferred share

redemption in 2007 noted below the effects of ongoing redevelopment

initiatives increased depreciation and amortization as result of devel

opment and redevelopment assets having been placed in service

increased interest expense as result of higher aggregate debt

balance and increased property operating expenses compared to the

year ended December 31 2007 These decreases were offset by

gain on the extinguishment of debt in connection with repurchase of

portion of our Exchangeable Notes outstanding
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CURRENT ECONOMIC DOWNTURN OUR CAPITAL NEEDS AND

CHALLENGING CAPITAL MARKETS CONDITIONS The downturn in the

overall economy and the recent disruptions in the financial markets have

reduced consumer confidence and negatively affected consumer

spending on retail goods and have decreased the revenue generated

by our properties In addition credit markets have recently experienced

significant dislocations and liquidity disruptions These circumstances

have materially affected liquidity in the debt markets making financing

terms for borrowers less attractive and in certain cases have resulted in

the limited availability or unavailability of certain types of debt financing

Our capital strategy involves seeking the broadest range of funding

sources including commercial banks institutional lenders equity

investors and
joint venture partners and funding vehicles including

mortgages commercial loans and debt and equity securities available

to us on the most favorable terms We pursue this goal by maintaining

relationships with various capital sources and utilizing variety of

financing instruments Subject to prevailing conditions in the real estate

capital markets we have attempted to place secured indebtedness on

certain of our properties and expect to continue to do so as opportu

nities arise Executing this strategy has enabled us to leave number

of our other properties unencumbered As we placed secured debt on

certain of our properties we have retained the cash flow from our other

unencumbered assets

We expect that our significant expenditures related to the redevelop

ment and development projects listed in this report will continue over

the next several quarters We expect that our construction in progress

balance will peak in the first half of 2009 Construction in progress rep

resents the aggregate expenditures on projects less amounts placed in

service Generally assets are placed in service upon substantial com

pletion or when tenants begin occupancy and rent payments

commence Additional debt could lead to debt ratios that approach or

exceed the ratios permitted by our Credit Facility

Given current economic capital market and retail industry conditions

and in light
of our need for additional capital to complete construction

of our redevelopment projects and of the leverage covenant in our

Credit Facility we anticipate employing one or more of the following

measures among others in order to fund our capital needs or to

reduce our debt and decrease our leverage ratio deferring develop

ment and redevelopment projects or other selected capital

expenditures ii making selective sales of assets including outparcels

that we do not believe meet the financial or strategic criteria we apply

given economic market and other circumstances iii obtaining

secured or unsecured indebtedness iv forming joint ventures with

institutional partners private equity investors or other REITs repay

ing or repurchasing our outstanding debt and vi issuing equity when

warranted

Continued uncertainty in the credit markets might negatively affect our

ability to access additional debt financing on terms acceptable to us

or at all which might negatively affect our ability to fund our redevelop

ment and development projects and other business initiatives

prolonged downturn in the credit markets might cause us to seek alter

native sources of financing which could be less attractive and might

require us to adjust our business plan accordingly In addition these

factors might make it more difficult for us to sell properties or out-

parcels or might adversely affect the price we receive for properties

that we do sell as prospective buyers might experience increased

costs of debt financing or difficulties in obtaining debt financing Events

in the credit markets have also had an adverse effect on other financial

markets in the United States which might make it more difficult or

costly for us to raise capital through the issuance of equity

2008 ACQUISITIONS In February 2008 we acquired 49.9% owner

ship interest in Bala Cynwyd Associates LP See Related Party

Transactions for further information about this transaction

In July 2008 we acquired parcel in Lancaster Pennsylvania for $8.0

million plus customary closing costs We intend to develop this parcel

into 227000 square foot power center that we have named Pitney

Road Plaza

2007 ACQUISITIONS In August 2007 we purchased 116 acre land

parcel in Monroe Township Pennsylvania for $5.5 million We had pre

viously acquired an aggregate of approximately 10 acres on adjacent

parcels This property which we named Monroe Marketplace is cur

rently operating with further development activity

In August 2007 we purchased Plymouth Commons 60000 square

foot office building adjacent to Plymouth Meeting Mall for $9.2 million

2006 ACQUISITIONS In February 2006 we acquired 540 acres of land

in Gainesville Florida for $21.5 million including closing costs The

acquired parcels are collectively known as Springhills

In separate transactions from June 2006 to October 2006 we acquired

the former Strawbridges department store buildings at Cherry Hill Mall

Willow Grove Park and The Gallery at Market East from Federated

Department Stores Inc now named Macys Inc following its merger

with The May Department Stores Company for an aggregate purchase

price of $58.0 million

In connection with our merger the Merger with Crown American

Realty Trust Crown in 2003 Crowns former operating partnership

retained an 11 interest in the capital and interest in the profits of

two partnerships that owned or ground leased 12 shopping malls This

retained interest was subject to put-call arrangement between

Crowns former operating partnership and us Pursuant to this arrange

ment we had the right to require Crowns former operating partnership

to contribute the retained interest to us following the 36th month after

the closing of the Merger i.e after November 20 2006 in exchange

for 341 297 additional units in PREIT Associates OP Units We

acquired these interests in December 2006 The value of the units

issued was $13.4 million As of the closing date of the transaction

Mark Pasquerilla who was elected trustee of the Company follow

ing the Merger and his affiliates had an interest in Crowns former

operating partnership
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2007 DISPOSITIONS In March 2007 we sold Schuylkill Mall in Frackville

Pennsylvania for $17.6 million We recorded $6.7 million gain on the

sale In connection with the sale we repaid the mortgage note associ

ated with Schuylkill Mall with balance of $16.5 million at closing

In May 2007 we sold an outparcel and related land improvements con

taining an operating restaurant at New River Valley Mall in

Christiansburg Virginia for $1 .6 million We recorded $0.6 million gain

on the sale

In May 2007 we sold an outparcel and related land improvements at

Plaza at Magnolia in Florence South Carolina for $11.3 million We

recorded $1.5 million gain on the sale

In August 2007 we sold undeveloped land adjacent to Wiregrass

Commons Mall in Dothan Alabama for $2.1 million We recorded

$0.3 million gain on the sale

In December 2007 we sold undeveloped land in Monroe Township

Pennsylvania for $0.8 million to Target Corporation There was no gain

or loss recorded on the sale

2006 DISPOSITIONS In transactions that closed between June 2006

and December 2006 we sold total of four parcels at Plaza at

Magnolia in Florence South Carolina for an aggregate sale price of

$7.9 million and recorded an aggregate gain of $0.5 million

In September 2006 we sold South Blanding Village strip center in

Jacksonville Florida for $7.5 million We recorded gain of $1 .4

million on the sale

In December 2006 we sold parcel at Voorhees Town Center in

Voorhees New Jersey to residential real estate developer for $5.4

million The parcel was subdivided from the retail property We

recorded gain of $4.7 million on the sale of the parcel

VALLEY VIEW DOWNS In September 2008 we entered into an

Amendment Agreement with Valley View Downs LP Valley View and

Centaur Pennsylvania LLC Centaur with respect to the develop

ment of proposed harness racetrack and casino in western

Pennsylvania the Project to be owned and operated by Valley View

The Amendment Agreement amends the terms of the Binding

Memorandum of Understanding dated October 2004 as amended

by Amendment No to the Binding Memorandum of Understanding

dated October 2007 among us Valley View and Centaur

the MOU
Pursuant to the Amendment Agreement we will permit Centaur and

Valley View to suspend any payments to us otherwise required by the

MOU and the related development agreement until September 30
2010 If there is sale or other disposition by Valley View and Centaur

of all or substantially all of their economic interest in the Project on or

prior to September 30 2010 we and Valley View have agreed that

we will accept cash payment of $13.0 million to us in satisfaction of

the obligations of Valley View to us under the MOU and development

agreement and ii upon such payment the MOU and the development

agreement will be terminated If disposition and payment do not

occur on or prior to September 30 2010 the obligations of Centaur

and Valley View to make the payments to us required by the MOU and

development agreement will be reinstated In the fourth quarter of

2008 we recorded $3.0 million impairment charge against the

amounts we have spent in connection with the MOU and the fees that

we earned under the development agreement The decision was made

following downgrade in Centaurs credit rating by major rating agen

cies which caused us to conclude that there is significant uncertainty

that we will recover the carrying amounts of the accounts receivable

and the original investment associated with this project

Valley View has obtained harness racing license for the proposed

racetrack and has applied for license to operate casino but has

advised us of the prospect of the sale or other disposition of its eco
nomic interest in the Project

DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT In 2008 we substantially com

pleted our redevelopment work at Moorestown Mall in Moorestown

New Jersey and Jacksonville Mall in Jacksonville North Carolina We

reached further milestones on the continuing redevelopment projects

at several of the malls in our portfolio including three of our largest

projects Cherry Hill Mall in Cherry Hill New Jersey Plymouth Meeting

Mall in Plymouth Meeting Pennsylvania and Voorhees Town Center in

Voorhees New Jersey

In 2008 our redevelopment plans for Willow Grove Park in Willow

Grove Pennsylvania and North Hanover Mall in Hanover Pennsylvania

changed following the termination of agreements to open Boscovs

stores at those two properties The agreements were terminated fol

lowing the August 2008 Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing of that anchor

tenant We are currently reviewing the alternatives for an appropriate

way to utilize the vacant anchor space

The following table sets forth the amount of the currently estimated

project cost and the amount invested as of December 31 2008 for

each ongoing redevelopment project

We are engaged in the ground-up development of four retail and other

mixed use projects that we believe meet the financial hurdles that we

apply given economic market and other circumstances We also own

and manage two properties that are now operating while some remain

ing development takes place As of December 31 2008 we had

incurred $1 77.7 million of costs related to six projects including

Monroe Marketplace and Sunrise Plaza which are operating but still

under construction and not including the effects of impairments total

ing $18.8 million The additional costs identified to date to complete

Pitney Road Plaza are estimated to be $1 .3 million in the aggregate

including costs already incurred The details of the White Clay Point

Springhills and Pavilion at Market East projects and related costs have

not been determined In each case we will evaluate the financing

opportunities available to us at the time project requires funding In

cases where the project is undertaken with partner our flexibility in

funding the project might be governed by the partnership agreement or

the covenants contained in our Credit Facility which limit our involve

ment in such projects

We generally seek to develop these projects in areas that we believe

evidence the likelihood of supporting additional retail development and

have desirable population or income trends and where we believe the

projects have the potential for strong competitive positions We will

consider other uses of property that would have synergies with our

Redevelopment Proiect

Cherry Hill Mall

Plymouth Meeting Mall

Voorhees Town Center

The Gallery at Market East

Wiregrass Commons Mall

Estimated

Proiect Cost

218.0 million

96.6 million

83.0 million

81.6 million

12.8 million

Invested as of

December 31 2008

172.4 million

81.9 million

60.2 million

57.7 million

10.2 million

382.4 million
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ground-up development project

Development Project

Operating Properties

Monroe Marketplace

Sunrise Plaza11

Development Properties

Pitney Road Plaza 20.3 million

White Clay Point To Be Determined

Springhills To Be Determined

Pavilion at Market East131 To Be Determined

Related Party Transactions

GENERAL PAl provides management leasing and development serv

ices for ten properties owned by partnerships and other entities in

which certain officers or trustees of the Company and of PAl or

members of their immediate families and affiliated entities have indirect

ownership interests Total revenue earned by PAl for such services was

$1 .0 million $0.9 million and $0.9 million for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively As of December 31

2008 $0.3 million was due from the property-owning partnerships to

PAl Of this amount approximately $0.2 million was collected subse

quent to December 31 2008

We lease our principal executive offices from Bellevue Associates the

Actual Landlord an entity in which certain of our officers/trustees have an

Expected interest Total rent expense under this lease was $1 .6 million $1 .6

Initial

million and $1 .5 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007
Occupancy

Date
and 2006 respectively Ronald Rubin and George Rubin collectively

with members of their immediate families and affiliated entities own

2008 approximately 50% interest in the Landlord The office lease has 10

2007 year term that commenced on November 2004 We have the option

to renew the lease for up to two additional five-year periods at the then-

2009 current fair market rate calculated in accordance with the terms of the

TBD office lease In addition we have the right on one occasion at any time

TBD during the seventh lease year to terminate the office lease upon the

TBD satisfaction of certain conditions Effective June 2004 our base rent

is $1 .4 million per year during the first five years of the office lease and

$1 .5 million per year during the second five years

We use an airplane in which Ronald Rubin owns fractional interest

We paid $174000 $35000 and $38000 in the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively for flight time used

by employees exclusively for Company-related business

As of December 31 2008 nine of our officers had employment agree

ments with terms of one year that renew automatically for additional

one-year terms Their previous employment agreements provided for

aggregate base compensation for the year ended December 31 2008

of $3.4 million subject to increases as approved by our compensation

committee in future years as well as additional incentive compensation

We have agreed to provide tax protection related to its acquisition of

Cumberland Mall Associates and New Castle Associates to the prior

owners of Cumberland Mall Associates and New Castle Associates

respectively for period of eight years following the respective clos

ings Ronald Rubin and George Rubin are beneficiaries of these tax

protection agreements

BALA CYNWYD ASSOCIATES L.P In January 2008 we entered into

Contribution Agreement with Bala Cynwyd Associates L.P BOA
City Line Associates Ronald Rubin George Rubin Joseph Coradino

and two other individuals to acquire all of the partnership interests in

BCA We have agreed to pay approximately $1 5.3 million for the BCA

partnership interests over three years

BOA entered into tax deferred exchange agreement with the current

owner of One Cherry Hill Plaza an office building located within the

boundaries of our Cherry Hill Mall the Office Building to acquire title

to the Office Building in exchange for an office building located in Bala

Cynwyd Pennsylvania owned by BOA

Ronald Rubin George Rubin Joseph Coradino and two other individ

uals collectively the Individuals own 100% of limited partnership

that owned 50% of the partnership interests in BOA immediately prior

retail development and redevelopment based on several factors

including local demographics market demand for other uses such as

residential and office and applicable land use regulations We generally

have several development projects under way at one time These proj

ects are typically in various stages of the development process We

manage all aspects of these undertakings including market and trade

area research site selection acquisition preliminary development

work construction and leasing We monitor our developments closely

including costs and tenant interest

The following table sets forth the amount of our intended investment

and the amounts invested as of December 31 2008 in each on-going

Estimated Invested as of

Project Cost December 31 2008

58.9 million 56.0 million

39.9 million 37.0 million

9.0 million

42.8 million

31.4 million

1.5 million

$177.7 million

Amount invested as of December 31 2008 does not reflect $7.0 million

impairment charge that we recorded in 2008 See the notes to our consoli

dated financial statements for further discussion of this charge

Amount invested as of December 31 2008 does not reflect $11.8 million

impairment charge that we recorded in 2008 See the notes to our consoli

dated financial statements for further discussion of this charge

The property is unconsolidated The amount shown represents our share

In connection with our current ground-up development and our rede

velopment projects we have made contractual and other

commitments on these projects in the form of tenant allowances lease

termination fees and contracts with general contractors and other pro

fessional service providers As of December 31 2008 the unaccrued

remainder to be paid against these contractual and other commitments

was $86.7 million which is expected to be financed through our Credit

Facility or through various other capital sources The projects on which

these commitments have been made have total expected remaining

costs of $151.7 million

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no material off-balance sheet items other than the partner

ships described in note to the consolidated financial statements and

in the Overview section above
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to closing Immediately prior to closing BCA redeemed the other 50%
of the partnership interest which was held by third party At the initial

closing in February 2008 under the Contribution Agreement and in

exchange for 0.1% general partner interest and 49.8% limited partner

interest in BCA we made $3.9 million capital contribution to BOA
second closing is expected to take place in March 2009 pursuant to

put/call arrangement at which time we will acquire an additional 49.9%
of the limited partner interest in BCA for $0.2 million in cash and OP
Units valued in the first quarter of 2008 at approximately $3.6 million

third closing is expected to occur pursuant to put/call arrangement

approximately one year after the second closing at which time we will

acquire the remaining interest in BCA for nominal amount

In accordance with our Related Party Transactions Policy Special

Committee consisting exclusively of independent members of our
Board of Trustees considered and approved the terms of the BCA
transaction subject to final approval by our Board of Trustees The dis

interested members of our Board of Trustees approved the transaction

As part of the BCA transaction we and PREIT Associates have agreed
to indemnify the Individuals from and against certain tax liabilities

resulting from sale of the office building that was involved in the BCA
transaction during the eight years following the initial closing

Subsequent to the first closing PRI entered into management agree
ment with BOA for the management of the Office Building

CROWN In connection with the Merger Crowns former operating part

nership retained an 11 interest in the capital and 1% interest in the

profits of two partnerships that owned or ground leased 12 shopping
malls The retained interests were subject to put-call arrangement
between Crowns former operating partnership and us Pursuant to this

arrangement we had the right to require Crowns former operating

partnership to contribute the retained interest to us following the 36th

month after the closing of the Merger i.e after November 20 2006
in exchange for 341 297 OP Units We acquired these interests in

December 2006 The value of the OP Units at closing was $13.4

million As of the closing date of the transaction Mark Pasquerilla

who was elected trustee of the Company following the Merger and

his affiliates had an interest in Crowns former operating partnership

The exchange agreement for this transaction is based upon and

consistent with the financial and other terms of put-call

arrangement which was entered into by PREIT Associates and CAP
in connection with the Merger and prior to Mark Pasquerilla serving as

trustee of the Company The Board of Trustees of the Company
excluding Mr Pasquerilla reviewed considered and approved the

exchange agreement

In connection with the Merger we entered into tax protection agree
ment with Mark Pasquerilla one of our trustees and entities affiliated

with Mr Pasquerilla the Pasquerilla Group Under this tax protection

agreement we agreed not to dispose of certain protected properties

acquired in the Merger in taxable transaction until November 20 2011

or if earlier until the Pasquerilla Group collectively owns less than 25%
of the aggregate of the shares and OP Units that they acquired in the

Merger If we were to sell any of the protected properties during the first

five years of the protection period we would owe the Pasquerilla Group
an amount equal to the sum of the hypothetical tax owed by the

Pasquerilla Group plus an amount intended to make the Pasquerilla

Group whole for taxes that may be due upon receipt of such payments
From the end of the first five years through the end of the tax protection

period the payments are intended to compensate the affected parties

for interest expense incurred on amounts borrowed to pay the taxes
incurred on the sale We paid $2000 and $8000 to the Pasquerilla

Group in 2008 and 2007 pursuant to this agreement respectively

EXECUTIVE SEPARATION In 2006 we announced the retirement of

Jonathan Weller Vice Chairman of the Company In connection
with Mr Wellers retirement we entered into Separation of

Employment Agreement and General Release the Separation

Agreement with Mr Weller Pursuant to the Separation Agreement
Mr Weller also retired from our Board of Trustees and the Amended
and Restated Employment Agreement by and between us and Mr
Weller dated as of January 2004 was terminated We recorded an

expense of $4.0 million in connection with Mr Wellers separation from

the Company The expense included executive separation cash pay
ments made to Mr Weller along with the acceleration of the deferred

compensation expense associated with the unvested restricted shares

and the estimated fair value of Mr Wellers share of the 20052008

Outperformance Program OPP see notes and 11 to our consoli

dated financial statements Mr Weller exercised his outstanding

options in August 2006

Critical Accounting Policies

Critical Accounting Policies are those that require the application of

managements most difficult subjective or complex judgments often

because of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that

are inherently uncertain and that might change in subsequent periods
In preparing the consolidated financial statements management has

made estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting

periods In preparing the financial statements management has utilized

available information including our past history industry standards and

the current economic environment among other factors in forming its

estimates and judgments giving due consideration to materiality

Actual results may differ from these estimates In addition other com
panies may utilize different estimates which may impact comparability

of our results of operations to those of companies in similar busi

nesses The estimates and assumptions made by management in

applying critical accounting policies have not changed materially during

2008 2007 and 2006 except as otherwise noted and none of these

estimates or assumptions have proven to be materially incorrect or

resulted in our recording any significant adjustments relating to prior

periods We will continue to monitor the key factors underlying our esti

mates and judgments but no change is currently expected Set forth

below is summary of the accounting policies that management
believes are critical to the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements This summary should be read in conjunction with the more

complete discussion of our accounting policies included in note to

our consolidated financial statements

Our management makes complex or subjective assumptions and judg
ments with respect to applying its critical accounting policies In

making these judgments and assumptions management considers

among other factors

events and changes in property market and economic conditions

estimated future cash flows from property operations and

the risk of loss on specific accounts or amounts
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REVENUE RECOGNITION We derive over 95% of our revenue from

tenant rent and other tenant related activities Tenant rent includes

base rent percentage rent expense reimbursements such as

common area maintenance real estate taxes and utilities amortization

of above- and below-market intangibles and straight-line rent We

record base rent on straight-line basis which means that the monthly

base rent income according to the terms of our leases with tenants is

adjusted so that an average monthly rent is recorded for each tenant

over the term of its lease When tenants vacate prior to the end of their

lease we accelerate amortization of any related unamortized straight-

line rent balances and unamortized above-market and below-market

intangible balances are amortized as decrease or increase to real

estate revenue respectively

Percentage rent represents rental income that the tenant pays based

on percentage of its sales either as percentage of their total sales

or as percentage of sales over certain threshold In the latter case

we do not record percentage rent until the sales threshold has been

reached Revenue for rent received from tenants prior to their due

dates is deferred until the period to which the rent applies

In addition to base rent certain lease agreements contain provisions

that require tenants to reimburse fixed or pro rota share of certain

common area maintenance costs and real estate taxes Tenants gen

erally make expense reimbursement payments monthly based on

budgeted amount determined at the beginning of the year During the

year our income increases or decreases based on actual expense

levels and changes in other factors that influence the reimbursement

amounts such as occupancy levels Subsequent to the end of the

year we prepare reconciliation of the actual amounts due from

tenants The difference between the actual amount due and the

amounts paid by the tenant throughout the year is billed or credited to

the tenant depending on whether the tenant paid too little or too much

during the year

Payments made to tenants as inducements to enter into lease are

treated as deferred costs that are amortized as reduction of rental

revenue over the term of the related lease

Lease termination fee income is recognized in the period when termi

nation agreement is signed collectibility is assured and we are no

longer obligated to provide space to the tenant In the event that

tenant is in bankruptcy when the termination agreement is signed ter

mination fee income is deferred and recognized when it is received

We also generate revenue from the provision of management services

to third parties including property management brokerage leasing

and development Management fees generally are percentage of

managed property revenue or cash receipts Leasing fees are earned

upon the consummation of new leases Development fees are earned

over the time period of the development activity and are recognized on

the percentage of completion method These activities collectively are

included in Management company revenue in the consolidated state

ments of income

FAIR VALUE On January 2008 we adopted SFAS No 157 Fair

Value Measurements SFAS No 157 which defines fair value

establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclo

sures about fair value measurements SFAS No 157 applies to

reported balances that are required or permitted to be measured at fair

value under existing accounting pronouncements the standard does

not require any new fair value measurements of reported balances

SEAS No 157 emphasizes that fair value is market-based measure

ment not an entity-specific measurement Therefore fair value

measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that

market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
As basis

for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measure

ments SEAS No 157 establishes fair value hierarchy that

distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on

market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity

observable inputs that are classified within Levels and of the hier

archy and the reporting entitys own assumptions about market

participant assumptions unobservable inputs classified within Level

of the hierarchy

Level inputs utilize quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities that we have the
ability to access

Level inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level

that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly

Level inputs may include quoted prices for similar assets and liabili

ties in active markets as well as inputs that are observable for the

asset or liability other than quoted prices such as interest rates

foreign exchange rates and yield curves that are observable at com

monly quoted intervals

Level inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability which

are typically based on an entitys own assumptions as there is little if

any related market activity

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is

based on inputs from different levels of the fair value hierarchy the level

in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement

falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement in its entirety Our assessment of the significance of

particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires

judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability
We

utilize the fair value hierarchy in our accounting for derivatives and in

our impairment reviews of real estate assets and goodwill

ASSET IMPAIRMENT Real estate investments are reviewed for impair

ment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount of the property might not be recoverable property

to be held and used is considered impaired only if our estimate of the

aggregate future cash flows less estimated capital expenditures to be

generated by the property undiscounted and without interest charges

are less than the carrying value of the property This estimate takes into

consideration factors such as expected future operating income

trends and prospects as well as the effects of demand competition

and other factors In addition these estimates may consider proba

bility weighted cash flow estimation approach when alternative courses

of action to recover the carrying amount of long lived asset are under

consideration or when range of possible values is estimated

The determination of undiscounted cash flows requires significant esti

mates by us including the expected course of action at the balance

sheet date that would lead to such cash flows Subsequent changes in

estimated undiscounted cash flows arising from changes in the antici

pated action to be taken with respect to the property could impact the

determination of whether an impairment exists and whether the effects

could materially impact our net income To the extent estimated undis

counted cash flows are less than the carrying value of the property the

loss will be measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the prop

erty over the fair value of the property
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Our assessment of the recoverability of certain lease related costs must

be made when we have reason to believe that the tenant might not be

able to perform under the terms of the lease as originally expected This

requires us to make estimates as to the recoverability of such costs

An other than temporary impairment of an investment in an unconsoli

dated joint venture is recognized when the carrying value of the

investment is not considered recoverable based on evaluation of the

severity and duration of the decline in value including the results of dis

continued cash flow and other valuation techniques To the extent

impairment has occurred the excess carrying value of the asset over

its estimated fair value is charged to income

REAL ESTATE Land buildings fixtures and tenant improvements are

recorded at cost and stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as

incurred Renovations or replacements which improve or extend the

life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated

useful lives

For financial reporting purposes properties are depreciated using the

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets The

estimated useful lives are as follows

Buildings 3050 years

Land improvements 15 years

Furniture/fixtures 310 years

Tenant improvements Lease term

We are required to make subjective assessments as to the useful lives

of our properties for purposes of determining the amount of deprecia

tion to reflect on an annual basis with respect to those properties

based on various factors including industry standards historical expe

rience and the condition of the asset at the time of acquisition These

assessments have direct impact on our net income If we were to

determine that longer expected useful life was appropriate for par

ticular asset it would be depreciated over more years and other

things being equal result in less annual depreciation expense and

higher annual net income

Gains from sales of real estate properties and interests in partnerships

generally are recognized using the full accrual method in accordance

with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No

66 Accounting for Real Estate Sales provided that various criteria

are met relating to the terms of sale and any subsequent involvement

by us with the properties sold

INTANGIBLE ASSETS We account for our property acquisitions under

the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No

141 Business Combinations SEAS No 141 Pursuant to SFAS

No 141 the purchase price of property is allocated to the propertys

assets based on our estimates of their fair value The determination of

the fair value of intangible assets requires significant estimates by man

agement and considers many factors including our expectations about

the underlying property and the general market conditions in which the

property operates The judgment and subjectivity inherent in such

assumptions can have significant impact on the magnitude of the

intangible assets that we record

SFAS No 141 provides guidance on allocating portion of the pur

chase price of property to intangible assets Our methodology for this

allocation includes estimating an as-if vacant fair value of the physi

cal property which is allocated to land building and improvements

The difference between the purchase price and the as-if vacant fair

value is allocated to intangible assets There are three categories of

intangible assets to be considered value of in-place leases ii

above- and below-market value of in-place leases and iii customer

relationship value

The value of in-place leases is estimated based on the value associated

with the costs avoided in originating leases comparable to the acquired

in-place leases as well as the value associated with lost rental revenue

during the assumed lease-up period The value of in-place leases is

amortized as real estate amortization over the remaining lease term

Above-market and below-market in-place lease values for acquired

properties are recorded based on the present value of the difference

between the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the in-place

leases and ii our estimates of fair market lease rates for the compara

ble in-place leases based on factors including historical experience

recently executed transactions and specific property issues measured

over period equal to the remaining non-cancelable term of the lease

The value of above-market lease values is amortized as reduction of

rental income over the remaining terms of the respective leases The

value of below-market lease values is amortized as an increase to

rental income over the remaining terms of the respective leases includ

ing any below-market optional renewal period

We allocate purchase price to customer relationship intangibles based

on our assessment of the value of such relationships

GOODWILL Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 142

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets SFAS No.142 requires that

goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be

amortized but instead be tested for impairment at least annually We

conduct an annual review of our goodwill balances for impairment to

determine whether an adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill is

required We determined the fair value of our properties and the good
will that is associated with the properties by applying capitalization

rate to our best estimate of projected income at those properties We

also consider factors such as property sales performance market posi

tion and current and future operating results

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS The deter

mination to classify an asset as held for sale requires significant

estimates by us about the property and the expected market for the

property which are based on factors including recent sales of compa
rable properties recent expressions of interest in the property financial

metrics of the property and the condition of the property We must also

determine if it will be possible under those market conditions to sell the

property for an acceptable price within one year When assets are iden

tified by management as held for sale we discontinue depreciating the

assets and estimate the sales price net of selling costs of such assets

We generally consider operating properties to be held for sale when

they meet the criteria in accordance with Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or

Disposal of Long-Lived Assets SFAS No 144 which includes

factors such as whether the sale transaction has been approved by the

appropriate level of management and there are no known material con

tingencies relating to the sale such that the sale is probable within one

year If in managements opinion the net sales price of the asset that

has been identified as held for sale is less than the net book value of

the asset the asset is written down to fair value less the cost to sell

Assets and liabilities related to assets classified as held for sale are pre

sented separately in the consolidated balance sheet
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Assuming no significant continuing involvement sold operating real

estate property is considered discontinued operation In addition

operating properties classified as held for sale are considered discon

tinued operations Operating properties classified as discontinued

operations are reclassified as such in the accompanying consolidated

statement of income for each period presented Interest expense that

is specifically identifiable to the property is used in the computation of

interest expense attributable to discontinued operations See note to

our consolidated financial statements for description of the properties

included in discontinued operations Land parcels and other portions of

operating properties non-operating real estate and investments in

partnerships are excluded from discontinued operations treatment

CAPITALIZATION OF COSTS Costs incurred in relation to development

and redevelopment projects for interest property taxes and insurance

are capitalized only during periods in which activities necessary to

prepare the property for its intended use are in progress Costs

incurred for such items after the property is substantially complete and

ready for its intended use are charged to expense as incurred

Capitalized costs as well as tenant inducement amounts and internal

and external commissions are recorded in construction in progress

We capitalize portion of development department employees com

pensation and benefits related to time spent involved in development

and redevelopment projects

We capitalize payments made to obtain options to acquire real prop

erty All other related costs that are incurred before acquisition that are

expected to have ongoing value to the project are capitalized if the

acquisition of the property or of an option to acquire the property is

probable If the property is acquired such costs are included in the

amount recorded as the initial value of the asset Capitalized pre-acqui

sition costs are charged to expense when it is probable that the

property will not be acquired

We capitalize salaries commissions and benefits related to time spent

by leasing and legal department personnel involved in originating

leases with third-party tenants

TENANT RECEIVABLES We make estimates of the collectibility of our

tenant receivables related to tenant rent including base rent straight-

line rent expense reimbursements and other revenue or income We

specifically analyze accounts receivable including straight-line rent

receivable historical bad debts customer creditworthiness and current

economic and industry trends when evaluating the adequacy of the

allowance for doubtful accounts The receivables analysis places par

ticular emphasis on past-due accounts and considers the nature and

age of the receivables the payment history and financial condition of

the payor the basis for any disputes or negotiations with the payor and

other information that could affect collectibility In addition with respect

to tenants in bankruptcy we make estimates of the expected recovery

of pre-petition and post-petition claims in assessing the estimated col

lectibility of the related receivable In some cases the time required to

reach an ultimate resolution of these claims can exceed one year

These estimates have direct effect on our net income because higher

bad debt expense results in less net income other things being equal

For straight line rent the
collectibility analysis considers the probability

of collection of the unbilled deferred rent receivable given our experi

ence regarding such amounts

Results of Operations

Comparison of Years Ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

OVERVIEW Our net income available to common shareholders

decreased by $38.9 million to net loss allocable to common share

holders of $10.4 million for the year ended December31 2008 from net

income available to common shareholders of $28.6 million for the year

ended December 31 2007 The decrease was affected by challenging

conditions in the economy the impairment of assets the impact of the

preferred share redemption in 2007 noted below the effects of ongoing

redevelopment initiatives increased depreciation and amortization as

result of development and redevelopment assets having been placed in

service increased interest expense as result of higher aggregate

debt balance and increased property operating expenses compared to

the year ended December 31 2007 These decreases were offset by

gain on the extinguishment of debt in connection with repurchase of

portion of our Exchangeable Notes outstanding

Our net income available to common shareholders increased by $14.2

million to $28.6 million for the year ended December 31 2007 from

$14.4 million for the year ended December31 2006 The increase in our

net income resulted primarily from $13.3 million recorded in connection

with our July 2007 redemption of our preferred shares and decrease

in dividends paid on preferred shares as result of the redemption The

preferred shares were issued in connection with our 2003 merger with

Crown American Realty Trust and first became redeemable in July 2007

There were also higher gains on sales in 2007 than in 2006 Our net

income was also affected by the changes to real estate revenue prop

erty operating expenses interest expense and depreciation and

amortization expense resulting from the effect of new properties that we

developed and began operating in 2007 and other properties that were

in various stages of redevelopment in 2007 and 2006

The table below sets forth certain occupancy statistics for properties

that we consolidate as of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Retail portfolio weighted average

Total including anchors

Excluding anchors

Enclosed malls weighted average

Total including anchors

Excluding anchors

Strip and power center

weighted average

Consolidated Properties

Occupancy as of December 31

2008 2007 2006

The following table sets forth certain occupancy statistics for proper

ties owned by partnerships in which we own 50% interest as of

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Retail portfolio weighted average

Total including anchors

Excluding anchors

Enclosed malls weighted average

Total including anchors

Excluding anchors

Strip and power center

weighted average

Partnership Properties

Occupancy as of December31

2008 2007 2006

90.5% 90.6% 87.4%

87.6% 88.2% 86.8%

89.6% 90.1% 86.8%

86.5% 87.7% 86.1%

99.4% 96.6% 97.6%

94.3% 95.7% 96.3%

91 .9% 93.9% 94.7%

91.8% 95.2% 96.2%

89.6% 93.8% 95.0%

95.6% 95.9% 96.4%
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The following information sets forth our results of operations for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Management company revenue

Interest and other income

General and administrative expenses 40324
Executive separation

Abandoned project costs income taxes and other

Impairment of assets

Interest expense net

Depreciation and amortization

Equity in income of partnerships

Gain on extinguishment of debt

Gains on sales of interests in real estate

Gains on sales of non-operating real estate

Minority interest

Loss income from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net loss income

287

10380

REAL ESTATE REVENUE Real estate revenue increased by $10.0

million or 2% in 2008 as compared to 2007 including an increase of

$4.1 million from properties that were under development during 2007

that are now placed in service and an increase of $1 .5 million from One

Cherry Hill Plaza acquired in February 2008 Real estate revenue from

properties that were owned by us prior to January 2007 increased

by $4.4 million primarily due to increases of $2.7 million in expense

reimbursements $2.5 million in lease termination revenue and $2.1

million in base rent which is comprised of minimum rent straight line

rent and rent from tenants that pay percentage of sales in lieu of

minimum rent partially offset by decreases of $1 .9 million in percent

age rent and $1 .0 million in other revenue

Base rent increased primarily due to an increase in rental rates and

increased occupancy at current redevelopment projects including

$1 .0 million increase at Voorhees Town Center $0.9 million increase

at Plymouth Meeting Mall and $0.7 million increase at Cherry Hill Mall

Additionally base rent increased by $0.9 million at redevelopment proj

ects completed during 2008 and 2007 due to an increase in rental rates

and increased occupancy These increases were partially
offset by

$1 .4 million decrease in base rent at our remaining properties due to

decreases of $1 .0 million in specialty leasing revenue $0.9 million in

straight line rent and $0.5 million in above/below market rent amortiza

tion partially offset by increases of $0.6 million in minimum rent and

$0.4 million in percentage of sales rent in lieu of minimum rent Expense

reimbursements increased by $2.7 million in 2008 as compared to 2007
due to higher reimbursable expenses as discussed below under

Property Operating Expenses At many of our malls we continued to

see lower proportion of expenses that were recovered during 2008

Our properties are experiencing trend towards more gross leases

leases that provide that tenants pay higher base rent amount in lieu

of contributing toward common area maintenance costs and real estate

taxes as well as more leases that provide for rent to be paid on the

basis of percentage of sales in lieu of minimum rent and no contribu

tion toward common area maintenance costs and real estate taxes

Also new and renewal leases with tenants affected by redevelopments

reflect rental concessions including with respect to expense reimburse

ments We expect the expense recovery amounts at the redevelopment

properties to improve over the longer term as construction is com
pleted tenants take occupancy and our leasing leverage improves

Lease termination revenue increased by $2.5 million primarily due to

amounts received from two tenants during 2008

Percentage rent decreased by $1 .9 million due in part to decrease in

tenant sales from $349 per square foot in 2007 to $333 in 2008

Percentage rent also decreased in connection with trend among
certain tenants toward leases with slightly higher minimum rent and

higher thresholds at which percentage rent begins Other revenue

decreased by $1 .0 million in 2008 compared to 2007 including $0.4

million decrease in marketing revenue $0.3 million decrease in gift

card revenue and $0.3 million decrease in ancillary revenue These

revenue decreases were offset by corresponding decreases of $0.5

million in marketing expense $0.3 million in
gift card expense and $0.3

million in ancillary expense as discussed below under Property

Operating Expenses

We believe that the current downward trend in the overall economy and

the recent disruptions in the financial markets have reduced consumer
confidence in the economy and negatively affected consumer spend

ing on retail goods and have consequently decreased the demand for

retail space and the revenue generated by our properties The poor

operating performance of retailers has resulted in delays or cancella

tions of the openings of new retail stores and renewals of existing

leases at our properties and has impaired the ability of our current

tenants to meet their obligations to us which has and is anticipated to

continue to adversely affect our ability to generate real estate revenue

during the duration of the current downturn and disruptions

Real estate revenue increased by $4.7 million or in 2007 as com
pared to 2006 Real estate revenue from properties that were owned

by us prior to January 2006 increased by $4.2 million primarily due

to increases of $4.5 million in expense reimbursements and $3.4 million

in base rent partially offset by decreases of $1 .6 million in other

revenue $1 .2 million in lease termination revenue and $0.9 million in

percentage rent Of the increase in real estate revenue $0.5 million is

attributable to properties under development during 2006 that were

placed in service in 2007

in thousands of doiiars

Results of operations

Real estate revenue

Property operating expenses

Year Ended Change Year Ended Change Year Ended

December 31 2008 2007 to 2008 December 31 2007 2006 to 2007 December 31 2006

469581 2.2% 459596 1.0% 454878
187952 4.2% 180419 2.7% 175707

3730 15.6% 4419 82.5% 2422
769 69.9% 2557 27.3% 2008

2.6% 41415 8.4% 38193
100.0% 3985

1534 21.1% 1944 165.2% 733
27592

112064 13.4% 98860 2.6% 96382
151612 14.7% 132184 7.2% 123302

7053 52.1% 4637 17.1% 5595
29278

100.0% 579

100.0% 1731 68.5% 5495

20.3% 1414 58.0% 3367
160.1% 17283 39.8% 28729

100.0% 5878 930.2% 708
144.8% 23161 17.3% 2802110380

The amounts reflected as income from continuing operations in the table above reflect our consolidated properties with the exception of prop
erties that are classified as discontinued operations Our unconsolidated partnerships are presented under the equity method of accounting in

the line item Equity in income of partnerships
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Base rent increased primarily due to $4.8 million increase in rental

rates and increased occupancy at recently completed redevelopment

projects These increases were partially offset by decreases in base

rent at Voorhees Town Center Moorestown Mall and Plymouth Meeting

Mall three of the redevelopment properties that were active at that

time which had decreases of $1 .2 million $0.7 million and $0.6 million

respectively as aggregate in-line occupied square feet at these three

properties decreased by 9% as of December 31 2007 as compared to

December31 2006 Base rent increased by $1.1 million at our remain

ing properties due to increases of $0.7 million in specialty leasing

revenue $0.6 million in percentage of sales rent in lieu of minimum rent

and $0.3 million in above/below market rent amortization partially

offset by $0.5 million decrease in straight line rent Expense reim

bursements increased by $4.5 million in 2007 as compared to 2006

due in large part to higher reimbursable expenses as discussed below

under Property Operating Expenses

Percentage rent was lower during 2007 as compared to 2006 primarily

due to $0.5 million less in percentage rent from two tenants Other

revenue decreased by $1 .6 million in 2007 compared to 2006 includ

ing $0.6 million decrease in marketing revenue $0.3 million

decrease in gift card revenue and $0.3 million decrease in corporate

sponsorship revenue The decrease in marketing revenue was offset by

corresponding $0.6 million decrease in marketing expense as dis

cussed below under Property Operating Expenses Other revenue

decreased an additional $0.2 million due to bankruptcy court distri

bution received from one tenant during 2006 that did not recur in 2007

Lease termination revenue decreased in 2007 to $1 .6 million primarily

due to $1 .2 million received from two tenants during 2006

PROPERTY OPERATING EXPENSES Property operating expenses

increased by $7.5 million or 4% in 2008 as compared to 2007

Property operating expenses from properties that were owned by us

prior to January 2007 increased by $5.9 million primarily due to

$2.5 million increase in common area maintenance expense $2.0

million increase in real estate tax expense and $1 .5 million increase

in other operating expenses Property operating expenses also

included $0.6 million from properties that were under development

during 2007 that are now placed in service and $1 .0 million from One

Cherry Hill Plaza acquired in February 2008

Common area maintenance expenses increased by $2.5 million or 3%
in 2008 as compared to 2007 primarily due to increases of $2.3 million

in repairs and maintenance expense $0.6 million in loss prevention

expense $0.4 million in common area utility expense and $0.4 million

in on-site management expense partially offset by $1.2 million

decrease in snow removal expense Repairs and maintenance expense

and loss prevention expense increased primarily due to stipulated

annual contractual cost increases Snowfall amounts at our properties

decreased in 2008 as compared to 2007 particularly at our properties

located in Pennsylvania and New Jersey Real estate tax expense

increased by $2.0 million primarily due to higher tax rates in the juris

dictions where properties are located Other property operating

expenses increased by $1.5 million including $2.1 million increase in

bad debt expense $0.3 million increase in repairs and maintenance

non-recoverable expense and $0.2 million increase in vacant store

utility expense These increases were partially offset by decreases of

$0.5 million in marketing expense $0.3 million in gift card expense and

$0.3 million in ancillary expense offsetting the $1.0 million decrease in

the associated revenue as discussed above under Real Estate

Revenue The increase in bad debt expense was affected by $1 .3

million increase associated with tenant bankruptcy filings In 2008 13

tenants in our portfolio operating an aggregate of 85 stores filed for

bankruptcy protection compared with 11 tenants 15 stores in 2007

Property operating expenses increased by $4.7 million or 3% in 2007

as compared to 2006 Property operating expenses from properties

that were owned by us prior to January 2006 increased by $4.6

million primarily due to $4.2 million increase in common area main

tenance expense $1 .5 million increase in real estate tax expense and

$1 .5 million increase in utility expense These increases were partially

offset by $2.6 million decrease in other operating expenses Of the

increase in property operating expenses $0.1 million is attributable to

properties that were under development during 2006 and are now

placed in service

Common area maintenance expenses increased by $4.2 million or 5%
in 2007 as compared to 2006 primarily due to increases of $1 .7 million

in snow removal expense $1 .1 million in loss prevention expense and

$0.7 million in insurance expense Snowfall amounts at our properties

increased in 2007 as compared to 2006 particularly at our properties

located in Pennsylvania and New Jersey Loss prevention expense

increased due to stipulated annual contractual cost increases and an

increase in security levels at some of our properties Real estate tax

expense increased by $1.5 million including $0.6 million increase

resulting from property value reassessments at three of our recently

completed redevelopment properties Utility expense increased by $1 .5

million due to an increase in energy consumption at some of our prop

erties as result of colder temperatures Other property operating

expenses decreased by $2.6 million including $0.6 million decrease

in marketing expenses offsetting the $0.6 million decrease in marketing

revenue as discussed above under Real Estate Revenue Other prop

erty operating expenses were also affected by $0.6 million decrease

in bad debt expense $0.5 million decrease in recoverable tenant

service expense which offset $0.5 million decrease in recoverable

tenant service revenue and $0.2 million decrease in
gift

card expense

MANAGEMENT COMPANY REVENUE Management company revenue

decreased by $0.7 million or 16% in 2008 as compared to 2007 This

decrease was primarily due to $1 .5 million one time payment received

in 2007 in connection with participation agreement with Swansea

Mall in Swansea Massachusetts which we had managed for third

party that did not recur

Management company revenue increased by $2.0 million or 82% in

2007 as compared to 2006 This increase was primarily due to the $1 .5

million Swansea Mall payment described above

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ABANDONED PROJECT

COSTS INCOME TAXES AND OTHER EXPENSES General and adminis

trative expenses abandoned project costs income taxes and other

expenses decreased by $1 .5 million or 3% in 2008 as compared to

2007 The decrease was due to $1.3 million decrease in net compen
sation expense related to decreased incentive compensation and

$0.2 million decrease in abandoned project costs

General and administrative expenses abandoned project costs

income taxes and other expenses increased by $4.4 million or 11% in

2007 as compared to 2006 This increase was due to $3.4 million

increase in compensation expense related to increased salaries and

incentive compensation charges and $1 .2 million increase in aban

doned project costs These increases were offset by $0.2 million

decrease in other miscellaneous expenses

EXECUTIVE SEPARATION Executive separation expense in 2006 repre

sented $4.0 million expense related to separation costs associated

with the retirement of one of the Companys Vice Chairmen

INTEREST EXPENSE NET Interest expense increased $13.2 million or

13% in 2008 as compared to 2007 The increase was attributable to

$1 2.6 million increase related to new mortgage financings in 2008

$2.7 million increase related to the Term Loan financing completed in
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September 2008 and $2.4 million increase in Credit
Facility and

Exchangeable Notes interest due to larger amounts outstanding in

2008 as compared to 2007 These increases were partially offset by

decrease in mortgage interest of $4.2 million related to the repayment

of the REMIC and the mortgage on Crossroads Mall in 2008 and $0.3

million decrease in interest paid on mortgage loans outstanding during

2008 due to principal amortization as well as the effects of lower

average interest rates

Interest expense increased by $2.5 million or 3% in 2007 compared
to 2006 Contributing to this increase was $2.5 million increase

related to the refinancing of The Mall at Prince Georges and $1 .3

million increase in interest expense due to increased average borrow

ings under the Credit Facility and the issuance of Exchangeable Notes

weighted average balance of $437.5 million in 2007 as compared to

$282.6 million in 2006 These amounts were partially offset by $1 .3

million decrease in interest paid on mortgage loans outstanding during

2007 and 2006 due to principal amortization

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION Depreciation and amortization

expense increased by $19.4 million or 15% in 2008 as compared to

2007 Depreciation and amortization expense from properties that we

owned prior to January 2007 increased by $1 6.3 million primarily

due to higher asset base resulting from capital improvements at our

properties particularly at current and recently completed redevelop

ment properties Depreciation and amortization expense increased

$1 .9 million from properties under development during 2007 that are

now placed in service and $1 .2 million from One Cherry Hill Plaza

Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $8.9 million or

7% in 2007 as compared to 2006 This increase was primarily due to

higher asset base resulting from capital improvements at our proper

ties particularly at properties where we completed redevelopments

GAIN ON EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT During the fourth quarter of

2008 we repurchased $46.0 million in aggregate principal amount of

our Exchangeable Notes in privately-negotiated transactions for an

aggregate purchase price of approximately $1 5.9 million which

resulted in gain on extinguishment of debt of $29.3 million In con
nection with the repurchases we retired approximately $0.8 million of

deferred financing costs

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS During the year ended December 31 2008
we recorded asset impairments totaling $27.6 million consisting of

$1 .8 million related to the White Clay Point ground up development

project $7.0 million related to the Sunrise Plaza power center project

$4.6 million related to goodwill $3.0 million related to our investment in

and receivables from Valley View Downs $0.9 million related to pro
posed commercial project in West Chester Pennsylvania and $0.2

million related to an undeveloped parcel adjacent to Viewmont Mall

classified as land held for development See note to the notes to con
solidated financial statements

GAINS ON SALES OF INTERESTS IN REAL ESTATE There were no gains

on sales of interests in real estate in 2008 or 2006

Gains on sales of interests in real estate were $0.6 million for 2007 due

to the sale of an outparcel and related land improvements containing

an operating restaurant at New River Valley Mall in May 2007

GAINS ON SALES OF NON-OPERATING REAL ESTATE There were no

gains on sales of non-operating real estate in 2008

Gains on sales of non-operating real estate were $1 .7 million for 2007

due to $1 .5 million gain on the sale of parcel and related land

improvements at Plaza at Magnolia in May 2007 and $0.2 million gain

on the sale of land adjacent to Wiregrass Commons in August 2007

The results of operations for 2006 include $4.7 million gain on the

sale of an undeveloped land parcel in connection with the redevelop

ment of Voorhees Town Center and $0.4 million gain resulting from

the sales of three land parcels at the Plaza at Magnolia

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS We have presented as discontinued

operations the operating results of Schuylkill Mall South Blanding

Village strip center in Jacksonville Florida and Festival at Exton

strip center in Exton Pennsylvania

Property operating results gains on sales of discontinued operations

and related minority interest for the properties in discontinued opera
tions for the periods presented were as follows there were no

discontinued operations in 2008

For the Year Ended December 31

in thousands of doflars 2007 2006

Property operating results of

Schuylkill Mall

South Blanding Village

Festival at Exton

Other properties

Operating results from discontinued operations

Gains on sales of discontinued operations

Minority interest

Income loss from discontinued operations

270

130 2201
6699 1414

691 79

5878 708

GAINS ON SALES OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS Gains on sales of

discontinued operations were $6.7 million for 2007 due to the sale of

Schuylkill Mall Gains on sales of discontinued operations were $1 .4

million for 2006 due to the sale of South Blanding Village

Net Operating Income

Net operating income non-G4AP measure is derived from real

estate revenue determined in accordance with GAAP minus property

operating expenses determined in accordance with GAAP It does not

represent cash generated from operating activities in accordance with

GAAP and should not be considered to be an alternative to net income

determined in accordance with GAAP as an indication of our financial

performance or to be an alternative to cash flow from operating activi

ties determined in accordance with GAAP as measure of our

liquidity nor is it indicative of funds available for our cash needs includ

ing our ability to make cash distributions We believe that net income is

the most directly comparable G/AP measurement to net operating

income We believe that net operating income is helpful to manage
ment and investors as measure of operating performance because it

is an indicator of the return on property investment and provides

method of comparing property performance over time

Net operating income excludes management company revenue inter

est income general and administrative expenses interest expense

depreciation and amortization gains on sales of interests in real estate

gains or sales of non-operating real estate gains on sales of discontin

ued operations gain on extinguishment of debt impairment losses and

other expenses

The following table presents net operating income results for the years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 The results are presented using

the proportionate-consolidation method non-G4AP measure which

presents our share of the results of our partnership investments Under

GAAP we account for our partnership investments under the equity

method of accounting Property operating results for retail properties

that we owned for the full periods presented Same Store exclude

properties acquired or disposed of during the periods presented

97 2654
240

28 57
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O/ Change 2008 vs 2007

Same Store Total

1.2% 2.3%

3.1% 3.8%

0.0% 1.3%

Primarily because of the items discussed above under Real Estate

Revenue and Property Operating Expenses total net operating

income increased by $3.9 million in 2008 compared to 2007 and

Same Store net operating income remained at $302.6 million in 2008

as compared to 2007

The following information is provided to reconcile net income to net

operating income

in thousands ot dollars

Net loss income

Adjustments

Depreciation and amortization

Wholly owned and consolidated partnerships

Unconsolidated partnerships

Discontinued operations

Interest expense

Wholly owned and consolidated partnerships

Unconsolidated partnerships

Discontinued operations

Minority interest

Gains on sales of interests in real estate

Gains on sales of non-operating real estate

Gains on sales of discontinued operations

Gain on extinguishment of debt

Impairment of assets

Other expenses

Management company revenue

Interest and other income

Property net operating income

Funds From Operations

For the Year Ended December 31

Funds From Operations is commonly used measure of operating per

formance and
profitability

in the real estate industry and we use FF0

and FF0 per diluted share and OP Unit as supplemental non-GAAP

measures to compare our Companys performance for different periods

to that of our industry peers Similarly FF0 per diluted share and OP

Unit is measure that is useful because it reflects the dilutive impact of

outstanding convertible securities In addition we use FF0 and FF0

per diluted share and OP Unit as one of the performance measures for

determining bonus amounts earned under certain of our performance-

based executive compensation programs We compute Funds From

Operations in accordance with standards established by NAREIT less

dividends on preferred shares for periods during which we had pre

ferred shares outstanding which may not be comparable to Funds

From Operations reported by other REITs that do not define the term in

accordance with the current NAREIT definition or that interpret the

2008 2007
current NAREIT definition differently than we do

112064 98860

10274 12241

136

287 2105

579

1731

6699

29278

27592

41858 43359

3730 4419

769 2557

307317 303406

The National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts NAREIT
defines Funds From Operations which is non-GAAP measure as

income before gains and losses on sales of operating properties and

extraordinary items computed in accordance with GAAP plus real

estate depreciation plus or minus adjustments for unconsolidated

partnerships to reflect funds from operations on the same basis We

compute Funds From Operations by taking the amount determined

pursuant to the NAREIT definition and subtracting dividends on pre

ferred shares FF0 for periods during which we had preferred shares

outstanding FF0 includes the effect of our redemption of all of our

11% non-convertible Senior Preferred Shares in July 2007

FF0 does not include gains and losses on sales of operating real estate

assets which are included in the determination of net income in accor

dance with GAAP Accordingly FF0 is not comprehensive measure of

our operating cash flows In addition since FF0 does not include

depreciation on real estate assets FF0 may not be useful perform

ance measure when comparing our operating performance to that of

other non-real estate commercial enterprises We compensate for

these limitations by using FF0 in conjunction with other GAAP financial

performance measures such as net income and net cash provided by

operating activities and other non-GAAP financial performance meas

ures such as net operating income FF0 does not represent cash

generated from operating activities in accordance with GAAP and

should not be considered to be an alternative to net income deter

mined in accordance with GAAP as an indication of our financial

performance or to be an alternative to cash flow from operating activi

ties determined in accordance with GAAP as measure of our

liquidity nor is it indicative of funds available for our cash needs includ

ing our ability to make cash distributions

We believe that net income is the most directly comparable GAAP

measurement to FF0 We believe that FF0 is helpful to management

and investors as measure of operating performance because it

excludes various items included in net income that do not relate to or

are not indicative of operating performance such as various non-recur

ring items that are considered extraordinary under GAAP gains on sales

of operating real estate and depreciation and amortization of real estate

FF0 was $146.7 million for the year ended December 31 2008

decrease of $14.0 million or 9% compared to $160.7 million for 2007

FF0 decreased because of the decrease in net income as result of

higher property operating expenses higher interest expense and

impairment losses partially offset by gain on extinguishment of debt

FF0 per share decreased $0.33 per share to $3.57 per share for the

year ended December 31 2008 compared to $3.90 per share for the

year ended December 31 2007

in thousands of dollars

Same Store

Non Same Store

Total

For the Year Ended December 31 2008

Real Estate

Revenue

499729

7222

Property

Operating

Es pe noes

197165

2469

199634

Net Operating

income

302564

4753

307317

For the Year Ended December 31 2007

506951

Real estate revenue

Property operating expenses

Net operating income

Real Estate

Revenue

493915

1813

495728

Property

Operatmg

Expenses

191308

1014

192322

Net Operating

income

302607

799

303406

10380 23161

151612

8361

132184

7130

215
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The shares used to calculate both FF0 per basic share and FF0 per

diluted share include common shares and OP Units not held by us FF0

per diluted share also includes the effect of common share equivalents

The following information is provided to reconcile net income to FF0
and to show the items included in our FF0 for the periods indicated

Liquidity And Capital Resources

This Liquidity and Capital Resources section contains certain

forward-looking statements that relate to expectations and projec

tions that are not historical facts These forward-looking statements

reflect our current views about our future liquidity and capital

resources and are subject to risks and uncertainties that might cause

our actual liquidity and capital resources to differ materially from the

forward-looking statements We do not intend to update or revise any

forward-looking statements about our liquidity and capital resources to

reflect new information future events or otherwise

CAPITAL RESOURCES We expect to meet our short-term
liquidity

requirements including distributions to shareholders recurring capital

expenditures tenant improvements and leasing commissions but

excluding development and redevelopment projects generally through

our available working capital and net cash provided by operations We
believe that our net cash provided by operations will be sufficient to

allow us to make any distributions necessary to enable us to continue

to qualify as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as

amended The aggregate distributions made to common shareholders

and OP Unitholders in 2008 were $94.7 million based on distributions

of $2.28 per share For the first quarter of 2009 we have announced

payment of $0.29 per share which equates to an annual distribution

amount of $1.16 per share The following are some of the factors that

could affect our cash flows and require the funding of future cash dis

tributions recurring capital expenditures tenant improvements or

leasing commissions with sources other than operating cash flows

adverse changes or prolonged downturns in general local or retail

industry economic financial credit market or competitive condi

tions leading to reduction in real estate revenue or cash flows or

an increase in expenses

deterioration in our tenants business operations and financial sta

bility including tenant bankruptcies leasing delays or terminations

or lower sales causing deferrals or declines in rent percentage rent

and cash flows

inability to achieve targets for or decreases in property occupancy

and rental rates or higher costs or delays in completion of our

development and redevelopment projects resulting in lower or

delayed real estate revenue and operating income

increases in interest rates resulting in higher borrowing costs and

increases in operating costs that cannot be passed on to tenants

resulting in reduced operating income and cash flows

We expect to meet certain of our current obligations to fund existing

development and redevelopment projects and certain capital require

ments including any future development and redevelopment projects

scheduled debt maturities property and portfolio acquisitions

expenses associated with acquisitions renovations expansions and

other non-recurring capital improvements through variety of capital

sources including secured or unsecured indebtedness Consistent

with our stated capital strategy we might seek to place secured debt

on certain of our unencumbered or stabilized properties or to obtain

unsecured indebtedness Following the repayment of the REMIC in

September 2008 our portfolio includes some unencumbered proper

ties In September 2008 we obtained an unsecured Term Loan and to

date we have borrowed $1 70.0 million under that Term Loan We also

expect to raise capital through selective sales of assets including out-

parcels and the issuance of additional equity securities when

warranted Furthermore we might seek to satisfy our long-term capital

requirements through the formation of
joint ventures with institutional

partners private equity investors or other REITs or through combina

tion of some or all of these alternatives

For the Year Ended Per share For the Year Ended Per share

In thnusands of doflars December 31 2008 including OP Units December 31 2007 incuding OP Units

Net loss income 10380 0.25 23161 0.56

Adjustments

Minority interest 287 0.01 2105 0.05

Dividends on preferred shares 7941 0.19
Redemption of preferred shares 13347 0.32

Gains on sales of discontinued operations 6699 0.16
Gains on sales of interests in real estate 579 0.01
Depreciation and amortization

Wholly owned and consolidated partnerships 149005 3.63 129924 3.15

Unconsolidated partnerships 8361 0.20 7130 0.17

Discontinued operations 215

Funds from operations2 146699 160663

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 38807 37577

Weighted average effect of full conversion of OP Units 2236 3308
Effect of common share equivalents 14 325

Total weighted average shares outstanding including OP Units 41057 41210

Excludes deprecidtion of non-real estate assets and amortization of deferred financing costs

Includes the non-cash effect of
straight-line rent of $2.0 million and $2.5 million for the twelve months ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

3.57

0.01

3.90
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We expect that our significant expenditures related to the redevelop

ment and development projects listed in this report will continue over

the next several quarters We expect that our construction in progress

balance will peak in the first half of 2009 Construction in progress rep

resents the aggregate expenditures on projects less amounts placed in

service Generally assets are placed in service upon substantial com

pletion or when tenants begin occupancy and rent payments

commence Continued uncertainty in the credit markets might nega

tively affect our ability to access additional debt financing at reasonable

terms or at all which might negatively affect our ability to fund our

redevelopment and development projects and other business initia

tives prolonged downturn in the credit markets might cause us to

seek alternative sources of financing which could be less attractive

and might require us to adjust our business plan accordingly

In March 2009 the SEC declared effective $1 .0 billion universal shelf

registration statement Currently we may use our shelf registration

statement to offer and sell common shares of beneficial interest pre

ferred shares and various types of debt securities among other types

of securities to the public However we may be unable to issue secu

rities under the shelf registration statement or otherwise on terms that

are favorable to us if at all

CREDIT FACILITY The amounts borrowed under our $500.0 million

Credit Facility bear interest at rate between 0.95% and 2.00% per

annum over LIBOR based on our leverage In determining our leverage

the capitalization rate used to calculate Gross Asset Value is 7.50% In

the determination of the Companys Gross Asset Value when we com
plete the redevelopment or development of property and it is Placed

in Service the amount of Construction in Progress of such property

included in Gross Asset Value is gradually reduced over four quarter

period The availability of funds under the Credit Facility is subject to

our compliance with financial and other covenants and agreements In

October 2008 we exercised an option to extend the term of the Credit

Facility to March 2010

The following are some of the potential impediments to accessing addi

tional funds under the Credit Facility

constraining leverage interest coverage and tangible net worth

covenants under the Credit Facility

increased interest rates affecting coverage ratios

reduction in our consolidated earnings before interest taxes depre

ciation and amortization EBITDA affecting coverage ratios and

reduction in our net operating income or increased indebtedness

affecting leverage ratios

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 $400.0 million and $330.0 million

respectively were outstanding under the Credit Facility In addition we

pledged $6.4 million under the Credit
Facility as collateral for letters of

credit at December 31 2008 The unused portion of the Credit Facility

that was available to us was $93.6 million as of December 31 2008

The weighted average effective interest rate based on amounts bor

rowed was 4.63% 6.34% and 6.50% for the years ended December

31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The weighted average interest

rate on outstanding Credit Facility borrowings at December 31 2008

was 2.87%

We must repay the entire principal amount outstanding under the

Credit Facility at the end of its term We may prepay any revolving loan

at any time without premium or penalty Accrued and unpaid interest on

the outstanding principal amount under the Credit Facility is payable

monthly and any unpaid amount is payable at the end of the term The

Credit Facility has facility fee of 0.15% to 0.25% per annum of the

total commitments depending on our leverage and without regard to

usage The Credit Facility contains lender yield protection provisions

related to LIBOR loans We and certain of our subsidiaries are guaran

tors of the obligations arising under the Credit Facility

As amended the Credit Facility contains affirmative and negative

covenants customarily found in facilities of this type as well as require

ments that we maintain on consolidated basis
all capitalized terms

used in this paragraph have the meanings ascribed to such terms in

the Credit Agreement minimum Tangible Net Worth of not less

than 75% of the Tangible Net Worth of the Company on December 31
2007 plus 75% of the Net Proceeds of all Equity Issuances effected at

any time after December 31 2007 maximum ratio of Total

Liabilities to Gross Asset Value of 0.651 provided that such ratio may

exceed 0.651 for one period of two consecutive fiscal quarters but

may not exceed 0.701 minimum ratio of EBITDA to Indebtedness

of 0.09751 provided that such ratio may be less than 0.09751 for

one period of two consecutive fiscal quarters but may not be less than

0.09251 minimum ratio of Adjusted EBITDA to Fixed Charges of

1.401 for periods ending on or before December31 2008 after which

time the ratio is 1.501 maximum Investments in unimproved real

estate and predevelopment costs not in excess of 5.0% of Gross Asset

Value maximum Investments in Persons other than Subsidiaries

and Unconsolidated Affiliates not in excess of 5.0% of Gross Asset

Value maximum Investments in Indebtedness secured by

Mortgages in favor of the Company or any other Subsidiary not in

excess of 5.0% of Gross Asset Value maximum Investments in

Subsidiaries that are not Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries and Investments

in Unconsolidated Affiliates not in excess of 20.0% of Gross Asset

Value maximum Investments subject to the limitations in the pre

ceding clauses through not in excess of 10.0% of Gross Asset

Value 10 maximum Gross Asset Value attributable to any one

Property not in excess of 15.0% of Gross Asset Value 11 maximum

Total Budgeted Cost Until Stabilization for all properties under develop

ment not in excess of 20.0% of Gross Asset Value at any time on or

before June 30 2009 and 15.0% of Gross Asset Value at any time

after June 30 2009 12 maximum Floating Rate Indebtedness in an

aggregate outstanding principal amount not in excess of one-third of all

Indebtedness of the Company its Subsidiaries and its Unconsolidated

Affiliates 13 maximum ratio of Secured Indebtedness of the

Company its Subsidiaries and its Unconsolidated Affiliates to Gross

Asset Value of 0.601 and 14 maximum ratio of recourse Secured

Indebtedness of the Borrower or Guarantors to Gross Asset Value of

0.251 As of December 31 2008 the Company was in compliance

with all of these debt covenants

Upon the expiration of any applicable cure period following an event of

default the lenders may declare all of our obligations in connection with

the Credit Facility immediately due and payable and the commitments

of the lenders to make further loans under the Credit
Facility

will termi

nate Upon the occurrence of voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy

proceeding of the Company PREIT Associates PAl or any material

subsidiary all outstanding amounts will automatically become immedi

ately due and payable and the commitments of the lenders to make

further loans will automatically terminate
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SENIOR UNSECURED TERM LOAN In September 2008 we borrowed

an aggregate of $1 70.0 million under our senior unsecured Term Loan

Agreement with stated interest rate of 2.50% above LIBOR Also in

September 2008 we swapped the floating interest rate on $130.0

million of the Term Loan balance to fixed rate of 5.33% effective

October 2008 In October 2008 we swapped the floating interest

rate on the remaining $40.0 million of the Term Loan balance to fixed

rate of 5.15% We may increase the outstanding amount of the Term

Loan subject to certain conditions and to the participation of additional

lenders on one additional occasion before the initial maturity date of

March 20 2010 We may extend the maturity date of the Term Loan

subject to certain conditions on one occasion for period of one year

If we choose to exercise this right we would pay an extension fee of

0.25% of the then-outstanding principal The weighted average effec

tive interest rate for the year ended December 31 2008 based on

amounts borrowed was 5.72% The weighted average interest rate on

amounts outstanding at December 31 2008 was 5.29%

Interest under the Term Loan is payable monthly in arrears and no prin

cipal payment is due until the end of the term The Term Loan contains

lender yield protection provisions We may not prepay the loan during

the first twelve months of the term but may prepay all or portion of

the Term Loan beginning in the thirteenth month subject to prepay

ment fee We and certain of our subsidiaries are guarantors of the

obligations arising under the Term Loan

The Term Loan Agreement contains customary representations and

affirmative and negative covenants including compliance with certain

financial covenants that are materially the same as those contained in

our Credit Facility As of December 31 2008 we were in compliance

with all of these covenants

EXCHANGEABLE NOTES In May 2007 we through PREIT Associates

completed the sale of $287.5 million aggregate principal amount of

exchangeable notes due 2012 Exchangeable Notes The net pro

ceeds from the offering of $281 .0 million were used for the repayment

of indebtedness under our Credit Facility the cost of the related

capped call transactions and for other general corporate purposes

The Exchangeable Notes are general unsecured senior obligations of

PREIT Associates and rank equally in right of payment with all other

senior unsecured indebtedness of PREIT Associates Interest pay

ments are due on June and December of each year began on

December 2007 and will continue until the maturity date of June

2012 PREIT Associates obligations under the Exchangeable Notes

are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company

The Exchangeable Notes bear interest at 4.00% per annum and

contain an exchange settlement feature Pursuant to this feature upon

surrender of the Exchangeable Notes for exchange the Exchangeable

Notes will be exchangeable for cash equal to the principal amount of

the Exchangeable Notes and with respect to any excess exchange

value above the principal amount of the Exchangeable Notes at our

option for cash common shares of the Company or combination of

cash and common shares at an initial exchange rate of 18.303 shares

per $1000 principal amount of Exchangeable Notes or $54.64 per

share The Exchangeable Notes will be exchangeable only under

certain circumstances Prior to maturity PREIT Associates may not

redeem the Exchangeable Notes except to preserve our status as

real estate investment trust If we undergo certain change of control

transactions at any time prior to maturity holders of the Exchangeable

Notes may require PREIT Associates to repurchase their Exchangeable

Notes in whole or in part for cash equal to 100% of the principal

amount of the Exchangeable Notes to be repurchased plus unpaid

interest if any accrued to the repurchase date and there is mecha

nism for the holders to receive any excess exchange value The

Indenture for the Exchangeable Notes does not contain any financial

covenants

In connection with the offering of the Exchangeable Notes we and

PREIT Associates entered into capped call transactions with affiliates of

the initial purchasers of the Exchangeable Notes These agreements

effectively increase the exchange price of the Exchangeable Notes to

$63.74 per share The cost of these agreements of $1 2.6 million was

recorded in the shareholders equity section of our balance sheet

In December 2008 we repurchased $46.0 million in aggregate princi

pal amount of our Exchangeable Notes in privately-negotiated

transactions for an aggregate purchase price of $15.9 million which

resulted in gain on extinguishment of debt of $29.3 million We termi

nated an equivalent notional amount of the related capped calls In

connection with the repurchases we retired approximately $0.8 million

of deferred financing costs As of December 31 2008 $241 .5 million in

aggregate principal amount of the Exchangeable Notes remained out

standing In January 2009 we repurchased an additional $2.1 million in

aggregate principal amount of our Exchangeable Notes for $0.7 million

resulting in gain on extinguishment of debt of $1 .4 million
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MORTGAGE FINANCE ACTIVITY The following table presents the mortgage loans we or partnerships in which we own interests entered into during

the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in millions of dollars Amount Financed

Financing Date Property or Extended Stated Rate Swapped Rate Maturity

2006 Activity

February Valley Mall 90.0 5.49 fixed n/a February 2016

March Woodland Mallt 156.5 5.58 fixed n/a April 2016

2007 Activity

May The Mall at Prince Georges2 150.0 5.51% fixed n/a June 2017

2008 Activity

January Cherry Hill Malli3it4t 55.0 5.51% fixed n/a October 2012

February One Cherry Hill PlazaIt5t 8.0 LIBOR plus .30% n/a August 2009

May Creekview Center61 20.0 LIBOR plus 2.15% 5.56% June 2010

June Christians Center7 45.0 LIBOR plus 1.85% 5.87% June 2011

June Lehigh Valley Mallt181 150.0 LIBOR plus 0.56% n/a August 2009

July Paxton Towne Centre27 54.0 LIBOR plus 2.00% 5.84% July 2011

September Patrick Henry Mal9 97.0 6.34% fixed n/a October 2015

September Jacksonville Malrott 56.3 LIBOR plus 2.10% 5.83% September 2013

September Logan Valley MallI22t 68.0 LIBOR plus 2.10% 5.79% September 2013

September Wyoming Valley Mal221t13t 65.0 LIBOR plus 2.25% 5.85% September 2013

October Whitehall MallM4 12.4 7.00% fixed n/a November 2018

November Francis Scott Key MaE2 55.0 LIBOR plus 2.35% 5.25% December 2013

November Viewmont Mall 48.0 LIBOR plus 2.35% 5.25% December 2013

November Springfield Mallor506 72.3 LIBOR plus 1.275% n/a December 2009

December Exton Square Malli7 70.0 7.50% fixed n/a January 2014

Interest only for the first three years then amortization based on 30-year amortization schedule

Interest only

Supplemental financing with maturity date that coincides with the existing first mortgage

First 24 payments are interest only followed by principal and interest payments based on 360-month amortization schedule

Entered into this mortgage as result of the acquisiton of Bala cynwyd Associates LV BCA Mortgage has two one-year extension options

Mortgage has term of two years and three one-year extension options

Mortgage has term of three years and two one-year extension options

In July 2006 the unconsolidated partnership that owns Lehigh Valley Mall entered into $150.0 million mortgage We own an indirect 50% ownership interest in this entity

The original maturity date of the mortgage was August 2007 with three separate one year extension op lions In June 2008 the unconsolidated partnership exercised its

second extension option

Payments based on 25 year amortization schedule with balloon payment in October 2015

10 On one occasion prior to March 2010 we may request an increase in the princi4al amount of the loan of up to $3.7 million or total of $60.0 million principal in total

subject to satisfaction of financial condition

11 Mortgage has term of five years and two one-year extension options

12 The loan bears interest at an annual rate equal to at our election LIBOR plus 2.10% or base rate equal to the prime rate or if greatey the federal funds rate plus 0.50%

plus margin of 0.50%

13 The loan bears interest at an annual rate equal to at our election LIBOR plus 2.25% or base rate equal to the prime rate or if greatey the federal funds rate plus 0.50%

plus margin of 0.50%

14 The unconsolidated partnership that owns Whitehall Mall entered into the mortgage Our interest in the unconsolidated partnership is 50%

15 In November 2005 the unconsolidated partnership that owns Springfield Mall entered into $76.5 million mortgage We own an indirect 50% ownership interest in this

entity The original maturity date of the mortgage was Oecember 2007 with three separate one year extension options In Oecember 2008 the unconsolidated partner

ship made principal payment of $4.2 million and exercised its second extension option

16 The loan bears interest at an annual rate equal to at our election LIBOR pIus 1.10% or LIBOR plus 1.275% while the former Strawbridges anchor space is vacant or at

base rate equal to the prime rate or if greater the federal funds rate pIus 0.50%

17 Payments based on 30 year amortization schedule with balloon payment in January 2014

In July 2008 we repaid $12.7 mortgage loan on Crossroads Mall in We entered into these interest rate swap agreements in order to hedge

Beckley West Virginia using funds from our Credit
Facility and avail- the interest payments associated with our 2008 issuances of floating

able working capital rate long-term debt We assessed the effectiveness of these swaps as

hedges at inception and on December 31 2008 and considered these
In December 2008 we repaid $93.0 million mortgage loan on Exton

swaps to be highly effective cash flow hedges under SFAS No 133
Square Mall in Exton Pennsylvania using $70.0 million from new mob-

Our interest rate swaps are net settled monthly
gage on the property our Credit

Facility and available working capital

As of December 31 2008 the aggregate estimated unrealized net loss
In January 2009 we repaid $15.7 million mortgage loan on Palmer

attributed to these interest rate swaps was $29.2 million The carrying
Park Mall in Easton Pennsylvania using funds from our Credit Facility amount of the derivative assets is reflected in deferred costs and other

INTEREST RATE SWAPS As of December 31 2008 we had entered assets the associated liabilities are reflected in accrued expenses and

into 12 interest rate swap agreements that have weighted average
other liabilities and the net unrealized gain is reflected in accumulated

rate of 3.31 on notional amount of $581 .3 million maturing on other comprehensive loss in the accompanying balance sheets

various dates through November 2013
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PREFERRED SHARES On July 31 2007 we redeemed all of our 11%

non-convertible senior preferred shares for $129.9 million or $52.50

per preferred share plus accrued and unpaid dividends to the redemp

tion date of $1.9 million The preferred shares were issued in November

2003 in connection with the Merger with Crown and were initially

recorded at $57.90 per preferred share the fair value based on the

market value of the corresponding Crown preferred shares as of May

13 2003 the date on which the financial terms of the Merger were

substantially complete In order to finance the redemption we bor

rowed $131 .8 million under our Credit Facility As result of the

redemption the $1 3.3 million excess of the carrying amount of the pre

ferred shares net of expenses over the redemption price is included in

Income Available to Common Shareholders in the year ended

December 31 2007

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAMS In December 2007 our Board of

Trustees authorized program to repurchase up to $100.0 million of

our common shares through solicited or unsolicited transactions in the

open market or privately negotiated or other transactions from January

2008 through December 31 2009 subject to our authority to termi

nate the program earlier Previously in October 2005 our Board of

Trustees had authorized program to repurchase up to $100.0 million

of our common shares That program expired by its terms on

December 31 2007 We may fund repurchases under the program

from any source deemed appropriate at the time of repurchase We are

not required to repurchase any shares under the program The dollar

amount of shares that may be repurchased or the timing of such trans

actions is dependent on the prevailing price of our common shares and

market conditions among other factors The program will be in effect

until the end of 2009 subject to the authority of our Board of Trustees

to terminate the program earlier

In 2007 we repurchased 152500 shares at an average price of

$35.67 or an aggregate purchase price of $5.4 million The cumulative

amount of shares repurchased from the inception of our prior repur

chase program to December 31 2008 was 371200 shares at an

average price of $37.15 or an aggregate purchase price of $13.8

million

MORTGAGE NOTES Mortgage notes payable which are secured by 24

of our consolidated properties are due in installments over various

terms extending to the year 2017 with fixed interest at rates ranging

from 4.95% to 7.61% and weighted average interest rate of 5.78% at

December 31 2008 Mortgage notes payable for properties owned by

unconsolidated partnerships are accounted for in Investments in part

nerships at equity on the consolidated balance sheets The following

table outlines the timing of principal payments related to our mortgage

notes as of December 31 2008

Payments by Period

in thousands of dollars Total 2009 20102011 201 22013 Thereafter

Principal payments 110603 17053 38444 30926 24180

Balloon paymentrt 1645667 58009 118448 762360 706850

Total 1756270 75062 156892 793286 731030

Due dates for certain of the balloon payments set forth in this table may be extended pursuant to the terms of the respective loan agreements

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS The following table presents our aggre

gate contractual obligations as of December 31 2008 for the periods

presented

Total

1756270

532265

241500

33810

170000

10968

400000

2009

75062

100233

805

8789

201 02011

156892

189444

19320

170000

2179

400000

20122013

793286

149732

241500

13685

in thousands of dollars

Mortgages

Interest on mortgages

Exchangeable Notes

Interest on Exchangeable Notes

Term Loan

Interest on Term Loan

Credit Facility

Capital leases

Operating leases

Ground leases

Development and redevelopment commitments3

Total

The Credit Facility has term that expires in March 2010

Includes interest

The timing of the payments of these amounts is uncertain We estimate that such payments will be made in the upcoming year but situations could anse at these

development and redevelopment proects that could delay the settlement of these obligations

Thereafter

731030

92856

174

11849

52497

86652

3295985

174

2838

987

86652

275540

4428

1974

944237

3349

1565

1203117

1234

47971

873091
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Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled $1 25.0 million for the

year ended December 31 2008 compared to $149.5 million for the

year ended December 31 2007 and $1 64.4 million for the year ended

December 31 2006 The decrease in 2008 as compared to 2007 was

primarily due to the factors discussed in Results of Operations and

changes in working capital primarily $5.2 million decrease in accrued

expenses $3.1 million decrease in tenant deposits and deferred rent

and $1 .9 million decrease in accrued incentive compensation

Cash flows used for investing activities were $353.2 million for the year

ended December 31 2008 compared to $242.4 million for the year

ended December 31 2007 and $187.8 million for the year ended

December 31 2006 Investing activities for 2008 reflect investment in

construction in progress of $307.4 million real estate improvements of

$25.0 million and real estate acquisitions of $1 .9 million all of which pri

marily relate to our development and redevelopment activities Investing

activities also reflect $4.0 million paid to acquire partnership interests

and $10.0 million increase in notes receivable Cash flows from invest

ing activities for the year ended December 31 2007 reflect investment in

construction in progress of $213.8 million real estate improvements of

$32.5 million and real estate acquisitions of $1 .7 million It also included

$32.2 million of sales proceeds that did not recur

Cash flows provided by financing activities were $210.1 million for the

year ended December 31 2008 compared to $105.0 million for the

year ended December 31 2007 and $1 6.3 million for the year ended

December 31 2006 Cash flows provided by financing activities for the

year ended December 31 2008 were primarily affected by $633.3

million of proceeds from the mortgage loans on ten properties and the

supplemental financing of Cherry Hill Mall as well as $1 70.0 in borrow

ings from senior unsecured Term Loan and $70.0 million in

borrowings from the Credit Facility The Company used $506.5 million

of these proceeds to repay the REMIC and the mortgage notes on

Crossroads Mall and Exton Square Mall Cash flows from financing

activities for the year ended December 31 2008 were also affected by

dividends and distributions of $94.7 million principal installments on

mortgage notes payable of $21 .6 million and payments of $1 5.9

million for the repurchase of Exchangeable Notes Cash flows for the

year ended December 31 2007 included $281 .1 million and $1 50.0

million of proceeds from Exchangeable Notes and mortgage loans

respectively $56.7 million of mortgage loan repayment and $130.0

million for the redemption of the preferred shares

Commitments

At December 31 2008 we had $86.7 million of unaccrued contractual

obligations to complete current development and redevelopment projects

Total remaining costs for the particular projects with such commitments

are $151 .7 million We expect to finance these amounts through borrow

ings under the Credit Facility or through various other capital sources See

Liquidity and Capital Resources Capital Resources

Environmental

We are aware of certain environmental matters at some of our proper

ties including ground water contamination and the presence of

asbestos containing materials We have in the past performed reme

diation of such environmental matters and we are not aware of any

significant remaining potential liability relating to these environmental

matters We may be required in the future to perform testing relating to

these matters We have insurance coverage for certain environmental

claims up to $10.0 million per occurrence and up to $10.0 million in

the aggregate

Competition and Tenant Credit Risk

Competition in the retail real estate industry is intense We compete

with other public and private retail real estate companies including

companies that own or manage malls strip centers power centers

lifestyle centers factory outlet centers theme/festival centers and

community centers as well as other commercial real estate developers

and real estate owners particularly those with properties near our

properties on the basis of several factors including location and rent

charged We compete with these companies to attract customers to

our properties as well as to attract anchor and in-line store tenants

We also compete to acquire land for new site development Our malls

and our strip and power centers face competition from similar retail

centers including more recently developed or renovated centers that

are near our retail properties We also face competition from variety

of different retail formats including internet retailers discount or value

retailers home shopping networks mail order operators catalogs and

telemarketers This competition could have material adverse effect on

our ability to lease space and on the amount of rent that we receive

Our tenants face competition from companies at the same and other

properties and from other retail formats as well

The development of competing retail properties and the related

increased competition for tenants might require us to make capital

improvements to properties that we would have deferred or would not

have otherwise planned to make and might also affect the occupancy

and net operating income of such properties Any such redevelop

ments undertaken individually or collectively involve costs and

expenses that could adversely affect our results of operations

We compete with many other entities engaged in real estate investment

activities for acquisitions of malls other retail properties and other

prime development sites including institutional pension funds other

REITs and other owner-operators of retail properties Given current

economic capital market and retail industry conditions however there

has been substantially less competition with respect to acquisition

activity in recent quarters When we seek to make acquisitions these

competitors might drive up the price we must pay for properties

parcels other assets or other companies or might themselves succeed

in acquiring those properties parcels assets or companies In addi

tion our potential acquisition targets might find our competitors to be

more attractive suitors if they have greater resources are willing to pay

more or have more compatible operating philosophy In particular

larger REIT5 might enjoy significant competitive advantages that result

from among other things lower cost of capital better ability to

raise capital better ability to finance an acquisition and enhanced

operating efficiencies We might not succeed in acquiring retail proper

ties or development sites that we seek or if we pay higher price for
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property and/or generate lower cash flow from an acquired property

than we expect our investment returns will be reduced which will

adversely affect the value of our securities

We receive substantial portion of our operating income as rent under

long-term leases with tenants At any time any tenant having space in

one or more of our properties could experience downturn in its busi

ness that might weaken its financial condition These tenants might

defer or fail to make rental payments when due delay or cancel lease

commencement voluntarily vacate the premises or declare bankruptcy

which could result in the termination of the tenants lease and could

result in material losses to us and harm to our results of operations

Also it might take time to terminate leases of underperforming or non-

performing tenants and we might incur costs to remove such tenants

Some of our tenants occupy stores at multiple locations in our portfo

lio and so the effect of any bankruptcy of those tenants might be more

significant to us than the bankruptcy of other tenants In addition

under many of our leases our tenants pay rent based on percentage

of their sales Accordingly declines in these tenants sales directly

affect our results of operations Also if tenants are unable to comply

with the terms of their leases we might modify lease terms in ways that

are less favorable to us

Seasonality

There is seasonality in the retail real estate industry Retail property

leases often provide for the payment of portion of rent based on

percentage of tenants sales over certain levels Income from such

rent is recorded only after the minimum sales levels have been met The

sales levels are often met in the fourth quarter during the December

holiday season Also many new and temporary leases are entered into

later in the year in anticipation of the holiday season and there is

higher concentration of tenants vacating their space early in the year

As result our occupancy and cash flows are generally higher in the

fourth quarter and lower in the first quarter excluding the effect of

ongoing redevelopment projects Our concentration in the retail sector

increases our exposure to seasonality and is expected to continue to

result in greater percentage of our cash flows being received in the

fourth quarter

Inflation

Inflation can have many effects on financial performance Retail prop

erty leases often provide for the payment of rent based on

percentage of sales which may increase with inflation Leases may

also provide for tenants to bear all or portion of operating expenses

which may reduce the impact of such increases on us However rent

increases may not keep up with inflation or if we recover smaller pro

portion of property operating expenses we might bear more costs if

such expenses increase because of inflation

Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2008 together with other statements and information publicly dissem

inated by us contain certain forward-looking statements within the

meaning of the U.S Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Forward-looking statements relate to

expectations beliefs projections future plans strategies anticipated

events trends and other matters that are not historical facts These

forward-looking statements reflect our current views about future

events and are subject to risks uncertainties and changes in circum

stances that might cause future events achievements or results to

differ materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking

statements In particular our business might be affected by uncertain

ties affecting real estate businesses generally as well as the following

among other factors

general economic financial and political conditions including credit

market conditions changes in interest rates or the possibility of war

or terrorist attacks

the current economic downturn and its effect on our existing and

potential tenants and their ability to make and meet their obligations

to us

our ability to continue to comply with the requirements of our Credit

Facility and to renew or replace the full amount of our secured and

unsecured indebtedness when it matures

changes in local market conditions such as the supply of or

demand for retail space or other competitive factors

changes in the retail industry including consolidation and store

closings

concentration of our properties in the Mid-Atlantic region

risks relating to development and redevelopment activities includ

ing risks associated with construction and receipt of governmental

and tenant approvals

our ability to raise capital through secured or unsecured loans

public and private offerings of debt or equity securities and other

financing risks including the availability of adequate funds at rea

sonable cost

our ability to simultaneously manage several redevelopment and

development projects including projects involving mixed use

our ability to maintain and increase property occupancy and rental

rates

our dependence on our tenants business operations and their

financial stability

increases in operating costs that cannot be passed on to tenants

our ability to acquire additional properties and our ability to integrate

acquired properties into our existing portfolio

our short- and long-term liquidity position

possible environmental liabilities

our ability to obtain insurance at reasonable cost and

existence of complex regulations including those relating to our

status as REIT and the adverse consequences if we were to fail

to qualify as REIT

We do not intend to update or revise any forward-looking statements

to reflect new information future events or otherwise



PENNSYLVANIA REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST 2008 ANNUAL REPORT 55

Except as the context otherwise requires references in this Annual

Report to we our us the Company and PREIT refer to

Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust and its subsidiaries includ

ing our operating partnership PREIT Associates L.P References in this

Annual Report to PREIT Associates refer to PREIT Associates L.P

References in this Annual Report to PHI refer to PREIT-RUBIN Inc

Quantitative And Qualitative Disclosures About

Market Risk

The analysis below presents the sensitivity of the market value of our

financial instruments to selected changes in market interest rates As of

December 31 2008 our consolidated debt portfolio consisted prima

rily of $400.0 million borrowed under our Credit Facility which bears

interest at LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin $241 .5 million of

Exchangeable Notes which bear interest at 4.00% $1 70.0 million bor

rowed under our senior unsecured Term Loan which bears interest at

weighted-average swapped fixed interest rate of 5.29% and $1 756.3

million in fixed and variable rate mortgage notes including $4.0 million

of mortgage debt premium

Mortgage notes payable which are secured by 24 of our consolidated

properties are due in installments over various terms extending to the

year 2017 with fixed interest at rates ranging from 4.95% to 7.61%

and weighted average interest rate of 5.78% at December 31 2008

Mortgage notes payable for properties owned by unconsolidated part

nerships are accounted for in Investments in partnerships at equity

on the consolidated balance sheet

Our interest rate risk is monitored using variety of techniques The

table below presents the principal amounts of the expected annual

maturities and the weighted average interest rates for the principal pay

ments in the specified periods

Weighted Weighted

in thousands of dollarsl Principal Average Principal Average

Year Ended December31 Payments Interest Rate Payments Interest Rate

2009 67062 691% 8000 3.78%

2010 208097 5.83% 4QQQQg1 3.92%2

2011 118795 5.60%

2012 619352 5.82%

2013 415434 5.55%

2014 and thereafter 731030 5.52%

Our Credit Facility has term that expires in March 2010

Based on the weighted average interest rate in effect as of

December 31 2008

Changes in market interest rates have different impacts on the fixed

and variable portions of our debt portfolio change in market interest

rates applicable to the fixed portion of the debt portfolio impacts the

fair value but it has no impact on interest incurred or cash flows

change in market interest rates applicable to the variable portion of the

debt portfolio impacts the interest incurred and cash flows but does

not impact the fair value The following sensitivity analysis related to the

fixed debt portfolio which includes the effects of our interest rate swap

agreements assumes an immediate 100 basis point change in interest

rates from their actual December 31 2008 levels with all other vari

ables held constant 100 basis point increase in market interest rates

would result in decrease in our net financial instrument position of

$56.5 million at December 31 2008 100 basis point decrease in

market interest rates would result in an increase in our net financial

instrument position of $59.5 million at December 31 2008 Based on

the variable-rate debt included in our debt portfolio as of December 31

2008 100 basis point increase in interest rates would result in an

additional $4.0 million in interest annually 100 basis point decrease

would reduce interest incurred by $4.0 million annually

To manage interest rate risk and limit overall interest cost we may

employ interest rate swaps options forwards caps and floors or

combination thereof depending on the underlying exposure Interest

rate differentials that arise under swap contracts are recognized in

interest expense over the life of the contracts If interest rates rise the

resulting cost of funds is expected to be lower than that which would

have been available if debt with matching characteristics was issued

directly Conversely if interest rates fall the resulting costs would be

expected to be higher We may also employ forwards or purchased

options to hedge qualifying anticipated transactions Gains and losses

are deferred and recognized in net income in the same period that the

underlying transaction occurs expires or is otherwise terminated See

note to our consolidated financial statements

We have an aggregate $581 .3 million in notional amount of swap

agreements settling on various dates through November 2013

Because the information presented above includes only those expo

sures that existed as of December 31 2008 it does not consider

changes exposures or positions which could arise after that date The

information presented herein has limited predictive value As result

the ultimate realized gain or loss or expense with respect to interest

rate fluctuations will depend on the exposures that arise during the

period our hedging strategies at the time and interest rates

Fixed-Rate Debt variable-Rate Debt
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

HEADQUARTERS
200 South Broad Street Third Floor

Philadelphia PA 19102-3803

21 5.8750700

215.875.7311 Fax

866.875.0700 Toll Free

www.preit.com

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

KPMG LLP

1601 Market Street

Philadelphia PA 191032499

LEGAL COUNSEL

Drinker Biddle Reath LLP

One Logan Square

18th Cherry Streets

Philadelphia PA 191036996

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

For change of address lost dividend checks shareholder records

and other shareholder matters contact

Mailing Address

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services

P.O Box 64856

St Paul MN 55164-0856

651 .450.4064 outside the United States

651 .450.4085 Fax

800.468.9716 Toll Free

www.wellsfargo.com/shareownerservice5

Street or Courier Address

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services

161 North Concord Exchange

South St Paul MN 55075-1139

DISTRIBUTION REINVESTMENT AND SHARE PURCHASE PLAN

The Company has Distribution Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan for

common shares NYSEPEI that allows investors to invest directly in shares of

the Company at 1% discount with no transaction fee and to reinvest their

dividends at no cost to the shareholder The minimum initial investment is

$250 the minimum subsequent investment is $50 and the maximum monthly

amount is $5000 without waiver

Further information and forms are available on our web site at

www.preit.com under Investor Relations DRIP/Stock Purchase

You may also contact the Company or the Plan Administrator

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services at 800.468.9716 or

651.450.4064

INVESTOR INQUIRIES

Shareholders prospective investors and analysts seeking information about

the Company should direct their inquiries to

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust

200 South Broad Street Third Floor

Philadelphia PA 191023803

215.875.0735

215.546.2504 Fax

866.875.0700 ext 50735 Toll Free

Email investorinfo@preit.com

FORMS 10-K AND 10-Q CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATIONS

The Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K including financial statements

and schedule and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-0 which are filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission may be obtained without charge from

the Company

The Companys chief executive officer certified to the New York Stock

Exchange NYSE that as of June 2008 he was not aware of any violation

by the Company of the NYSEs corporate governance listing standards

The certifications of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer

required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 were filed as

Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 respectively to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31 2008

NYSE MARKET PRICE AND DISTRIBUTION RECORD

The following table shows the high and low prices for the Companys common

shares and cash distributions paid for the periods indicated

Distributions

Paid per

Common

ShareHigh Low

March31 29.70 22.00 0.57

June30 27.88 23.00 0.57

September30 24.29 6.57 0.57

December31 19.86 2.21 0.57

2.28

Distributions

Paid per

Quarter Ended Common

Calendar Year 2007 High Low Share

March31 45.66 38.52

June30 50.39 42.64

September30 45.38 34.37

December31 41.69 28.48

0.57

0.57

0.57

0.57

2.28

In February 2009 our Board of Trustees declared cash dividend of $0.29

per share payable in March 2009 Our future payment of distributions will be at

the discretion of our Board of Trustees and will depend on numerous factors

including our cash flow financial condition capital requirements annual

distribution requirements under the REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue

Code and other factors that our Board of Trustees deems relevant

As of December 31 2008 there were approximately 3500 registered

shareholders and 19000 beneficial holders of record of the Companys

common shares of beneficial interest The Company had an aggregate of

approximately 865 employees as of December 31 2008

STOCK MARKET

New York Stock Exchange

Common Ticker Symbol PEI

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders is scheduled for 1100 a.m on Thursday

May 28 2009 at the Park Hyatt at the Bellevue 200 South Broad Street

Philadelphia Pennsylvania 19102

PREIT IS MEMBER OF

National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts

International Council of Shopping Centers

Pension Real Estate Association

Urban Land Institute

Quarter Ended

Calendar Year 2008

PEI

NYSE




